Manual eStudio 2.91 Installation and Handling



elrest Automationssysteme GmbH Leibnizstraße 10 73230 Kirchheim unter Teck Germany Telefon: +49 (0) 7021 / 92025-0 www.elrest.de

Contents

1	Ger	neral	.7
	1.1	Introduction	.7
	1.2	Hardware and software requirements of software products	.7
	1.3	Softwarelicense	.7
	1.4	Copyright	. 8
	1.5	Updates	. 9
	1.6	Manuals	. 9
	1.7	Services1	10
	1.8	Scope of supply1	10
	1.9	Intended Use1	10
	1.10	Warranty1	11
	1.11	Security policies and protective measures	12
2	Inst	allation1	13
	2.1	Overview of the eStudio versions	13
	2.1.	1 Upgrading from previous versions eStudio1	13
	2.2	Installation of eStudio1	4
	2.3	Additional installations to estudio	21
	2.3.	1 C-Compiler	21
	2.4	De-Install eStudio2	22
3	Ove	erview of the Software Products2	23
	3.1	estudio project management2	23
	3.2	eStudio PLC programming2	24
	3.3	eStudio HMI programming2	27
	3.4	eStudio WEB Server	29
	3.5	Tools	30
	3.5.	1 Versionchecker	30
	3.5.	2 FontEditor	30
	3.5.	3 Download	31
4	Proj	ject management in eStudio	32
	4.1	Overview	32
	4.1.	1 Start of the project management	32
	4.1.	2 Menu bar of the Project Management	33
	4.1.	3 The project management toolbar	35

4.2	.2 Project tree			
4.	2.1	Project view window	37	
4.3	Pro	jects	37	
4.	3.1	Create a new project	37	
4.	3.2	Creating a copy of a project	39	
4.	3.3	Project settings	39	
4.	3.4	Deleting a project	40	
4.	3.5	Importing a project	40	
4.	3.6	Project Device	40	
4.	3.7	Creating a configured device	41	
4.	3.8	Change settings of a configured device	42	
4.	3.9	Projected devices delete	43	
4.	3.10	projected devices copy	43	
4.	3.11	Cosider at a Device Data Points	43	
4.	3.12	Start the Internet browser (Ethernet)	43	
4.	3.13	FTP-start Browser (Ethernet network)	44	
4.	3.14	Start Telnet (Ethernet network)	44	
4.	3.15	Event Logger start	44	
4.	3.16	Configuration of the inputs and outputs read	45	
4.4	Pro	gramming	46	
4.	4.1	Programming in C/C++/C#	46	
4.	4.2	Programming mit CoDeSys	46	
4.	4.3	Space in the target system	50	
4.5	We	b-Files	51	
4.6	Res	ssourcen	51	
4.	6.1	Alarm Definitions	52	
4.	6.2	bitmaps	52	
4.	6.3	Fonts	53	
4.	6.4	Masks	54	
4.	6.5	Menus	54	
4.	6.6	Recipe definitions	56	
4.	6.7	Texts	57	
4.	6.8	Generate resource file	60	
4.	6.9	download Resource file	60	

	4.6.10	Start the simulation	62
4	.7 Dat	apoints	62
	4.7.1	Datapoints of communication partners	62
	4.7.2	Creating data points	64
	4.7.3	Data Point Settings	65
	4.7.4	Exporting data points	66
4	.8 Pro	gram Settings	66
	4.8.1	Version Control	67
	4.8.2	Language Development Environment	67
	4.8.3	Dongle configuration	68
	4.8.4	version switch	68
5	HMI-Edi	tor Eladesign	70
5	.1 Ove	erview	70
	5.1.1	Main window	71
	5.1.2	Menues	71
	5.1.3	Toolbar	76
	5.1.4	The Panel	77
	5.1.5	Button	77
	5.1.6	The background	79
	5.1.7	Accessibility:	81
	5.1.8	Voice Switching	
5	.2 Elei	ments in the designer	
	5.2.1	Adding graphic elements in a mask	87
	5.2.2	The toolbar elements	
	5.2.3	The element input field	
	5.2.4	The element display	
	5.2.5	The key element	97
	5.2.6	The element image	
	5.2.7	The element bargraph	
	5.2.8	The element Combobox	
	5.2.9	The element data logger	
	5.2.10	The member function button (for touchscreen)	119
	5.2.11	The element list	
	5.2.12	The element rectangle	

	5.2.13	The element line	130
	5.2.14	The element listbox	131
5	.3 Def	ault masks	134
	5.3.1	!DEFAULT_DESKTOP	134
	5.3.2	!DEFAULT_COMPONENTS	134
	5.3.3	Creating default elements	134
5	.4 The	e pixel-element array in the coordinate system	136
	5.4.1	Fixed Fonts	136
	5.4.2	True Type Fonts	137
5	.5 Wir	ndow in the coordinate system	
5	.6 Use	ed image formats	140
5	.7 Res	sGen Compiler	142
	5.7.1	Generate the driver information	142
	5.7.2	Creating device information	142
	5.7.3	Generating the data points	143
	5.7.4	Compiler process with ResGen and error messages	143
5	.8 Dov	wnload for the target system	151
5 6	.8 Dov Tips and	wnload for the target system d Tricks	151 153
5 6 6	.8 Dov Tips and .1 To	wnload for the target system d Tricks ElaDesign	
5 6 6	.8 Dov Tips and .1 To 6.1.1	wnload for the target system d Tricks ElaDesign Data Points	151 153 153 153
5 6 6	.8 Dov Tips and .1 To 6.1.1 6.1.2	wnload for the target system d Tricks ElaDesign Data Points Bt array instead of many individual bits	151 153 153 153 153
5 6 6	.8 Dov Tips and .1 To 6.1.1 6.1.2 6.1.3	wnload for the target system d Tricks ElaDesign Data Points Bt array instead of many individual bits Advantages of flag variables	151 153 153 153 154 156
5 6 6	.8 Dov Tips and .1 To 6.1.1 6.1.2 6.1.3 6.1.4	wnload for the target system d Tricks ElaDesign Data Points Bt array instead of many individual bits Advantages of flag variables Advantage Fixed Fonts	151 153 153 153 154 156 156
5 6 6	.8 Dov Tips and .1 To 6.1.1 6.1.2 6.1.3 6.1.4 6.1.5	wnload for the target system d Tricks ElaDesign Data Points Bt array instead of many individual bits Advantages of flag variables Advantage Fixed Fonts Voice Switching	151 153 153 153 153 154 156 156 156
5 6 6	.8 Dov Tips and .1 To 6.1.1 6.1.2 6.1.3 6.1.4 6.1.5 .2 To	wnload for the target system d Tricks ElaDesign Data Points Bt array instead of many individual bits Advantages of flag variables Advantage Fixed Fonts Voice Switching CoDeSys	151 153 153 153 154 156 156 156 157
5 6 6	.8 Dov Tips and .1 To 6.1.1 6.1.2 6.1.3 6.1.4 6.1.5 .2 To 6.2.1	wnload for the target system d Tricks ElaDesign Data Points Bt array instead of many individual bits Advantages of flag variables Advantage Fixed Fonts Voice Switching CoDeSys Task Configuration	
5 6 6	.8 Dov Tips and .1 To 6.1.1 6.1.2 6.1.3 6.1.4 6.1.5 .2 To 6.2.1 6.2.2	wnload for the target system d Tricks ElaDesign Data Points Bt array instead of many individual bits Advantages of flag variables Advantage Fixed Fonts Voice Switching CoDeSys Task Configuration Programming language	
5 6 6	.8 Dov Tips and .1 To 6.1.1 6.1.2 6.1.3 6.1.4 6.1.5 .2 To 6.2.1 6.2.2 6.2.3	wnload for the target system d Tricks ElaDesign Data Points Bt array instead of many individual bits Advantages of flag variables Advantage Fixed Fonts Voice Switching CoDeSys Task Configuration Programming language Program crash	
5 6 6	.8 Dov Tips and .1 To 6.1.1 6.1.2 6.1.3 6.1.4 6.1.5 .2 To 6.2.1 6.2.2 6.2.3 6.2.4	wnload for the target system d Tricks ElaDesign Data Points Bt array instead of many individual bits Advantages of flag variables Advantage Fixed Fonts Voice Switching CoDeSys Task Configuration Programming language Watchdog	
5 6 6	.8 Dov Tips and .1 To 6.1.1 6.1.2 6.1.3 6.1.4 6.1.5 .2 To 6.2.1 6.2.2 6.2.3 6.2.3 6.2.4 6.2.5	wnload for the target system d Tricks ElaDesign Data Points Bt array instead of many individual bits Advantages of flag variables Advantage Fixed Fonts Voice Switching CoDeSys Task Configuration Programming language Program crash Watchdog Netzwork variables	
5 6 6	.8 Dov Tips and .1 To 6.1.1 6.1.2 6.1.3 6.1.4 6.1.5 .2 To 6.2.1 6.2.2 6.2.3 6.2.4 6.2.5 6.2.6	wnload for the target system	
5 6 6	.8 Dov Tips and .1 To 6.1.1 6.1.2 6.1.3 6.1.4 6.1.5 .2 To 6.2.1 6.2.2 6.2.3 6.2.4 6.2.5 6.2.6 6.2.6 6.2.7	wnload for the target system	
5 6 6	.8 Dov Tips and .1 To 6.1.1 6.1.2 6.1.3 6.1.4 6.1.5 .2 To 6.2.1 6.2.2 6.2.3 6.2.4 6.2.5 6.2.6 6.2.6 6.2.7 6.2.8	wnload for the target system	

	6.2.1	0 .Backup Restore	
	6.2.1	1 Recipes	
	6.2.1	2 EStudio recipes without reading and writing	
	6.3 F	Firewall	
	6.4 F	Problems with online communication	
	6.5 F	Recommended additional programs instead of Telnet	174
7	What	Ś News	175
	7.1 \	What's New in version V2.83 to V2.91	175
	7.1.1	Context menu	175
	7.1.2	Support for high color depths	175
	7.1.3	Switching to full screen	176
	7.1.4	Changed behavior of objects	176
	7.1.5	Changed behavior of the Z-Order	177
	7.1.6	Base masks	177
	7.1.7	"Stretching" of images	
	7.1.8	Data in CSV file	
	7.1.9	Grouping of objects	
	7.1.1	0 Transparent form background	
	7.1.1	1 Clickable mask background	
	7.1.1	2 Alarm entry with dynamic values	
	7.1.1	3 Backup	
	7.1.1	4 Select a target at the start of CoDeSys	
	7.1.1	5 Use of the symbol file from the CoDeSys project	
	7.1.1	6 Hierarchical folders Stukturen	
	7.1.1	7 Application error logging	
	7.1.1	8 Touch Marker	
	7.1.1	9 Advanced data logger	
	7.1.2	0 Support with Teamviewer	
8	Supp	ort	
9	Histo	rie	

1 General

1.1 Introduction

This guide contains texts, illustrations, and explanations to the correct installation and operation of the Visio assemblies. Prior to the installation and the use of the devices must be read this manual and be respected.

For questions regarding the installation, application and operation Please contact the Customer Helpline elrest-:

Tel. :07021/92025-33

show Fax:07021/92025-59

E-mail: hotline@elrest.de

or to your representative.

This manual will be published subject to any changes. Changes can be made without notice.

1.2 Hardware and software requirements of software products

- Microsoft® Windows XP or Windows 7
- IBM® kompatibler PC mit Pentium- Prozessor
- RAM- memory of at least 1 GB main memory
- Hard disk with at least 500 MB free Disk Space
- Mouse or Trackball Keyboard
- Dongle (for the ElaSoft tool programs Can-Hex and Eichen is no Dongle required)
- Graphic card von 1024x768 with 24-bit (True Color) Solved

1.3 Softwarelicense

The software product is protected by copyright. You purchase a non-exclusive license to use the software product. The software product includes computer software and may include associated media, printed materials and "online" or electronic documentation including accessories ("SOFTWARE PRODUCT").

By installing the SOFTWARE PRODUCT, copying or using you agree to be bound by the terms of this EULA (enduser license agreement). If you do not agree to the terms of this EULA, you are not authorized to install the SOFTWARE PRODUCT or use it.

The SOFTWARE PRODUCT is protected by copyright laws and international copyright treaties, as well as other laws and agreements on intellectual property. The SOFTWARE PRODUCT is licensed, but not sold.

The Licensor grants you a nonexclusive license charge for use of the software, if your use of the software serves the sole purpose of evaluating whether a paid license to be purchased for regular use of the software. The evaluation is limited to commercial enterprises to ninety (90) days; the review by other users subject to this limitation is not limited to ninety (90) days. Authorities (with the exception of public libraries) are not religious or educational institutions or nonprofit organizations for the purposes of this contract. If you use the software free of charge, you have no right to printed documentation, support services, or telephone counseling.

You are free:

the software on a single computer use;

the software on a second computer to use, if at any time only one (1) copy of the software used;

use the software on a network, provided that for every person who has network access to the software, a licensed copy of the software was acquired;

Copy the software for archival purposes, provided that each copy contains all proprietary notices of the original version;

All programs are available without a protection key (dongle) as a demo version available. For the use of any or all programs

1.4 Copyright

Copyright 2012 \odot elrest Automation Systems GmbH corporation (is subsequently "elrest'). All rights are reserved.

All parts of the Software and the documentation are subject to the copyright. The software described in this manual must be only in the framework of the license terms will be used.

No part of the documentation and software may be in any form (print, photocopy, microfilm, or any other procedure) without the written permission of the company elrest Automation Systems GmbH reproduced, or using electronic systems be used, copied or reproduced. These are the in paragraphs 53 and 54 UrhG expressly does not affect exceptional cases referred.

All efforts have been made, the accuracy and completeness of the information contained in this documentation to ensure. Nevertheless, errors cannot be ruled out. The company elrest Automation Systems GmbH can no legal responsibility or any liability for any damage caused by the use of information from this manual or by the use of the program described in this documentation.

In this guide the product names mentioned herein are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective companies and are hereby acknowledged.

The information contained in this document are subject to change without notice and does not represent a commitment on the part elrest Automation Systems GmbH.

1.5 Updates

Tel: ++49 / (0) 7021 / 92025 - 0, Fax: - 29, Email: Vertrieb@elrest.de, Internet: http://www.elrest.de

If the SOFTWARE PRODUCT is marked as an update, you must have the appropriate license for a product that is of elrest as suitable for the update will be recognized, have, to the software product to be allowed to use. As an update a designated software-product replaces and/or supplements the product, which is the basis for the Update forms.

You are obliged to the resulting upgraded product only in accordance with the terms of the EULA to use.

If the SOFTWARE PRODUCT A Komponenten-Update is a package of software, to you as a single product has been licensed, you are only entitled to the SOFTWARE PRODUCT as an integral part of this single product package to use, and to transfer.

The SOFTWARE PRODUCT may not separated from the package on another computer to be used.

Do you have any questions about this agreement, please contact elrest Automation Systems GmbH, Leibnizstr. 10, 73230 Kirchheim,

tel: ++49 / (0) Item 7021 / 92025 - 0, fax: - 29, Email: Vertrieb@elrest.de , Internet: http://www.elrest.de

1.6 Manuals

Manuals of the individual program parts and tools in the PDF format of the data.



Program to open and print the manuals and other files in the PDF-format of the data.

1.7 Services

elrest offers services as agreed upon in conjunction with the SOFTWARE PRODUCT ("Services").

The service is governed by the provisions elrest and programs that the user guide, online documentation and / or others are described elrest materials provided, will be used.

Any supplemental software code provided to you is provided as part of the services available will be considered part of the SOFTWARE PRODUCT and subject to the terms and conditions of this EULA. elrest is entitled to the technical data you elrest as part of the services are available for business purposes, including product support and development to use.

elrest will not utilize such technical information in the strictest confidence in terms of data protection

1.8 Scope of supply

Included with eStudio includes: -

eStudio CD-ROM

- protection key (dongle), (not in demo version)

- description eStudio Quick Links

In addition, each individual agreement made after demonstration of corresponding sets including hardware and software from the sales department

1.9 Intended Use

The eStudio software is suitable for use in the field of regulation, control and automation technology. The possible applications ranging from residential and commercial applications to industrial applications. In all applications, especially when using inductive loads (motors and relays, etc.) to ensure that voltage peaks do not exceed the maximum input voltage of the inputs and outputs. Where necessary, external protective circuit components are installed

1.10 Warranty

A claim requires a professional installation and commissioning for the device after the valid assembly, commissioning and operating instructions for advance. The necessary assembly, commissioning and maintenance work may only will be carried out by competent and authorized persons .See our EULA provisions.

Manufacturers

Mark

elrest Automationssysteme GmbH

D-73230 Kirchheim unter Teck

Leibnizstraße 10

Phone: +49 (0) 7021/92025-0 Fax: +49 (0) 7021/92025-29



Country of origin

Federal Republic of Germany

1.11 Security policies and protective measures

This manual has been for trained and competent staff created. The qualification will be through the "European directives for machinery, Low Voltage and EMC" defined. The track and the assembly of the Visio assemblies must be at a voltage greater than the safety extra low voltage (SELV made only by a qualified electrician).

The national rules and valid safety regulations in each case are to be observed. Intervention and changes to the devices lead to the extinction of the warranty coverage.

In this manual will be used to highlight certain information different symbols are used. This receives the operators necessary instructions to the security and safety measures. At each occurrence of the icons must be read the associated note.



Indicates an imminent danger that can result in injury or property damage.



Indicates a potentially occurring hazard that can lead to personal injury or property damage



Identifies information that is easier to handle.



(* Comment * lines of code to CoDeSys) a: = a +1;

elrest Automation Systems GmbH does not under any circumstances, be liable or responsible for any damages that may arise as a result of the installation or use of equipment or accessory.

All examples and illustrations in this manual are intended only as an aid to understanding the text. For the correctness of the operations can not be guaranteed. elrest Automation GmbH assumes no responsibility for product application, which refers to the illustrated examples (eg eStudio demo).

Due to the large number of different possible applications of these devices you need to make adjustments for your particular application itself.

When circuit components should fail, appropriate safety devices to ensure that the connected peripherals are stopped.

Do not attempt to repair the units themselves visio or replace electrical parts. To do that, solely on the elrest Service Department. Contact You can contact the hotline elrest.

For the installation and use of local and national assemblies visio standards and regulations.

2 Installation

2.1 Overview of the eStudio versions



Note that projects are always upward compatible. This means you can load older projects to a newer eStudio environment, but never vice versa!

eStudio	CoDeSys	Firmware bzw. Runtime	Operating system	
V2.80	V 2.3.4.2	FW 1.53	μE	
V2.81	V 2.3.6.1	FW 1.54 / FW 1.55	μE	
V2.82	V 2.3.8.0	FW 1.72	μE	
V2.83	V 2.3.8.0	FW 1.90	μE und CE	
V2.91	V2.3.9.35	Runtime 2.20x	μE und CE	



Tipp

Always use the correct eStudio and CoDeSys version to the appropriate firmware. Wrong Permuting can lead to unpredictable errors.

2.1.1 Upgrading from previous versions eStudio

You can keep your previous installation by agreeing to this question during the installation. With the release switch, you can edit existing projects so without further conversion

Existing projects can take over the project management by "importing".

In the chapter <u>"What's New"</u> for an overview



At a conversion of projects might be needed reworking.

So you save your projects before you can convert these projects.

The texts used in V2.8x be the first import in eStudio automatically converted to multibyte / Unicode.

2.2 Installation of eStudio



The installation must be carried out with the administrator right

This section contains the basic instructions for installing eStudio.

All files on the CD eStudio are compressed, so you can not copy them easily onto your hard disk.

Be installed prior to installing the operating system must already eStudio

The installation of the eStudio largely runs fully automatically.

Ausführe	en de la companya de	<u>?</u> ×
2	Geben Sie den Namen eines Programms, Ordners, Dokuments oder einer Internetressource an.	
Öffnen:	d:\Disk1\Setup.exe	-
	OK Abbrechen Durchsuche	en

Insert the CD into your CD-ROM eStudio drive.

In your PC, the option "autostart" is activated, the installation will start automatically after closing the CD-ROM drive.

If this is not the case, then select Run from the Windows Start menu under the menu item and then take the field

Open:> drive letter: \ Disk1 \ Setup.exe.

for example: "D: \ Disk1 \ Setup.exe".

Note: To install you need the administrator rights!

Wählen Sie eine Setup-Sprache aus 🛛 🗙				
16	Wählen Sie die Sprache dieser Installation aus der unten aufgeführten Auswahl aus.			
	Deutsch			
	ОК АЬ	brechen		
InstallSh	hield Wizard			
eStudio Setup bereitet den InstallShield® Assistenten vor, der Sie durch den Rest der Installation führen wird. Bitte warten.				
		Abbrechen		

Choose the language of this installation.

The program prepares the PC is now available for automatic installation.

Frage			X
?	Auf Ihrem Rechner ist bere Soll diese beibehalten werd	its eine Version ' Ien?	von eStudio installiert.
	Ja	Nein	

If a version of eStudio is installed on your PC, you can choose whether you want to keep the existing version.

If you keep the existing version, you can switch between multiple installed versions of the installation of eStudio. Please use the version of the program change



After reading the **welcome** screen to confirm this with **"NEXT"**.

A window will open with the license agreement.

<u>Read the text in detail</u> and confirm your agreement with "Yes".

eStudio Setup
Zielpfad wählen Wählen Sie den Ordner aus, in den das Programm installiert werden soll.
Setup installiert eStudio in den folgenden Ordner.
Klicken Sie auf Weiter', um in diesen Ordner zu installieren. Um in einen anderen Ordner zu installieren, klicken Sie auf Durchsuchen' und wählen Sie einen anderen Ordner.
Zielordner C.\ElaSoft Durchsuchen
<zurück weiter=""> Abbrechen</zurück>

Choosing the installation path

In the next window can now be selected, the installation path for the programs.

By default, the software "eStudio" on drive **C: \ ElaSoft**. You can also install eStudio any other drive on your choice.

Choose a different installation path via "Browse" button

After you finish the settings, confirm with "Next".



Selection of programs to install

In this window, the programs can be selected to be installed.

All selected programs are installed in the port.

If only a part of the programs are installed so you remove the marking hook by clicking the left mouse button.

The button **"Change"** you can program additional items such as Select a demo examples for installation

After you finish the settings, confirm with "Next".

Setting Startup and Program Group

In the selection of **start menu (project management)** is in the installation the Estudio project management included in the Windows above.

In the selection of auto boot is in the installation the estudio project management included in the Windows startup menu and starts automatically after each Windows reboot.

In the selection of **shortcut on desktop**, the installer places a eStudio folder on the Windows interface.

Once you have made all the settings, confirm this with "Next".

eStudio Setup
Kopiervorgang starten Einstellungen vor dem Kopieren überprüfen.
Zum Kopieren der Programmdateien sind genügend Informationen vorhanden. Klicken Sie auf Zurück, wenn Sie die Einstellungen überprüfen oder ändern möchten. Wenn Sie mit den Einstellungen zufrieden sind klicken Sie auf Werter, um die Dateien zu kopieren.
Aktuelle Einstellungen:
Komponenten ElaSoft Treiber/Sonstiges eStudio Tools CanHex Schreiber Eichen Gesamhilfe Democ/Beispiele Bibliotheken
InstallShield
<zurück weiter=""> Abbrechen</zurück>

< Zurück Weiter > Abbrechen

In the following window will be the information you have entered so far listed once again.

With "**Next**" the settings can be confirmed. If a correction should be necessary, you can use "**Back**" in the above window will be released.

It was with **"Next"** is confirmed, begins the installation of the selected software components.

Installation: Kopiere Treiber			
3%			
At	brechen		
Frage			
2 Michine Ge CeDeCor	Circularat Characterizations in the Barrier 2		
Mochten sie Cobesys	für eirest-steuerungssysteme installieren?		
la	Nein		
Informationen	×		
Bitte schliessen	Sie alle laufenden Applikationen		
bevor Sie die Ii	nstallation fortsetzen !		
	ОК		
InstallShield Wizard	X		
Smart			
Software Solutions CoDes	mmen bei InstallShield Wizard für Sys for Automation Alliance		
InstallS	hield(r) Wizard installiert CoDeSys for Automation		
fortzufa	hren.		
Nitrest And			
105 January			
the second second			
ranse a mart			
the state			
	<zurijick weiter=""> Abbrechen</zurijick>		
InstallShield Wizard			
Zielpfad wählen Wählen Sie den Zielordner aus, in den das Programm installiert werden soll.			
Setup installiert CoDeSys for Automation Alliance in den folgenden Drdner. Die einzelnen Komponenten werden in einen jeweitigen Ubbarecher installiert			
Ure einzeinen Komponenten werden in einen jeweiligen Unterordner installiert. Klicken Sie auf 'Weiter', um in diesen Ordner zu installieren. Um in einen anderen Ordner zu installieren, klicken Sie auf 'Durchsuchen' und wählen Sie einen anderen Ordner.			
-Zielordner-	Durcheuchan		
L:\rrogramme\35 Software	Duichsuchen		
InstallShield	Zuriak Mahara Akkurak		
	< Zuruck Weiter > Abbrechen		

The program group and icons will be created automatically and the setup program is then terminated.

For the installation of CoDeSys confirm the start of the installation process.

To exit the software installation: see "The installation is complete" on the following pages.

Please note the information.

After you the **welcome** window confirm you have read this with "**Next**".

Selecting the target

Drive by default, the code Sys-Software on drive C: \Program Files\ 3S software installed.

Select a different installation path with the button **"BROWSE** ... ".

After you have made the setting, confirm this with "Next"



Selection of components to be installed

In this fixed can now be selected the programs, which are to be installed.

All of the selected programs will be installed in the track. All programs will be installed by default.

If only a part of the programs are installed, to remove the mark by a click of the mouse with the left button of the mouse in the components are not desired.

Once you have made all the settings, confirm this with "Next".

Here you enter your desired program folder. By default, the program folder " **3S Software** " created. After you have named the program folder, confirm with "**Next**"

Konfigurationsübersicht		Atbrechen	[mar 037]
Bitte überprüfen Sie die vorgenommenen Eins	tellungen.	58	and the second s
Ausgewählte Komponenten: CoDeSys V2.3.4.2 CoDeSys Basiskomponenten CoDeSys Gateway Server V2.3.4.0 CoDeSys OPC Server V2.3.9.0 35 Licensing Manager V1.1.2.1 Zielverzeichnis: Cr.VProgramme\35 Software Programmordner: 35 Software			×
र			V V

•

<Zurück Weiter > Abbrechen

In the following window will be the information you have entered so far listed once again.

If a correction should be necessary, you can use **"back**" in the above window will be back.

With **"Next"** the settings can be confirmed. The installation of the selected software components is started.

Adobe AntiVir - Personal Edition

Antostat BoschRexrothPlc_V1.0 ElaSoft eStudio Microsoft Office Microsoft Office QuickTime QuickTime 3.0



The program is now installed and the program group, as well as the icons will be created.

👹 Microsoft XML Parser Setur	×			
	Welcome to the Microsoft XML Parser Setup Wizard The Setup Wizard will install Microsoft XML Parser on your computer. Click Next to continue or Cancel to exit the Setup Wizard.			
	<back cancel<="" th=""></back>			
Wicrosoft XML Parser Licen	se Agreement			
End-User License Agreeme	nt 🔬			
Please read the following lice	nse agreement carefully			
MICROSOFT CORPORATION END-USER LICENSE AGREEMENT				
IMPORTANT-READ CAREFULLY: This End-User License Agreement ("EULA") is a legal agreement between you (either an individual or a single entity) and Microsoft Corporation for the Microsoft software product identified above, which includes computer software and may include associated media. mrinted				
○ I do not accept the terms	in the License Agreement			
	< Back Next > Cancel			
🙀 Microsoft XML Parser Setup	×			
Customer Information				
Please enter your customer in	nformation			
∐ser Name: User Organization: Organization				

<<u>B</u>ack <u>N</u>ext > Cancel

At new computerized equipment should be Microsoft XML Parser already be installed. Otherwise proceed as follows: Installation of the Microsoft XML Parser I

Install the Microsoft XML Parser using confirmation by "**Next >** ".

End-User License Agreement

Please read the text in detail and confirm your agreement

Customer Information

Please enter your user and company name.



Start the installation

with "Install" the settings can be confirmed. If a correction should be necessary, with "< Back" in the above window will be released.

After the confirmation with **"Install"**, the installation of the selected software components begins.

Completion of the installation of the Microsoft XML Parser

Confirm the completion of the installation of the Microsoft XML Parser with **"Finish".**

Completion of the installation of CoDeSys

Confirm the completion of the installation of CoDeSys with **"Finish".**

If necessary, you can read the readme file by estudio.

If necessary, you can get information via "quick links" (overview of the news) to estudio.



Restart your computer now.

Please confirm with "Finish".

A proper function of the installed programs is carried out after the restart of your PC.

2.3 Additional installations to estudio

2.3.1 C-Compiler

C-compiler are the subject of eStudio.

The uses of ElaSim compilers are required. These are in addition to the compiler "GNU 16X Compiler V3.2" is not in this software package contains.

The installation of the compiler please run as described in the compiler manual through.

Prozessor

C-Compiler Version

Keil 8051-C-Compiler V4.01

8-bit CPU (80535-Prozessor)

32-bit CPU **Xscale Prozessor**

Simulation (Win9x/NT) Microsoft eMbedded Visual C++ Copyright © 1985-2004 Microsoft Corpo

Microsoft Visual Studio C/C++ /C# 2008 or more

oft Corporation

2.4 De-Install eStudio

To an ElaSoft software product to remove from your computer, for Windows, click **Start**. Go to the menu item **Settings** and open the folder in the Control Panel folder **Software**.

In the field select **Add/Remove** to remove the ElaSoft software product from the list and click "**Remove**". This will now, with all paths and icons deleted

3 Overview of the Software Products

3.1 estudio project management



Project management

The project management is the configuration center of eStudio.

Connections to all common fieldbuses and PC interfaces

for I / O signals are organized:

- interface for all common fieldbuses
- Online display
- Foreign Language Management

Document Block		Gen, WCDON, SCIP SHOP J PCI Janel Trender T-australia Martin De Color J Metta Andrea D Matta Color J Metta Andrea D	
Indiadalay Indiadalay Indiadalay India Indin India	0 80 8 8 1 0 1 1 1 1	Generation (Statistical) Probat Internet constant region (Statistical) Statistical (Statistical) Statistical (Statistical) Statistical (Statistical)	
Sectors Sectors		Generation, extenses (robert Interfere) - searches - second robert Generation - searches - second robert Generation - searches - searches Mail: conj. : searches	
		Con and Control (2014) in the off of the off	
		Gen, MCCCAR, GILD SND J. 70 Juni, 1955 Mar J. Handrids - Marca II. Sta Golg (PP CNL - Market Shi Scill: 2042) 1960 Aut 2011 (Market Shi Scill: 2042) 1960 Aut 2011 (Market Shi	
20 Text 20 4 10 10 4 10 10 4 10 10 4 10 10 5 10 10 6 10 10 5 10 10 6 10 10 6 10 10 6 10 10 6 10 10 7 10 10 6 10 10 7 10 10 6 10 10 7 10 10 7 10 10 7 10 10 7 10 10 10 10 10	R 1 U 1 1 1 1	(24), 97(1)(24), 01(1934)(8), 70(14), 11(14)(24), 70(24), 70(14), 70(14), 11(14)(24), 70(24), 70(14), 70(14), 70(25), 70(14), 70(14), 70(14), 70(14), 70(14), 70(25), 70(14),	
	10 U 3 3 4 10	Securitized States (M) Polied Transformation (M) Polied Objection (M) Polied (M) March (M) Polied (M) March (M) Polied (M) March (M)	
**** ***** ******* ************************************	4 1 1 1	Gen, WCLCAR, GLED SAND, J. 70 Juni, 11 Hond Louise Teles, Yang Kata Gong, MY Cole, Yorkina, Like Multi, CDL, T. MAR and Hist, Weshing, B. Multi, CDL, T. MAR and Hist, Weshing, B.	
Process P	1.1.4.8	Con, MYCLOW, CALEBRARD, YOSHUT, 1996;MY HONOYAN, WANNIN YA MA CON, MYCHI J MYMAN, CALEBRA MICH, CON, Y MYMAN, CHIN, YMANAM, D MICH, CON, Y MYMAN, CHIN, YMANAM, D	
A Definition of the second sec	3 4 1	11-FAULT-Salation Michael N. Ko. Conguerosci. Homosci. 2019 Michael Struct. (Michael Michael N. Mic	
Conserve of Andree C	1	ODE PERSON INTERACTION NUCLEAR TRANSPORT	
2000 Prove @ Sec.4 @ Sec.4 @ Sec.5 @ Sec.5 @ Sec.5 @ Sec.6 @ Sec.6	1	NO DU Milacini, Malaci	
© Decid © PAS © PAS © PAS © Paramet → Prime Prim Prim Prim Prim Prim Prim Prim Prim Prim Prim Prim Prim			
(2) 2014 2) 2) 2 2017 2) 2) 2 2017 2) 2017			
(g) (a, 1, 1) (g) (a, 1) (g) (a, a) (g) (a, a) (g) (a, b) (g)			
1 Grower Cran Constant Cran Constant C			
A Description (F) Inter (B) relation (B)			
Control Cont Cont Control Con			
Par Contractor			
C Strengton			
et han			
(Black)			
ti 😂 Ferraret			
2 PR Form			
- D Meter			
E COMPLETING			
E CONLC 10			
Patri			
(B loss)			
T CI Encager			
Data P			
That Property			



3.2 eStudio PLC programming



CoDeSys 2.3 - PLC programming according to IEC 61131-3

PLC system for vendor-independent programming to IEC 61131-3. The PLC programs can run on both the PC and on the controller.

The PLC system has very powerful features for programming and diagnostics. It works fast and has wide system boundaries

Graphic tool for PLC programming according to IEC 61131-3 programming

- Diagnostics
- System-wide limits
- All defined programming languages AWL, FUP, KOP, AS, ST and
- Structured programming with modular program management
- Source code stored in the target system
- Criteria Analysis
- Converting between languages
- incremental compilation
- All common data types, structures, arrays, and multidimensional
- Programming support: Auto format, autodeclare cross-reference, Search / Replace
- Project convenient comparison
- Conversion Program in Foreign Languages
- Online connections with PLC run-time system with TCP / IP or via fieldbus
- "Change Online" from the new variables, instances, programs during the term with maximum data retention



- Online monitoring of variables in variable list, watch windows, editors
- Online Status and Power Flow (accumulator) of programs and agencies
- triggering, forcing and setting variables
- Single cycle, breakpoints
- Step in, step over
- Displays the current call stack
- Watch list shows a selection of variables
- Trace function records variables on cycleaccurate
- Online management of all variable names and structures throughout the system
- Communication gateway to access other applications on the controller or the remote control
- Integrated Visualization
- Library management to create and manage custom libraries



With the GDrvUdp.dll, the UDP - communications are made to the controller. If you do not want the output window, you can use the key to the "verbose" = set "0".



3.3 eStudio HMI programming



ElaDesign - graphical programming MMI



Development tool for the design and control implementation of menu structures.

Support integrated drag and drop elements and on-line simulation on the PC

- Graphic tool for MMI Programming
- Cooperative multitasking operating system
- Integrated Simulation Environment
- Open concept driver
- Resource Workshop
- Flexible connectivity target
- Variety of Controls
- Built-in font editor
- Touch-Support
- Menus
- Password Function
- Event-/alarm lists
- Data Logger
- Multi-function Windows
- Voice Switching

Designed specifically for the programming of the MMI devices developed ElaDesign eStudio is part of the programming tools.

It is used for easy and comfortable creation mask. and the combination of menus and buttons on the control and monitoring devices

3.4 eStudio WEB Server



Web-Server

Integrated web server for visualization and configuration via a Web browser with support from:

Layer 7 protocols

FTP

HTTP

XML

Layer 7 protocols

FTP, HTTP, SMTP, POP3 (Post Office Protocol 3 for abbreviation, the standardized procedures for receiving e-mails. The POP3 server stores the messages until the user retrieves it with a so-called POP3 client.) UDP -EEP1.0, Modbus-TCP.

FTP – Support Using

Using the FTP - services can the data by Drag&Drop be replaced with the target system.



3.5 Tools

Tools

and the second

Tools for debugging calibration version checker front editor download tool

graphical data logging

3.5.1 Versionchecker

Version control allows you to diagnose errors that occur in your system if necessary.

This program will list all your program components that are needed to error-free operation of eStudio.

3.5.2 FontEditor

The Font Editor is a tool that allows the user of eStudio to create own fonts.



an resistanti and and the	arrester in series	and the	and the second	and the second second			Albert 2
Nane	Dubelyerson	Produktversion	Typ	Deturo	UPYZWE	Pfad	
ATL.OLL	*******	*******		05.12.1999	22:00	C/(CleSoft)/CStuBo/A7LDU	
AVAGGRES DU.	*******			05.12.1999	23:00	C:EleSchieStudio(AttAS/RES.SL)	
ANFORMS.DLL	10000000	*******		28.05.2001	09-05	C-(ElefoRt(Elevier), ACFORME DLL	
ANURED DLL				05.12.1999	23:00	C/ElidoRESINAU/ARANDO.561	
*) IMPLITION	2.71.0	2.71.0		15.05.2000	1042	CripteSoft(RIV)(MPL8LOLL	
CAN, CELE, D.L.	2.72.0	2.72.0		26.07.2002	12:36	CriffieSoft(Device)CBN_C515.DLL	
CAN HELEDE	2.72.0	2.72.0		21.67.2062	14.22	C/EleSoftipen_heu/(CAN_HEILENE	
CAN HEXD. DUL	2.72.0	2,72.0		28.03.2002	15:35	Criptefeltigan_herijCAN_HERD.DEL	
CANLINEST DUL	2 72.0	2.72.0		26.03.2002	15:35	CriffieleRigan_switchtchRift Dis	
CAN MEEP OLL	2.72.0	2.72.0		26.07.2062	12:35	Critical Review DAY, MIGR. DL	
CAN MEISOLL	2.72.0	2.72.0		26.07.2062	12:35	CriffleSoft/Device/CAN_MS15.DLL	
CON MORE OLL	2.72.0	2.72.0		26.07.2002	12:25	CripteSoft/Device/C/W_M968.DLL	
CAN INFCE.DLL	2.72.0	2.72.0		21.13.2002	12:13	C/plassifipriver)CAN_MPC2.04L	
CAN MPC3.DU	2.72.0	2.72.0		21.13.2002	1214	C/ElefoRt/prveri/CAIL_MPC3.DUL	
CANNON DE	2.72.0	2.72.0		24.01.2012	18:45	C/(Dation()04/CAMPON EXE	
10.90 M CP.014	2.72.0	2.72.0		06.02.2002	10:13	C/glassifiprvetcom_p#.bu.	
* COMC/8.32.0U1	5.64	5.00.2920.0000		10.12.1999	12:00	C:\WINITISystem32\COMCTL32.0LL	
DOWNLOAD ETE	2.72.0	2.72.0		12.08.2002	12:24	C/(Das-HURMOOWLOAD DE	
STOREN DUL	2.71.0	2.71.0		24.05.2000	11:37	C/ENSURIABILITORIN DKL	
STORNER B	2.73.0	2.73.0		30.13.2002	13:35	C/Elddt/Edw/ED/ENDE	
SIDOHRO.DU	2.72.0	2.79.0		. 90.13.2002	1245	C/Elabert/Edward/ESO-EMILOU	
ELAC.EVE	2.72.0	2.72.0		22.05.2062	06:30	Cripteroft@legraph@migtuec.ext	
ARALESE .	2.72.0	2.72.0		22.05.2062	06:35	C:(Elefoft)(Elegraph(En)(ELALE))E	
* ELACHOLL DUL				07.06.2002	07:22	C/(Dus-ANNIN/ILACIONOL.	
ELACONTROLS DU.	2.72.0	2.72.0		22.11.2002	10:40	C/glasoft/gstubo/gLACONTROLS.DLL	
ELACONTROLSET2	2.73.0	2.73.0		16.12.2002	15:52	C/Elefoft/EStubi/ELACONTROL/ISET2.DU.	
BLACOLGOL	2.72.0	2.73.0		12.12.2062	15:00	C/ENS-MERANDACCOLOL	
CELACOLG.ENG	2.72.0	2.72.0		06.05.2062	12:05	C/Electricity/ELACORG.ENG	
STRACFED.DU	2.73.0	2,73.0		16.12.2002	12:55	C:\triasoftigsWgLAD#30.EUL	
4							- >6



3.5.3 Download

The Download tool is designed for convenient transfer of programs (user and firmware) from the PC to the module and vice versa.

As of v1.48 firmware and user product, it is possible to store the history of the last 8 userware downloads in the module. It can be traced: Who, when and what programs have been delegated to the module.

差 Download - U	pload		
Verbindung			
ETHERNET, L	OCALHOST,	Ändern	
Modul			
Nummer: N	192 - Seriennr.: 2084903	Suchen	Treiber
Userware			
Label	80167-1.5x	Upload	Vergleich 💌
Datum/Uhrzeit:	Jul 28 2011 15:59:44	Download	Historie
Datei:	T:\01-T\03-Support\01-Firmware\fr	ed/V2.00 Release	W2.00-10
Status:	Die UW auf dem Gerät entspricht de	er ausgewählten D	atei. (CRC OK)
Firmware			
Derivat:	CM110		
Version:	2.00		
			Beenden
Verbindung zum	Gerät		•

4 **Project management in eStudio**

4.1 Overview

In the management of the projects are global all projects for eStudio created and configured.

4.1.1 Start of the project management



The project management is in the folder ElaSoft eStudio started.types of project management

After the start project management is the window open. From this window, you can all of the features of estudio be configured and started.

The window consists of:

- Menu bar
- Toolbar
- Project tree
- Project view window

4.1.2 Menu bar of the Project Management

The menu bar contains five pull-down menus. The call of the individual menus by selecting with the mouse or by typing **Alt + <underlined to letter>.**

4.1.2.1 File menu

New	Create a new object		
Print	Printing the Project View window		
Print Preview	Preview of the printout		
Printer Setup	. Selecting and configuring the printer		

4.1.2.2 Edit menu

Change	Change the selected object
Delete	Delete the selected objects
Cut	Adds the selected objects to the clipboard and deletes it.
Kopieren	Fügt die markierten Objekte in die Zwischenablage ein.
Paste	Pastes the objects from the clipboard at the selected location
Select all	Select all objects in the project view window.
Invert Selection	Invert Selection in the project view window

4.1.2.3 View menu

Toolbar	Hides the toolbar on or off
Status Bar	Hides the status bar on or off.
Share	Setting the split ratio between the project tree window and viewport project
Large Icons	Shows the objects in the project view window with large icons
Small Icons	Shows the objects in the project view window with small icons
List	Shows the objects in the project view window in list form.
Details	Displays additional information about the objects in the project view window.
Update	Updates the content of the project tree window and viewport project.

4.1.2.4 Menu options

Setting	Changing the program settings.
Version Control	Displays the current versions of the use of eStudio *. Exe and *. DLL files.
Language selection	Selection several languages for the program to be used
Dongle configuration	shows how the connected dongle is configured
Switching	Switches between different e Studio versions

4.1.2.5 Menu help

Overview	opens help to eStudio
Info about project	Displays program information
management	

4.1.3 The project management toolbar

Ы	
	Insert new object
ž	Cut
Þ	Сору
B	Insert
<u>5</u>	Print the project view window
<u>A</u>	Sideview
<u>?</u>	Show product information
<u>ם</u>	Display mode of the project view window: large icons
8- 8- 8-	Display mode of the project view window: small icons
5-5- 5-5- 5-5- 5-5-	Display mode of the project view window: list:
	Display mode of the project view window: details
Z	Link to homepage elrest: <u>www.elrest.de</u>

4.2 Project tree

In the project tree, the projects and related equipment, data points, resources, etc. are created and displayed.

Projektverwaltung eStudio		
Datei Bearbeiten Ansicht Optionen Hilfe		
	- 🟥 🎹 🗾	
🗄 📄 DemoKommunikationRTUModbus 🔳	Name 🗸	
🗄 📄 DemoKommunikationWago	Datenpunkte	
⊕ DemoKommunikationWago_fredP8:		
🗄 💼 DemoLichtschalter	Ressourcen	
DemoLichtschalterCAN	_	
E-DemoMenue		
DemoNetzwerkvariablen		
E DemoSoap		
DemoWebVisualisierung		
E- Mein Projekt		
- Geraet1		
Programme		
Bitmaps		
F& Fonts		
Kalender		
t - ₽ Masken		
Menüs		
🕀 🛃 Rezeptdefinitionen		
abig Texte		
Demails	1	
Dereic		

The project has a hierarchical tree.

The top level contains the generated projects.

In the next level, the individual devices that are assigned to a project are listed.

In the next level have folders for belonging to a device programs, data points and resources.

In all lower levels, the individual data points, resources and programs to be configured.

By clicking on the objects with the right mouse button in each level context-sensitive menus appear. About these can all be performed on the selected object possible operations

project level

- device-level
- data point, program, resource level
- configuration level
4.2.1 Project view window

The project view window displays the objects that are one level lower than the selected object in the project tree.

Depending on the type of object several columns appear in the Project View window. These columns can be moved by drag and drop between them. By positioning the mouse over the right edge of a column head can pass through the column to be resized with the mouse. By clicking on the column header, a column can be declared for the active column. An active column is visible on an upwardly or downwardly facing triangle in the column header. The orientation of the triangle tells you whether the column is sorted in ascending or descending order. The caption of the column headings is largely self-explanatory

4.3 Projects

All devices in a system with the associated programs and files are combined into one project. These are listed in the top level of the tree project, the project level. Clicking on a project in the tree associated devices appear in the Project View window. Double-clicking a project or by clicking on the '+' sign next to the project, the devices appear in a lower level in the project tree. By clicking the right mouse button on a project will see a context-sensitive menu that contains all the functions that can be executed for a project.

4.3.1 Create a new project

Neues Objekt einfügen	×
Objekttyp:	ОК
Projekti Projektiertes Gerät	Abbrechen
1	

To create a new project, proceed as follows:

Select a project and select the **file** menu, **select new** ..., or click the right mouse button on a project and then select the menu item **new**

The following dialog will appear:

Select Project and click ok

- or

Click the right mouse button on a project and then select the menu item **new project**

Neues Projekt					
Bezeichnung:	Projekt 1]		
Pfad:	E:\Projekte	e283\Projekt	1		_
🔽 CoDeSys Date	enpunkte er:	zeugen			
🔽 COM Date	npunkte erz	eugen			
🗖 Checksum	me DP Ress	ourcenabglei	ich anleg	en	
🔲 Byte-Adres	sierung				
🔽 CoDeSys kon	forme Daten	punktnamen			
	ОК	Abbr	echen		

In the name field, enter the **name** of the project.

In the **Path** field, the path in which all of the data to be stored this project are to be laid down. The default is \projects\ here proposed.

Tip:

This setting can be on the program settings change.

CoDeSys data points:

Marker data points will be export and I/O data points for CoDeSys

Create COM data points:

generates data points from a network for CoDeSys.

Create checksum DP leveling:

For CoDeSys is automatically generated a data point. This data point includes a checksum of the resource. With the help of this data point can be used to check whether the CoDeSys program to the stored resource fits.

CoDeSys compliant data point name:

Generates a point name in CoDeSys convention (no spaces, special characters, ...)

Byte addressing

If this option is selected the CoDeSys variables are created with byte addressing.

After confirming with OK, a new project appears in the project tree, the Project Manager.

Suw about the library can be a review:

```
(* check the check sum of the resource inside your code *)
        a := a+1;
ST
        VAR
              psUW: POINTER TO sUW := 0;
              ressource: BOOL;
        END_VAR
        IF (NOT psUW) THEN
              psUW := UwGetStructPointer(0);
        ELSE
              IF (psUW^.nResourceChecksum = nCheckSumResource) THEN
                    ressource := TRUE;
              ELSE
                    ressource := FALSE;
              END IF
        END IF
```

4.3.2 Creating a copy of a project

To create a new project based on an existing project, follow these steps:

Neues Projekt		×
Bezeichnung:	Projekt 1	
Pfad:	C:\Projekte\Projekt 1	
CoDeSys Da CDM Dat Checksur CoDeSys ko	atenpunkte erzeugen tenpunkte erzeugen mme DP Ressourcenabgleich anlegen nforme Datenpunktnamen	
	OK Abbrechen	

Click the right mouse button on the project that you want to use as the basis for the new project. Select the menu item **new copy**.

It replicates the settings from the existing project. The project name and path automatically by appending,_<n>' created so that a unique name is always guaranteed.

If necessary, change the settings and click **OK**. A description of the settings, see the previous chapter.

4.3.3 Project settings

Einstellungen zu Projekt 'Mein F	Projekt'		×1
Allgemein Sprachen			
Sprache:			
∎Bulgarisch IZ Deutsch	1026 1031	Markieren Sie hier alle Sprachen, die auf das Zielsystem geladen werden sollen.	
		Ändem Entfernen	
Als Standard setzen		Hinzufügen	
		OK Abbrechen	

To change the settings of a project, select the project and select the **Edit** menu, select **Modify**, and click the right mouse button on the project and then select the menu item **Modify**

On the General page, you can change the name of the project later.

On the page **Languages** all currently languages are listed which will be used in the project. The checkmark in front of a language specifies whether all the texts in this language to the target system as a resource to be loaded. The default language (at the moment only in german language) can not be removed from the project and always will be loaded to the target system.

By pressing the button **Add** the project can be added a further language. To remove a language, select the language and press **Remove.** You can change with the name of a self-defined language change.

4.3.4 Deleting a project

To delete a project, select it and choose **Delete** from the **Edit menu** or click the right mouse button on the project and then select the **Delete** menu item.

After a query, whether you want to delete this project really is a second asks whether you want to delete all files. They remain the answer "no" to the data on your hard disk and you can resume later using the function in project management.

4.3.5 Importing a project

If for example a project removed for archiving purposes of the Project Manager and stored on another disk (CD, Zip Drive ...) is this project at a later date via the Import function added back into project management. Before importing the data must be copied back to disk.

Wählen Sie den Projektordner ? 🗙	To import a project, click the right mouse button on a project and then select the Import menu item. The following dialog will appear
DemofredP300 DemofredP300 DemoGraph DemoGraph DemoKommunikationESB	Choose the path where the project is located and click OK . A double click opens / closes a subpath.
	This function can also be projects that were created with an older version will be included in the project management. After a query, these data are converted to the current format.
OK Abbrechen	

4.3.6 Project Device

Configured devices are all devices that take place in a complex with CoDeSys ElaSim or programs, or are to be designed for those with ElaDesign masks.

The programs, and the required resources, and the data points (via the to values in their own or in another device can be accessed), are in the Project Management in three folders below

Programs Resources Data Points

Creating a configured device 4.3.7

Neues Objekt einfügen	To create a new project, proceed as follows:
Projekt Projektiertes Gerat	Select the project in the project tree that you want to add the device and select the File menu, select New , or click the right mouse button on the project and select New from the menu
	Highlight the entry Configured device and click OK
Neues Objekt einfügen	- or -
Ubjekttyp: DK Alarmdefinition Datenpunkt LelaGraph-Programm LelaSim-Programm	Select an existing device and select the File menu, select New , or click the right mouse button on an existing device and then select the menu item New
III Kalender ↓ Netzwerk S Projektiertes Gerät Ø Rezeptdefinition IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	Highlight the entry Configured device and click. OK .
PC-Verbindung	- or -
Widden Sie her de Verbindung, über die vom Entwicklungs/PC auf das Brisit zugegiften westen vol Netwenklicher: Parameter:	Click with the right-click on an existing device and then select the menu item New Device
Conche Weiters Abbenchen	Here you can select the interface over which the device during the development phase with the PC is connected to. In the combo box select the appropriate driver from network drivers. By clicking the

button next to the combo box can be opened by a dialog box the settings for the selected drivers can be made. For further information, please refer to the Help for the corresponding driver.

Click Next

Leratenformationen	Name:	Geraet1		10:	0
	Geräteat.	См100			
	Trober:	COMBO	-	Knolen	N190
	Parameter:	F:\Support	Projekte\sFW_sl	Jw/\Geraet1;192	168.5.198
Aufforung 320x240 Faiber: 256	RemotePanel	1290	2	PW-Version	>= 1.80 -
Digitale Eingange: 16 Digitale Ausgange: 16					

In the Name field, type a logical name for the device.

Select the type of device in the combobox used type of device from.

Select in the combo box Driver The Driver for the CPU used in the device. The button next to the combo box can be opened a dialog in the Select the network number of the device and can be more driver-specific settings can be made. For further information, please refer to the Help for the corresponding driver.



Abbrechen

The combobox RemotePanel can be operated if the device the RemotePanel-Funktionality supports. Here the type can be selected of the connected RemotePanels

In the combo **FW version** is to select the firmware version that resides on the device. This setting is used in order for example to generate a version compatible with the firmware resource.

If you are connected during the application of the device with the target hardware, you can browse through the **auto scan** button the connected network and select the appropriate device. Except for the name then all settings are set automatically.

Click on Finish

4.3.8 Change settings of a configured device



To the settings of a projected to change device, select the device and then select the **Edit menu**, select the entry **Modify** or click with the right mouse button on the device and then select the menu item **Modify**

On the **General** page you can change general settings, such as Name or device driver change.

On the page **PC-connection**, you can change the setting of the connection, with the you during the development phase are connected to the device.

For a more detailed description of the individual fields, see **Creating a projected device.**

4.3.9 Projected devices delete

To delete a configured device to select this and then select the **Edit** menu, select the **Delete** entry, or click with the right mouse button on the device and then select the **Delete** menu item.

After a query as to whether you really want to delete this device is the device from the Project Management and the associated files from the hard drive.



When you delete the files are in the Windows Recycle Bin. A device to restore accidentally deleted you highlight all the files in the folder **recycled**, the origin of the directory of the deleted product and select in the context-sensitive menu

Restore. If you then in the Project Management refresh the view, the device will be listed once again.

4.3.10 projected devices copy

You can device a configured within a project or copying from one project to another.

To do this, select the device you want to copy and select the *Edit* menu, select the entry **Copy**, or rightclick on the device and then select the **Copy** menu item.

Now select the project in the project tree, in which you want to copy the device and then select the **Edit** menu, click **Paste**, or right-click on the project and then select the menu item **Paste**.

4.3.11 Cosider at a Device Data Points

You can directly on the Projektbau the data points with a double-click Read

4.3.12 Start the Internet browser (Ethernet)

This will open an Internet Explorer automatically to accesses the home page of the device. This can run on web pages or also for example, the Visio Web. The program to be used can be set via the Options

4.3.13 FTP-start Browser (Ethernet network)

This will open a file explorer or Internet Explorer, the automatically a FTP-connection to the device. Here you can directly files and also firmware images will be copied.

The program to be used can be set on the options.

4.3.14 Start Telnet (Ethernet network)

This is a Telnet session to the device settings on the device to open to perform.

- Log in as user.
- It opens an operatingprompt on which commands can be entered.
- With "help" you will receive an overview of the most used commands (General).

For more information on the telnet settings, refer to the document Platform_XX_DE.pdf in the chapter Telnet.

4.3.15 Event Logger start

The tool enables alarms and events are read from the device and displayed.

EventLog	jger					×
Adresse: 🚺	92.168.5.199		•	S	Sprache: Deutsch 💌 🖬 😒	
Datum	Uhrzeit	Тур	Status	Klasse	Text	
19.12.2008	12:32:51	Α	G	84	Störung E-Filter 73K3	
19.12.2008	11:53:52	A	С	84	Störung E-Filter 73K3	
19.12.2008	11:53:49	A	G	12	Kein Unterdruck Brennkammer 66B1	
19.12.2008	11:53:49	A	G	84	Störung E-Filter 73K3	
19.12.2008	11:53:14	A	С	12	Kein Unterdruck Brennkammer 66B1	
19.12.2008	11:51:53	A	С	84	Störung E-Filter 73K3	
19.12.2008	11:51:50	A	С	84	Störung E-Filter 73K3	
19.12.2008	11:51:50	A	G	84	Störung E-Filter 73K3	
19.12.2008	11:51:47	A	G	21	Spannungsausfall	
19.12.2008	11:51:47	A	G	84	Störung E-Filter 73K3	
19.12.2008	11:51:11	A	С	21	Spannungsausfall	
19.12.2008	11:51:11	A	С	84	Störung E-Filter 73K3	
19.12.2008	11:50:35	A	G	84	Störung E-Filter 73K3	
19.12.2008	11:23:26	A	С	84	Störung E-Filter 73K3	
19.12.2008	11:23:23	A	G	84	Störung E-Filter 73K3	
19.12.2008	11:19:35	A	С	84	Störung E-Filter 73K3	
19.12.2008	11:19:05	A	G	84	Störung E-Filter 73K3	
19.12.2008	11:05:50	A	С	84	Störung E-Filter 73K3	
19.12.2008	11:05:47	E	A	84	Störung E-Filter 73K3	
19.12.2008	11:05:47	E	A	96	Leistungsbegrenzung AufgrundRauchgasventilator Begrenzung	
19.12.2008	11:05:47	E	A	12	Kein Unterdruck Brennkammer 66B1	
19.12.2008	11:05:47	E	A	19	Störung Analogeingang	
19.12.2008	11:05:47	Е	A	82	Rauchgastemperatur maximal 103R3	-1
19 12 2008	11.05.47	Δ	6	12	Kein Unterdruck Brennkammer 66B1	<u> </u>

After entering the IP address and clicking the Import button, the alarms and events can be downloaded from the device. In addition, the resource of the device is loaded

Through the combo **language** can be chosen to be displayed in the language of the texts. The language needs in the resource (the device) may be present.

In addition, an open event that is stored on the PC list. This requires (eventlist.bin) and the event list (resource.bin) the resource may be stored in a directory. The button can **open local files, the event** list will be selected.

The Type column specifies whether there are events (E), alarms (A) or messages (M) generated by the library Eventxx) is.

The button "Save" the table is stored in ASCII form.

With "Export to Excel", the table will be exported to Excel. "

4.3.16 Configuration of the inputs and outputs read



Determines the current configuration of the connected components and corresponds to the "Read Configuration" in the subdirectory data points

4.4 Programming

With eStudio devices with

IEC 61131-3 (CoDeSys) programs or

in the programming language C '(C / C + + / C # programs

be programmed. There is also the possibility of simple user interfaces to display and modify data points to generate graphical (HMI editor).

See Resource masks.

4.4.1 Programming in C/C++/C#

Alarmdefinition Bitmap Datenpunkt ElaGraph-Programm El ElaGraph-Programm Font Kalender Maske Maske Menü Menü Menü Projektiertes Gerät Projektiertes Gerät Projektiertes Gerät		Abbrechen
---	--	-----------

For a configured device can be created ElaSim program. ElaSim a program to create, follow these steps:

Select the device you want to add the ElaSim program in the project tree and select the **File** menu, select **New** ..., or click on the device with the right mouse button and select the menu item

New

Highlight the entry ElaSim program and confirm with OK.

Moduleinstellungen		×
Prozessor: Siemens 80515 Firmware: V1_30 💌	Otheken Target Compiler Optionen Target Optionen Simulation	
Verfügbar ob.c	Berutzt > b.o >> <	
OK Abbreche	 <u>ו</u>	

In this dialog, the CPU used, the firmware version, the required source files and libraries are set, and further information about compiler and code generation are **shown**. After confirming with OK, the ElaSim program is included in the project management.

Further information about creating and managing programs, see the chapter ElaSim ElaSim.

4.4.1.1 Download von C-Programs



ElaSim a program to load on the target system (download), click on this project or the project tree view window with the right mouse button and select the **Download** menu item.

CoDeSys CoDeSys programs are transferred directly from out on the target system

Here, once again displays information about the file to be transferred, and the interface used on the device to which the program will be loaded. By pressing the button to **start the download** process will start. This may vary depending on the size of the file transfer rate or interface, and selected take a few seconds to several minutes.

4.4.2 Programming mit CoDeSys



ПK

For a configured device can have multiple programs to be created CoDeSys. To create a CoDeSys program proceed as follows:

Select the device you want to add a CoDeSys program in the project tree and select the **File** menu, **select New** ..., or click on the device with the right mouse button and select the menu item **New**

Highlight the entry CoDeSys program and confirm with OK.

Enter the name of the new program and press **OK**. The CoDeSys program is now included in the **project management** and CoDeSys is started. The new program will be put into a folder **CoDeSys**-**Programme** which is located under the folder **programs**.

For more information on programming with CoDeSys, see the chapter "First step with CoDeSys."

4.4.2.1 CoDeSys network variables

Abbrechen





For each network variable list, the parameters must be set appropriately.

On the P300 page:

- The list "networkvariable"_P300_PC" have to be activated as reading
- The list should be.

⊙ Vor Übersetzen importieren ⊂ Vor Übersetzen exportieren

Thus the list of variables will be updated automatically

- The list "networkvariable"_PC_P300" have to be activated as letter.
- Select network settings please multicast. i.e. Class A : xxx.255.255.255 Class B : xxx.yyy.255.255 ClassC : xxx.yyy.zzz.255
- Each list must have a unique COB-ID

On the PC side :

 The list Netzwerkvariable_P300_PC" have to be activated as reading. The list must be

- A new variable list is thus generated automatically
- The list must be "Netzwerkvariable_PC_P300" be activated as a letter





In Online debugging these variables can be observed.

Please note Pointer unter the Performance Information in the chapter "Kommunikation_Ethernet



Neuer Bausteins OK Typ des Bausteins OK Programm Abbrechen Funktionsblock KOP Funktion FUP Rückgabetyp: AS © FC CFC

4.4.2.2 Pointer under CoDeSys

Pointer will be used only within:

- Program
- function block

Space in the target system 4.4.3

4.4.3.1 Space under µE



In the series with the operating system "Windows µE" the following development stages for space are available :



Codesize :

- 128kB Performance of the devices under the relevant chapter "Libraries""
- 256kB Performance of the devices under the relevant chapter "Libraries" without • OnlineChange

Global variable :

Listing of the applicable devices under the chapter "Libraries"

Code size 16#20000 = 128kByte

	Basis	_	Große	-	Bereich	
Code :	16#940000	_	16#20000			
Global :	16#930000		16#4000	pro Segment		
Memory :	16#824800	F Automaisch	16#8800		Ν.	
Input :	16#820000	- Automatisch	16#2100		\mathbf{X}	
Output :	16#822100	F Automotisch	16#2100			
Retain	16#824200	I Automatisch	16#600		1 -	
Große des	: gesamten Daten:	peichers 16#1000	0 Mount	ale Anzahl des Segr	ente globale: Date	Abbreck
Große des Isystem réguation	gesamten Daten Einstellungen 1. [hed-IT1/P	speichers: [16#1000	0 House	verinstellun Voreinstellun COM-Modules)	erste globales Date	Abbrec
Größe des Isystem réguation Selplatfor	gesamten Daten Einstellungen (friedit1/P) Speicherauftei	speichers: [16#1000 150/P200/P300 V2 3-1 kung [Allgemein] Net	0 Horr	Voteinstellun Voteinstellun COM-Modules)	erete globoles Dister	Abbreck
Große des Isystem ritiguation Selplattion	gesamten Daten Efnstellungen t. [red-IT1/P n Speicherauftei Basis	peichers: [16#1000 150/P200/P300 V2 3-1 Jung [Aligemein Net	0 Home	Voeinstellun Voeinstellun COM-Modules] slaierung	ente globaler Diste	Abbrech
lsystem riguation Selplettforr Code :	Efnstellungen (finstellungen (finstellungen Speicherautei Basis (168440000	peichers: 1681000	0 Home standard (BkByte dunktionen Visu Größe [168:40000	Voreinstellun Voreinstellun COM-Modules)	ente globale: D ate	Abbreck
lsystem régulation Selpletfor Code : Global :	Einstellungen i gesanten Daten Einstellungen i Speicherauftei Dasis 16#340000 16#340000	150/P200/P300 V2 31	0 Home standard (B&Byte dunktionen Visu Giöße [168:4000 168:4000	COM-Modules) COM-Modules) pro Segment	erete globales Disten a) <u>OK</u>	Abbreck
isystem riguation Selplattforr Code : Global : Memory :	Einstellungen in Speichersufte Basis 16#940000 16#924000 16#924000	150/P200/P300 V2 3-1 kng Algemein Net	0 Hours	Voteinstellun COM-Modules] akisierung pro Segment	a) OK	Abbreck
isystem riguation Septetfor Code : Global : Memory : Input :	Einstellungen i groonten Daten Einstellungen i Tred411/P n Speichersuftei Basis 16#340000 16#324000 15#820000 15#820000	150/P200/P300 V2 3-1 T50/P200/P300 V2 3-1 T50/P200/P300 V2 3-1 T And an and the second	0 Howe standard (Bit-Byte durktionen Visu Gröbe [16#4000 [16#8000 [16#8000 [16#8000	Vozeinstellun COM-Modules] alisierung pro Segment	entre globaler Distant α	Abbreck
isystem riguator Septetfor Code : Global : Memory : Input : Output :	gesonten Duten Efnstellungen imidelT1/P pasis 168340000 168420000 168820000 168822100	150/P200/P200 V2 31 ISO/P200/P200 V2 31 ISO/P200 V2 ISO/P200 V2 ISO/P200 V2 ISO/P200 V2 I	0 Howe	Voeinstellan COM-Modules akierung	Bereich	Abbreck



Code size 16#40000 = 256kByte, If online change has been disabled

•



- 256kB Listing of the applicable devices under the chapter "Libraries"
 - 512kB Listing of the applicable devices under the chapter "Libraries"

4.4.3.2 Space under CE



In the series with the operating system "Windows CE" the following memory configuration are available:



The free memory and flash memory limits the size of the CODESYS project

CoDeSvs



The free memory and flash memory (' \Flashdisk' etc.) of the destination directory limits the size of the resource

Ressourcen

4.5 Web-Files

Neues Objekt einfügen		×
Objekttyp:		ОК
Alarmdefinition Bitmap CoDeSys-Programm Datenpunkt ElaGraph-Programm Font Font Malender Maske		Abbrechen
Menü	•	
<mark>8.</mark> Projektverwaltung EStudio		
Datei Bearbeiten Ansicht Optionen Hife	T	
P300	Name	⊽ Geändert am
Soft State	 d.gif Index.htm p300c.GIF 	03.11.2003 21:49 21.11.2003 17:40 03.11.2003 18:14
Bereit	1	

All elrest devices with Ethernet Port include a web server.

All of these resources can be managed in the Device Tree "[Project] \ [device] \web".

The files can be edited in the project management and loaded onto the device.

HTML-pages can be created and edited. The HTML editor can be modified via " options-settings -programs-HTML"

4.6 Ressourcen



Various data are summarized as resources in eStudio, They are used by ElaSim or Code Sys-program or ElaDesign. Mostly for a graphical display on the control panel

To create a new resource, mark the **Resources folder**, select the entry "new" in the **File** menu, or click on the folder with the right mouse button and select the menu item **New**

Select the desired resource type and click **OK**.

For more information, see the chapter of the respective ressource typs.

4.6.1 Alarm Definitions

Alarmdefinitio	n		×
Тур:	Alarm (Quittierung erforderlich)		
Datenpunkt:	Geraet1_DPBit1	🔲 Indiziert	
		Rel. Offset:	
Klasse:	T		
Text:	Test		
Kennworteber	ne für Quittierung: 0 📑		
🔲 Kein Ereig	nis bei Gehend		
OK	Abbrechen		

With alarm and event lists you can record the condition of binary data points.

Alarm definitions are listed in the project management folder: **alarm definitions**

The used data point, the alarm type, the class and the assigned text is displayed as information at the alarm definition display

To change an alarm definition, double-click in the project view window on the appropriate line.

There are two types of alarm definitions:

- actual alarms
- events

At the later display in ElaDesign can only be displayed in separate lists (Control in the mask).

Alarms can/ have to be acknowledged by the user so that they will be removed from the list.

If an alarm or event occurs, generates a corresponding entry in the list.

Select the data point that should be monitored. This must be a bit data point. Select a class to set the alarm or event continues to assign a group. This group is for information only in the ad.

A later be typed text appears in the list. Multi-line texts by typing \ **n** at the point of the desired line breaks are generated.

The password level of acknowledgment is required only for alarms. If it is confirmed, all entries are removed, which represent the level of the user, or of low priority are.

At events, you can also define whether or not to be going for the event no entry.

4.6.2 bitmaps

Bitmaps are listed in the Project Management folder **bitmaps**. If the folder is selected in the project tree **bitmaps**, all bitmaps are listed, which are located in the <Project \ <device name> \ bitmaps. To add a bitmap that was created with any drawing program, in a project, **you must** be copied to it only in this directory

If the bitmap used in the project, appears in the column **ID** is a unique number assigned by the system.

To change a bitmap, you double **click** in the project view window on the appropriate line. The bitmap is then opened with the selected program in the program settings.

Each bitmap can be assigned a unique logical ID given free. The resulting bitmap can be accessed from a program of ElaSim. These log ID can be assigned when creating the bitmap. In order to subsequently assign a bitmap a log ID, click with the right mouse button in the Project View window on the appropriate line and then select **change Log ID** or double-click on that line to the **log id** column.

4.6.3 Fonts

Fonts are listed in the project management in the **Fonts** folder. If the **Fonts** folder selected in the project tree, all the fonts (. And FNT. TTF) listed, which are located in the <Project \ <name of device> \ fonts and all TrueType fonts (. TTF), the device supports the standard and already located in the directory <Project \ <name of device > \ hardware.

The TrueType fonts to a device are supported by default defined in the file hardware.xml off button

```
<Device ver="1.80">¶
<Unicode>1</Unicode>¶
<Fonts>¶
<FileName>cour.ttf</FileName>¶
<FileName>symbol.ttf</FileName>¶
<FileName>tahoma.ttf</FileName>¶
<FileName>times.ttf</FileName>¶
<FileName>wingding.ttf</FileName>¶
</Fonts>¶
</Device>¶
```

TrueType fonts are supported until there from eStudio version 2.83 and runtime version 1.80

The font used in the project, appears in the column **ID** is a unique number assigned by the system.

To change a FNT font, double-click the project view window on the appropriate line. The font is opened then with the selected program in the program settings.

The same procedure can be used to provide a TTF font display. The font is then opened with the Microsoft Windows Font Viewer (fontview.exe).

Each font can be given a free unique logical ID which can be addressed from a ElaSim CoDeSys program or CoDeSysout program. These log ID can be assigned when creating the font. In order to subsequently the font allocate a log ID, make a right-click in the Project View window on the appropriate line and then select **Change Log ID** or double-click on that line to the **log id** column.

All TrueType fonts from the Fonts folder can be downloaded to the device

Name	∇	ID		Größe	Geändert am	Log. ID
🔁 Arial		4		359 KB	16.08.2004 19:14	
😰 Century	Neuer F	ont		162 KB	12.11.2002 10:26	
😨 Comic Sar	Neue Ki	opie		125 KB	16.08.2004 19:15	
😰 Courier N	Anzeige	en .		159 KB	28.02.2008 11:38	
F CP1251_6	Log. ID	ändern		4 KB	17.11.2006 10:37	
Fr CP1252_1	Löscher	ר		6 KB	19.01.2007 12:24	
Fr CP1252_1	Aussch	neiden		11 KB	19.01.2007 12:24	
Fr CP1252_1	Kopiere	n		5 KB	19.01.2007 12:23	
Fr CP1252_2	Einfüge	n		16 KB	19.01.2007 12:25	
Fr CP1252_7			_	5 KB	19.01.2007 12:21	
F [*] rcp1252_8	Downlo	ad		4 KB	19.01.2007 12:22	
_6 .						

Name	Δ	ID	G
😰 Wingdings			ε
😰 Times New R	oman		18
🔁 Tahoma 🛛	Neue	r Foot	12
😰 Symbol	Nerre	Konie	e
🗗 Rom8x6u.fi	Anzei	den	
F ROM8X6.FI	Log. 1	iD änder	
F Ela8x8u.fnt	Lösch	ien.	
FFELA8X8.FN	LODGI		
F ELA8X15.Fr	Ausso	:hneiden	
F Ela7x5.FNT	Kopie	ren	
🗗 Ela21x11.F	Einfü	gen	1
Free Ela13x7.FN	Down	load	1
Free Elatitx7.FN	DOWI	livau	

4.6.4 Masks

The designer of eStudio can create masks (window) for operator panel with various input and output elements. These can be used by CoDeSys or ElaSim programs or run directly without a program.

Masks are listed in the project management in the folder masks.

To change a mask you double-click to the appropriate line in the project view window. The mask is then opened with the program designers. For more information about creating and editing forms, see the chapter ElaDesign.

If you double-click the folder in the project tree masks or click on the '+' sign next to the folder, all masks are listed in the project tree. If you now select the project tree, a mask whose elements in the project view window will be listed.

4.6.5 Menus



With menus, you can open easily in ElaDesign certain masks.

Is assigned to make this possible even for non touchscreen enabled devices, you must define a key in the masks, the "Activate menu" as a key function. In the menu you can then use the cursor left / right / up / down procedures.

You can exit the menu by pressing Escape.

Menus are listed in the project management in the folder **menus**.

Menüpunk	t Eigenschaften	×
Тур:	Maske öffnen mit Schließen 💌	
<u>T</u> itel:	Alarme	Ē
Maske:	CONTROLS	•
Kennworte	bene: 0 🗾	
	OK Abbreche	n

Hintergrundbild	×
C Hintergrundbild Datei (BM	P):
🖲 Hintergrundfarbe 📗 🐣	_
Fensteranordnung X-Pos: 10 Y-Pos: 30 Breite: 300 Höhe: 194 Scrollhöhe: 194	Titelzeile Text: Hauptmaske Font: Ela13x7.FNT Vordergrundfarbe: Hintergrundfarbe: Datenpunkte für Schablone Diffset:
I✔ Verschiebbar I✔ Verkleinerbar I✔ Schließbar	Modul 📰 🗎
Öffnen bei Programmstart Focus bei Start	Menu: Menue_Maske1
OK Abbrechen	

As information in the menu display e.g. the name and a log.ID displayed. The log. ID can be used with CoDeSys on.

To change a menu, double-click the project view window on the appropriate line.

It opens a new tool with which a menu can be created.

Each mask can be assigned to a different menu. Only on that mask the menu items can be selected.

With this tool you can create sub-menus, and also insert hyphens.

The following actions are possible

- Mask open with close: If the user select this item, the new mask will be opened and the old mask will be closed. A specified level password allows this only with sufficient rights.
- Mask open without close: Then the old mask will not be closed, otherwise see above.
- End of program: only for CE-devices; ElaDesign will be completely closed
- Dividing line: a visual hyphen is inserted
- Submenu: further menu levels can be added horizontally and vertically (vertically: on the top level).

In each mask in the menu title, the font and font size can be selected.

4.6.6 Recipe definitions



Recipes are listed in the project management in the folder **recipe definitions.**

With recipes you can determine a number of data points, which should be written to the device or to be read from the device.

For each recipe definition, you can now create different recipes. They can detect different values to the data points of a recipedefinition



Choose the recipe definition in the project tree.

On the view page, you can create a new recipe with the right mouse button. This is initially empty.

For each data point (including arrays), you can enter a value.

The current recipe file is saved (download) or read (upload) on the device by the buttons **uploading and downloading**. The upload and download functions are executed directly from the context menu (right mouse button) of the recipes.

For devices without inserted or supported CF card, the menu item **"up/downloading of Compact Flash"** is to disable the context menu. Now being accessed to the internal file system of the device (path: \vfs), for which no separate path must be specified / can.

Rezept exportiern	?×
Speichern 🔁 V283_Beta5	▼ ← 🗈 💣 🎟 -
 ➡ Bitmaps ➡ Resource ➡ Fonts ➡ Hardware ➡ Keypads ➡ Menus ➡ recipe 	
Dateiname: Rezept.csv	Exportieren
Dateityp: CSV-Dateien (*.csv)	Abbrechen
Trennzeichen: 📜 🗖 Tabstop	<i></i>

With the button **Export** the recipe can be saved as a CSV file. In the resulting dialog box, a file name and the separator can be specified. The generated CSV file can be opened and edited in Excel. Such a file can be imported again with the button **Import**. The export and import functions can also be executed by clicking the right mouse button on the recipe.

Note that the first row (column name) and the first column (data item name) may not be changed.

N	licros	oft Excel	- Rezept1.csv				_ 🗆 🗵
	<u>D</u> atei	<u>B</u> earbei	ten <u>A</u> nsicht <u>B</u>	Einfügen Forma	a <u>t</u> E <u>x</u> tras Dat	e <u>n F</u> enster <u>?</u>	_ & ×
	🗳	8	۵ 🌮 👗 🛚	b 🛍 💅 🗵) + C4 + 🍓	Σ f _# 100	%•**€*
	IV3	-	= 0				
		A	В	С	D	E	F 📘
1	Date	npunkt	Wert 0	Wert 1	Wert 2	Wert 3	Wert 4
2	UBT	RecBate	100	200	300	400	500
3	UBT	RecCon	0	1	1	1	0
4	UBT	RecCon	400	400	400	400	400
5	UBT	RecCon	0	1	2	2	2
6	UBT	RecCon	1	2	3	4	5
7	UBT	RecCon	20	90	5	5	0
8	UBT	RecDate	07.11.2003	07.11.2003	07.11.2003	07.11.2003	07.11.2003
9	UBT	RecMix	3	3	3	3	3
10	UBT	RecMix	10	5	5	5	5
11	UBT	RecNan	Rezept 1	Rezept 2	Rezept 3	Rezept 4	Rezept 5
12	UBT	RecNo	1	2	3	4	5 🗸
		Rezept	1		1		•
Ber	eit					NF	

With the button **Write**: the values will be transmitted to the device.

With the button $\ensuremath{\textbf{Read}}$: the current values will be loaded on the device

These functions are also directly available by clicking the right mouse button on the prescription

4.6.7 Texts

Text resources serve in eStudio as the created projects to make multi-lingual in a simple way. All texts are stored in a table in which there is a column for each language. The texts are then accessed internally via a unique ID and the current language

Texts are listed in the project management folder **texts**. If the folder t**exts** are selected in the project tree then all texts in the chosen language for the project will be listed in the project windows list.

Einstellungen zu Projekt 'Demo	fredP300'	×
Allgemein Sprachen		1
Sprache:	1031	Markieren Sie hier alle
✓ Englisch (Irland) ✓ Französisch (Frankreich)	6153 1036	Sprachen, die auf das Zielsystem geladen werden sollen.
✓ Italienisch ✓ Tschechisch	1040	Ändern
Als Standard setzen		Hinzufügen
		OK Abbrechen
Tevt		X
Log. ID: 0		OK

Deutsch

Mein erster Text

Sprache:

Text

Abbrechen

٠

*

Ŧ

Texts can be managed in multiple languages, when in the project settings are added more languages in the project.

Select in your project: Change> languages

To change a text, double-click in the project view window on the appropriate line.

Log In ID field, you can assign your own unique number, which can be addressed from an ElaSim program. In the combo box **language** you can select the language and in the field **text** you can change the text. By pressing the key combination **Ctrl + Enter** you can start a new line in the text.

For not adjusting the desired language in this dialog, double-click in the project view window, in the appropriate column.

Einstellungen 🔀
Allgemein Programme ElaSim
Objekttyp: Keypad
Wählen Sie für jeden Objekttyp ein Programm mit dem dieser bearbeitet werden soll.
OK Abbrechen

In the menu **options-> settings->**registration card **programs**, object type, **keypad**, an application can be defined, you can enter text with which.

Default: this is the Windows Character Map. The application is invoked either by pressing the F2 key or by double clicking in the box. The text-entry box must have the focus.

Texte export	tiern	<u>?×</u>
Spejchern	🕞 Geraet1 💽 🖛 🗈 📸 🛛	
Bitmaps ElaGraph ElaGraph Fonts Hardware	Resource	
Datei <u>n</u> ame:	deutsch.txt	portieren
Datei <u>t</u> yp:	Text-Dateien (*.txt)	brechen
Spr <u>a</u> che:	Deutsch	1.

fexte exportiern ? × ▾ 🖛 🗈 🚽 🔽 Spejchern 🔂 UBT 📄 Bitmaps schreibei Rezept1.csv Fonts 칠 Hardware 🗋 Menus 🗋 recipe Resource Dateiname texte.csv Exportieren Abbrechen CSV-Dateien (*.csv) -Dateityp: Trennzeichen:

To save all texts of a language in a text file, for example, they translate to outside eStudio is project management in an export function available. To perform this you click the right mouse button on the folder **texts** and select the menu item **export** and then the record **a language.** It appears a dialog similar to a standard "**Save dialog**".

In addition, you can select the language, the texts are to be exported. Is in the foreign language no text is specified, automatically the text in the default language will be exported.

To record the translated texts into the project management, click the right mouse button on the folder **texts** and select the menu item **import** and the entry **a language**. In the resulting dialog, select the language which will import the text.

You have the option to save the texts of all languages in a CSV file. Right-click the folder **texts**, select the menu item **export** and select the entry **copletely in, csv' file**. It appears a dialog similar to a standard "Save dialog". In addition, you can still find the separator / select tab stop.

The produced CSV file can be opened and edited in Excel, for example. It can change texts as well as new texts are added. It should be noted that the first row (column name) and the ID column have not be changed. In addition, no further languages (columns) are added or removed. If a new line must be added to the **ID** column is left blank and the value of the column **Log.ID** be unique

To resume texts in the project management, you click the right mouse button on the folder **texts**. Select the menu item **import**, and then the entry **completely from csv' file**.

Deutsch	ID 🗸	Log. ID	Russisch	Chinesisch (VR China)
abcHallo	1		жңЩйИл	破艾
				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Linstellungen für Gerät	'Geraet11_V_1_0	30'		×
Allgemein PC-Verbindu	ng Schriftart			
Unicode Ressource				
	Deutsch	Russisch	Chinesisch (VR Chin	<u> </u>
CP1251_6x8				
CP1252_11x7				_
CP1252_13x7				_
CP1252_15x8				
CP1252_21×11				
CP1252_7x5				
cp1252_8x8				
Default				
Be11x7				
				OK Abbrechen

Unicode is supported only from eStudio version 2.83 and runtime version 1.80.

Allgemein PC-Verbindung Schriftan	t Name:	Geraet11 V 1	80	ID:	2
	Geräteart:	VISIO_P410	•	10.	12
	Treiber:	FRED_CE	.	Knoten:	N091
Grafisches Display Auflösung: 640x480 Farber: 256	RemotePanel	;F:\Support\Pr		FW-Version:	>= 1.80
raiben. 236					

For space optimization can be needed to unicode translation on and off switch.

4.6.8 Generate resource file

Before the different types of resources can be loaded on the target system they must be merged into one file. Therefore the program ResGen will be delivered with eStudio. This searches the configured device for all resources used and creates a resource file. In addition, it stores information about the used networks, devices, and data points in the file

To create out a resource file from the project management, click the right mouse button on the **resources** folder and select the menu item **create resource file.**

For more information on creating a resource file, see the help for the program ResGen.

4.6.9 download Resource file

To load a **resource file** on the target system (download), click in the project tree or project view pane, right-click the Resources folder and select the menu **download resource file**.

Ressourcendatei	downloaden 🗙		
Datei:	d:\elasoft\Projekte\Mein Projekt\Geraet1\re\resource.res		
Datum:	22.01.2003 15:56		
Netzwerktreiber:	RS232		
Slot	COM_1		
Parameter:	38400Baud,8Bits,1Bits,keine,0 0 M0		
Gerätetreiber:	CAN_M167		
Knoten:	мо		
Parameter:	;d:\elasoft\Projekte\Mein Projekt\Geraet1		
	Download starten Abbrechen		

Here again the following informations are displayed:

- the file to be transferred,
- the interface used to
- about the device to which the resources are to be loaded.

By pressing the button **to start download**, the operation will be started. This may vary depending on the size of the file transfer rate or interface, and selected take a few seconds to several minutes.

Wher

When downloading to a Windows CE.net device can be determined, the download directory:

Downloaden				×	Verzeichnis wählen	×
AFONTSVARIAL Arony Statement Arony Statement Arony Statement Adresse: Zielverzeichnis:	TTF URY.TTF C.TTF ad_de.xml ad_en.xml ad_ky.xml ource.Res 192.168.5.1 \Flashdisk\	16.08.2004 19:14 12.11.2002 10:26 16.08.2004 19:15 17.11.2006 14:50 09.10.2006 14:32 17.11.2006 14:50 28.03.2008 07:58 142 ElaDesign	Fonts Fonts Fonts		 Storage Card Network Flashdisk Application Data My Documents Program Files profiles Temp Windows 	OK Abbrechen
	Download	starten A	bbrechen			

With "Resource creating" are all necessary files will be provided for the operation, with the exception of the IEC codes". These are for "Resource download" in a selection box provided. It is not necessary to transfer all the files constantly, as not all change, can be individual except, for example keypad.

😫 ftp://192.168.1.205/ - M	icrosof
Datei Bearbeiten Ansicht	Favoriter
🕝 Zurück 🔹 🌍 🍷 🍺	<i>,</i>
Adresse 👰 ftp://192.168.1.205/	
Name 🔺	Grö
Cocuments and Settings	
🗀 Flashdisk	
My Documents]
C Network	
🗀 Program Files	
Recycled	
🚞 Storage Card	
🗀 Temp	
🚞 Windows	

Download on WindowsCE-devices:

Enter the destination directory on which the download should take place. This destination path is stored for future downloads

The Resource.res file can be stored under :

- "My Documents" this is only in RAM and volatile after a power failure. The advantage is, during the development phase you can test without a flashing process faster.
- "Storage Card" this is the external CF (CampactFlash). It is strongly recommended that the data for ease and change of application for performance reasons on the CF to save. Downside, it must be a CF present.
- Flashdisk"

data are stored on the internal flash. Because on this Flash is the operating system is also of the flashing process is slower than for CF. A further disadvantage is the slow access to the internal CF, especially in connection with the CoDeSys. One advantage is that the CF can be omitted

elrest recommends the use of a external CF.

After the start of ElaDesignCE.exe on the Panel is in the order:

- "\My Documents\resource.res"
- "\Storage Card\ElaDesign\resource.res"
- "\Flashdisk\ElaDesign\resource.res"

For the file "resource.res" sought and executed.

4.6.10 Start the simulation

In eStudio you can with the help of ElaDesign graphically simple operating masks, the then without additional program are run on a panel. To these masks on the PC to simulate click with the right-click the folder **resources** and then select the menu item **start the simulation**.

4.7 Datapoints

Data points are the logical structure of the data in their own or in another device can be accessed. This data can, for example as actual values Firmwarevariablen analog inputs or program variables be a ElaSim program.

In the Project Management data points will be below the projected device listed in the folder data points.

4.7.1 Datapoints of communication partners

In order to access data points from another device it is necessary in the project management to define the connection between the two devices and the network. In addition the device to be accessed whose data points, have to be created.



Select the configured device in the project tree and select in the menu **file**, the entry **new** ..., or click on the device with the right mouse button and select the menu item **new**

In the dialog that appears select the type of object network and confirm with

OK.

In the field **name**, enter a logical name for the network.

In the combo box select **drivers** the network driver for the desired interface. Via the button next to the combo box can be opened a dialog, in the driver-specific settings can be made. For further information please refer to the help of the appropriate driver.

Confirm your entries with OK.



Data points appear in the folder now the newly created network. In order to create the device, select the network in the project tree and select the **File** menu, select **New** ..., or click on the network with the right mouse button and select the menu item **New**

Select the object in the resulting dialog box type **device** and click **OK**.

Neues Geraet			×
Allgemein			
Name:	Geraet1 ID:	0	
Netzwerk:	CAN_Netzwerk		
Treiber:	CAN_M167 💌 Knoten:	MO	
Parameter:	d:\elasoft\Projekte\Mein Projekt\Mein Pult		
		OK Abbred	chen

Input a logical name in the field name for the appliance.

Select the combo box **"driver**" the driver for the device used in the CPU. The button beside the combo box can be opened a dialog in which to select the network number of the device and can accept additional driver-specific settings can be made. For more information, see the Help for the appropriate drivers.

Confirm your entries with OK.

In the Project Manager will be displayed below the network, the newly created device. You can create here, as with a configured device data points.

Auto Scan: Has created an identical network as the main device, the connected device also be searched by autoscan.

Neues Geraet				×
Allgemein				
Name:	Neues Geraet	ID:	0	
Netzwerk:	Netzwerk			
Treiber:	.	Knoten:		
Parameter:				
Autoscan			OK Abbrecher	1

4.7.2 Creating data points

To create a new data point, proceed as following:

CAN_M167.DLL V2.72.0	×
Selbstdefinierte Datenpunkte Globale selbstdef. Datenpunkte Firmware-V	ariablen 💶
DP der Firmware Von: 0 Ausgewählte DP Istwert (A) Kp Proportional Mastemerker Bit Mastemerker Char 0 Mastemerker Char 2 Mastemerker Char 2 Mastemerker Char 3 Mastemerker Char 3 Mastemerker Char 4 Masteme	
Mastermerker Short1	•
Istwert	_
Suche:	2
0K	Abbrechen

Select the device for which you want to create a data point in the project tree and select the **File** menu, select **New** ..., or click on the device with the right mouse button and select the menu item **New**

Select in the dialog the object type data point and press OK.

A dialog box will appear from the selected device drivers for the device.

Here you can select the data points which you need and confirm with **OK**. (In the Project Management it is possible to create several data points in a process.

For more information about the data point selection dialogs, see the Help for the respective device drivers

Allo	jemein										×
	Name:	Raumtemperati	ul			ID:		0			
	Beschreibung:			_					_		
	Einheit]°C		_		Log. IC	D:	10			_
	Geräte:	Geraet1									_
	Phys. DP:	Ollstwert (X)	100				Gleit	komma			
					< <u>Z</u> u	rück	⊻e	iter >	Ab	brecher	- -

In the Name field, enter a logical name for the data point.

This name is unique within the data points of a configured device and appears in ElaDesign in every data point selection dialogs. For CoDeSys, when this is in the project settings, configured variables created with this name.

In the **Description** field can take place an additional description of this data point.

In the combo box **unit** you can enter a physical unit or a select from a predefined list. When you open the dialog appears here always the specification from the device drivers

In the field **Log. ID** field, you can give the data point has its own unique number, with which it can be approached from a ElaSim program.

In the field **device**, the device appears to create the data point.

In the field **Phys. DP** will be shown the physical name of the data point that you have chosen in the selection dialog of the device driver. With the button next to the field, this selection dialog will open again. Behind it is still displayed, the data type of the data point.

If you have made all the inputs on this page: press Next>.

gnalbereich: Min.: U eßhereich: Min.: -10	Max: 1000 Max: 40
itialisierung	Verarbeitungsmodus -
mit gespeichertem Parameter (PERSISTEN	T) C Schreiben
mit batteriegepuffertem Wert (RETAIN)	 Lesen/Schreiben

About the values in the fields of **signal range**, and **measuring range** can be limited range of the data point and scaled. For example, is for the range of signal 0 - 1,000 entered, so the values will be available in the device as you limited to this area. Then for the measuring range is -10 - 40 entered in this way there is a scaling of the values, such as you in ElaDesign be used, to this area instead.

The limitation and scaling does not affect in the CoDeSys programming.



Is entered in all four fields 0, there is no limitation or scaling of the values instead.

In the field starting value, the value is entered, to be used as long as no value was read from the device.

In the group **processing mode**, the access rights as specified by the device driver will be further restricted.

To complete your entries, press Finish.

If you have created only one data point (or was it the last data point to be created), this appears now in the project management under the selected device. Did you select more than one data point in the data point selection dialog of the device driver: The **General** page appears again with the values for the next data point.

4.7.3 Data Point Settings

Einstellungen für	Datenpunkt 'Raumtemperatur'		×
Aligemein Berei	che/Zugriff		1
Name:	Raumtemperatur	ID: 11	
Beschreibung:			
Einheit:	℃ 	Log. ID: 0	_
Geräte:	Geraet1	J	_
Phys. DP:	Olistwert (X) IOO	Gleitkomma	
		OK Abbree	chen

To change the settings of a data point, double-click the project view window on the appropriate line.

The inputs are on the two sides of **General** and distributed **areas / access**. For more information about the input fields of this dialogue and its importance in the chapter you create data points.

4.7.4 Exporting data points



You can export all data points of a project to an XML file. This file can then for example be read into a "Wago" OPC server.

Highlight the desired project and select in the context menu, the entry **Export data points** ...

4.8 **Program Settings**

In the Project Management adjustments can be made the independently of the project, or applies to all projects.

instellungen 🛛
Allgemein Programme ElaSim ElaGraph
Projektpfad: C.NProjekte
Präfix beim Anlegen von Datenpunkten
C Gerätename C Modulnummer ⓒ Kein
OK Abbrechen

To do this, select Settings in the Options menu,

On the **General** page in the field **project path** can be entered the path which will be used as the default if you create a new project

Prefix when creating data points: Here can be defined how is the specification for the log name from the Phys. names formed when a new data point will be created

Ei	tellungen X
	Igemein Programme ElaSim ElaGraph
	Objekttyp: Bitmaps
	Programm: MSPaint
	Wählen Sie für jeden Objekttyp ein Programm mit dem dieser bearbeitet werden soll.
	OK Abbrechen

On the **Programs** page the programs can be set with which bitmaps, code Sys-Programme , fonts, and HTML-pages to be edited.

By default, for bitmaps the program supplied with Windows Paint, for fonts with eStudio program supplied the fontedit and for HTML-pages used Notepad.

Further you can set which program for HTTP and FTP connections will be used.

Einstellungen X
Allgemein Programme ElaSim ElaGraph
Editor: EXElaSoff\EStudio\Pfe\Pfe32.exe
Compiler
Ziel: 80167 (GNU)
Pfad: C:\Compiler\HighTec
Version: V2.5x
OK Abbrechen

On the side **ElaSim** field **editor**, the editor can be set to be processed with the source files ElaSim

With the fields in the group **Compiler** (CPU-type and simulation) can set for each target the path for the used compiler and the version.

4.8.1 Version Control

eStudio is composed of many individual components, such as executable programs, libraries or drivers. To provide an overview of the problem case or just use the installed version of the individual components is eStudio supplied with the program version.

Name	Dateiversion	Produktversion	TVD	Datum	Utypet	Pfad	
ATLOU.				05.12.1999	23:00	C/(ElaSoft)EStudio(ATLDLL	_
ANAGGREG.DUL	annear the second			05.12.1999	23:00	C/JElaSoPtIEStudio\A%AGGREG.DLL	
AUFORMS.DU		*******		28.05.2001	09:05	C:(ElaSoft)EStudioLAXFORMS.DLL	
ANUNDO.DLL				05.12.1999	23:00	C:\[IaSoPtiE?Rudo\AVLNDO.DLL	
S IMPLIFICKL	2.71.0	2.71.0		15.05.2000	15:42	C:(ElaSoPt)/UN/(MPLIE/DLL	
CAN CS15.DLL	2.72.0	2.72.0		26.07.2002	12:36	C/IElaSoft/Device/CAN_CS15.DLL	
CAN HELEDE	2.72.0	2.72.0		22.07.2002	14:22	ChElaSoftican hexiCAN HEX.EXE	
CAN HEID DLL	2.72.0	2.72.0		28.03.2002	15:36	C/(ElaSoftican hexiCAN HEXID DLL	
CAN HEID.DUL	2.72.0	2.72.0		28.03.2002	15:35	CrigBaSoftican_hexi/CAN_HER1.DLL	
CAN MIGT.DLL	2.72.0	2.72.0		26.07.2002	12:35	CriglaSoft(Device)/CAN_M167.DLL	-
CAN MS15.DLL	2.72.0	2.72.0		26.07.2002	12:35	ChillaSoftiDevicel/CAN_M515.DLL	
CAN MHO DLL	2.72.0	2.72.0		26.07.2002	12:36	CriglaSoftiDevice/CAN_M960.DUL	
CAN MPC2.DLL	2.72.0	2.72.0		21.10.2002	12:13	C/(ElaSoft)Driver)CAN_MPC2.DLL	
CAN MPC3.DLL	2.72.0	2.72.0		21.10.2002	12:14	C1(ElaSoft)Driver)CAN_MPC3.DLL	
CANNON EXE	2.72.0	2.72.0		24.01.2002	18:45	C/ElaSoft/BIN/CANMON EVE	
COM DP.DLL	2.72.0	2.72.0		06.02.2002	16:10	C:(ElaSoRIDriver)COM_DP.DLL	
COMCTL32.DLL	5.81	5.00.2920.0000		10.12.1999	12:00	Cr(WINNTLSystem32)COMCTL32.DLL	
DOWNLOAD.EXE	2.72.0	2.72.0		12.08.2002	13:24	C/(ElaSoft)(EM/DOWNLOAD.EXE	
a) ED O ED LE D	2.71.0	2.71.0		24.05.2000	11:37	C/(ElaSoft)EDM/DOHEN.DUL	
ADD-EN.DE	2.73.0	2.73.0		30.10.2002	13:36	CriglaSoft(Echen)(EICHEN.EXE	
NO.000	2.73.0	Z.73.0		30.10.2002	13:45	C/(ElaSoft)ExheniEDCHEN0.DU.	
ALLAD.EVE	2.72.0	2.72.0		22.05.2002	06:35	C/(ElaSoft)Elagraph)Biv(ELA0.E)E	
ELAL DE	2.72.0	2.72.0		22.05.2002	06:35	ChElaSoft/Ellagraph/Ber/ELA1.EXE	
ELAC-IDUL.DUL				07.06.2002	07:22	C/(ElaSoPti@IM/ELAC4DUL.DUL	
ELACONTROUS.DUL	2.73.0	2.72.0		22.11.2002	10:40	C:\EASOPTIEStudio\ELACONTROLS.DLL	
ELACONTROLSSET2	2.73.0	2.73.0		16.12.2002	15:52	C/glaSoft/EStudio/gLACONTROLSSET2.DLL	
TLADOLG.DU	2.73.0	2.73.0		13.12.2002	13:09	C1/ElaSoPH/RIM/ELADOLG.DUL	
ELACOLG.ENG	2.72.0	2.72.0		06.08.2002	12:05	C/(ElaSoft)/EIN/ELADOLG.ENG	
ELADPIO.DUL	2.73.0	2.73.0		16.12.2002	13:56	C/(ElaSoft)EIN/ELADF10.DLL	
1							

This can be called from the project management of version **control options**.

Here are all the used components listed with information about the version and path. This list can be printed on the system menu of the program.

4.8.2 Language Development Environment

eStudio has the ability to change the program in other languages, too

Sprachauswahl	×
Wählen Sie hier die im Programm zu verwendende Sprache aus.	OK
Deutsch (Deutschland)	Abbrechen

This can be called up from the project management of **language selection options...**

Here you can select your preferred language.

4.8.3 Dongle configuration

About the dongle configuration all rights of the plugged dongle shown and the serial number and general information.



This can be called from the project management through **options dongle configuration**

4.8.4 version switch

You can use the version switch several eStudio/CoDeSys installations use simultaneously on your computer. Important is, that these installations on the computer were always in the same directory.

On this directory now also run all versions, which are not required versions renamed in a different directory.



Attention:

Then delete the registry entries of older installations for the current user under software \ ElaSoft, the entries are removed for the version change. So do not install old versions (prior to V2.73) after the fact. Complete the entries again, but also old versions run smoothly

eStudio: eStudio	2.83 E:\E	E:\ElaSoft1			
CoDeSys: CoDeSy	vs 2.3.9.3	C:\Programme\3S Software 2.3.9.3			
🔽 eStudio automatis	sch starten				
Studio Versionen				🖄 🗙 🗷 🗲	
Name	Umbenennungspfad	Version	1	Hilfedatei	
Studio 2.03	E:\ElaSoft1				
Studio 2.83 Studio 2.83 Release Studio V2.83 Beta 2	E:\ElaSoft E:\ElaSoft V2.82 Release E:\ElaSoft V2.83 Beta 2	V2.831	Beta 2	× 0 +	
oDeSys Versionen	E:\LelaSoft E:\LelaSoft V2.82 Release E:\LelaSoft V2.83 Beta 2	V2.831	Beta 2 Version	X U +	

By double-clicking a displayed eStudio version you can change the renaming path and the path to help.

Do you want to start automatically eStudio with an update, select the corresponding checkbox.

If you want to change the eStudio version, select the appropriate version from the list and then click

Ο.

Same applies toCoDeSys.

Do you want to install a new version without CoDeSys eStudio, then select from the list, <new> 'and then perform a change. CoDeSys can then be installed. Then the version changer reopened so the new version of CoDeSys is entered automatically.



If the version change does not work, it is usually because programs are still running the old version. This is automatically detected and reported. Shut down those programs and try again.

Furthermore, a version change usually fails because you may have a file explorer open, which opened a directory of the installation path. Also, could for example an editor (text, bitmap, ...) with a file of this path to be open.

Close that

Finally, there are sometimes situations in the system, where the operating system has references to paths/files of the installation paths open. Here then, is there no way to switch more in the current operation. In this case, shut down the computer (often enough also log out) and try it again. Hereby the version change always works correctly.

5 HMI-Editor Eladesign

5.1 Overview

ElaDesign offers:

- Workshop for resources oriented draft of masks with static elements (fields, input fields, bitmaps, etc.)
- Full graphic with Windows technology
- Free font design
- Integration of bitmap files.
- TrueType fonts for CE d• evices
- Unicode text for CE devices

The designer is used to create masks which can be used to display and input of data points of a system control.

The designer can be processed simultaneously multiple masks. It can be a hierarchical structure of the masks are generated each other. The hierarchical structure is random, so that is not a classic mother-child structure necessary. This is desirable for example, if each level in the hierarchy from access to a special basic data screen there is to be.

A quick change between positioning of the elements in the mask and the test of the masks allows an interactive work with immediate recognition of the process.

Drawn will be set on a grid (eg 5 pixels).

5.1.1 Main window



5.1.2 Menues

5.1.2.1 Safe menue

With this menu item is the currently active masks stored Window



Create resource file

The program Resgen.exe is started. ResGen is a target-system independent tool for generating Resource Code

Occur during code generation error remains, the issue in the foreground and displays them as plain text.

Some errors can be opened directly by double clicking on the error that element in the mask.

ResGen V2.83.3 © 1998-2008 etrest automationssysteme GmbH	
(3000095) xStatExecute (3000047) xWave_Init	-
(3000046) xW/ave_out (3000074) xaEreignis	
(3000092) xcreateCoDeSysVar 	
(3000075) xquitE vent (3000076) xquitE ventAll	
(3000083) xreadFTC	
	1
	<u>^</u>
1	F

Resource file download

The download routine is started and will last with ResGen generated program code transmitted to the target system.

Start simulation

Using simulation, the mask can be represented with all the elements inserted and operated. During the simulation assumes the development PC the communication of the simulated control panel. Here, the internal data points of the control panel to be replaced with this, so that others can access modules still to data points of the control panel. A possibly on the control panel running userware program can be stopped by setting the device is selected from the Project Manager that option

END

The program is terminated.
5.1.2.2 Edit Menu

Undo

Taking the recent changes to the control back.



Restore

Sets the undo steps restores

Cut out

Deletes the selection and copies it to the clipboard

Сору

Copies the selection to the clipboard.

Insert

Adds the elements from the clipboard.

Delete Deletes the selection.

Assign a default item Saves the settings of the current element, and refers to those settings each newly inserted element.

Assign a default mask

Saves the current settings of the mask and has these settings at any newly created mask.

Properties

Calling the settings dialog of the element. Same functionality as double-clicking the

5.1.2.3 Meue Layout

It allows you to edit various arrangements of the elements in the mask.

Alignment

Alignment to a position of a plurality of selected elements based on the main element (this is particularly highlighted).



The same distance

Orientation to each other several selected elements (at least 3).

Same size

Adjusting the size of multiple selected elements based on the main element (this is particularly highlighted).

Align to Grid

Elements can not be automatically aligned to the grid. Press F2 for selected elements and each element aligns its upper left corner of the nearest grid point.

Tab order

With this menu item, the order of elements is changed in a mask. This set is drawn in what order the elements are and how between the various elements back and forth can be cracked. By default, the items in the order of placement will be numbered in the mask. To change the order, click with the mouse, the elements (not the numbers!) According to the desired order. Exit this function by re-selecting the menu item

Element array to correct

Menu item to the arrangement of the elements which were placed outside the mask to correct.

5.1.2.4 Meue Extras

Option

Opens the dialog box "options settings" here can be made the program settings.

grid:

The fields 'Line spacing' and 'spacing', the grid spacing set to Grid View:

If this is selected, the grid defined above is shown in the background. Elements can not be automatically aligned to the grid. Press F2 for selected elements and each element aligns its upper left corner of the nearest grid point.

colors:

About the radio button to specify your preferred colors for the layout design.

Display area (total available stationary LCD screen on)

Form Background for design (alternate color to mask the background color, or bitmap, the color box on the active, otherwise the actual mask used background)

Frame / selected elements

Grid

Other:

View button icons:

If this selection item selected, the icons in the control panel buttons that reflect the set function as an icon.



Optionen Einstellungen		×
Raster Spaltenabstand: 10 Zeilenabstand: 10 I Raster anzeigen Sonstiges Schaltflächensymbole anzeigen	Farben Displaybereich: IV Maskenhintergrund für Entwurf: Rahmen/sel. Element: Raster:	
	Haster:	

5.1.2.5 Menue hep

Overview

Usage of the contents of the Online Help

Info

Information about ElaDesign



5.1.3 Toolbar

(Starting from left) The functions of the toolbar are:

- Save screen
- Cut the selected item and place it in the clipboard
- Selected item to the clipboard
- tem from the clipboard
- Undo
- Restoring
- Generate resource file
- Start Download
- Start simulation
- About ElaDesign



5.1.4 The Panel

When you edit a mask always the control panel of the control panel is displayed as a backdrop.

About this panel you can assign to each key of the control panel functions. If the option selected in the View button icons, program settings, are the keys for which an award function is possible to display small icons.



5.1.5 Button

By double-clicking a button on the control panel, a dialog window opens in the key of a function can be assigned.

Element Schalt	läche	×
Schalttyp:	Funktion des Default-Desktops	Zugänglichkeit
	OK	Abbrechen

Switch Type:

Here, the function type can be set. According to the selection are then the other fields of the control of meaning. The following switch types:

Not used:

The button has no function in this screen.

Next dialog with Cancel:

About the radio button for follow-mask, a mask can get selected, press the button to open the. The current screen is closed.

Follow-mask without Cancel:

About the radio button for follow-mask, a mask can get selected, press the button to open the. The current form is not closed.

Mask include:

The current screen is closed.

Window function:

Scroll window up, down, left, right: scroll the canvas of a window in that direction. It is horizontally to the width of the system fonts and scrolled vertically to the height of the system fonts.

Move the window up, down, left, right:

Moves a window on the screen in either direction. It is horizontally by the width of the system fonts and moves vertically by the height of the system fonts

Enlarge the window width, height:

Enlarges a window to the right by the width of the system fonts or down to the level of the system fonts.

Zoom window width, height:

Reduces a window from the right by the width of the system fonts or from below the level of the system fonts.

Selecting window next, previous:

Sets the focus to the next / previous window. Here, the window is brought to the forefront and set the input focus to the first input field of the window.

Magnify window diagonal:

Enlarges a window to the right by the width of the system fonts. down to the level of the system fonts.

Zoom window diagonal:

Reduces a window from the right by the width of the system fonts and below the level of the system fonts.

Data point function:

Data point to change: change a data point corresponding to the selected operator (+, -, =), and operands

Further function:

Menu, select: the mask is assigned to a menu; it can be activated via the key. Within the menu can be moved using the cursor keys. Stops will be escaped.

Password Reset level:

Herewith, a user can log out of his rights. Controls for with password level is now absolutely necessary to re-input

Keypad open:

Opens the window when an input field has focus.

End of program

(CE only): End of ElaDesign

Function of the default desktop:

The button receives the function to it in the mask! DEFAULT_DESKTOP has been assigned. Note: Not available in the mask DEFAULT_DESKTOP!

Virtual key code:

- If you have chosen as switch type "key function" you can assign a function to the control. The following functions are available
- Number 0 Figure 9: inserts the number 0-9 in an input field.
- ENTER: confirms input in a field and writes the data point value
- Decimal point: inserts a decimal point in an input field.
- Increment +: increases the value of the input field that has the input focus to first
- Decrement -: decreases the value of the input field that has the input focus to first
- Default: inserts into the input field that has the input focus, the initial value of the associated data point name.
- Cursor left, right, up, down: sets the input focus to the next / previous field.
- Escape: leaving a field without modification.

Specific feature:

If you define a form as a template (more on this below "background image"), you have the ability to control the template accordingly

Generate a mask with a template function and assign data points that reflect each of the module number and / or offset. If such a mask opened, all data points that are templates capable (array data points or many variables firmware) exchanged with the corresponding index.

About the Item button, you can now control the template data points and thus simple functions such as Next / Back with a mask and generate the same data at different target points.

Select order as switching type "sequence mask Cancel" or "sequence mask without Cancel" and an operator with the correct value.

5.1.6 The background

Window for the basic settings of a mask. This window will be opened by double clicking on the screen background.



Background:

If the "background" can be selected by the radio button next to the field a bitmap as the background of the mask can be selected.

Background color:

About the radio button, 🛃 the background color of a mask can be selected.

View layout:

X-Pos, Y Pos: The position of the left upper corner of the screen in pixels relative to the upper left corner of the screen.

Width, height: width and height in pixels of the mask without a frame and title bar

Scroll height:

Total height of the mask: If the scroll height is greater than the height of the visible range (value in the field 'height') then the mask can be scrolled within the visible range

Title line:

- **Text field** for entering a title bar. If this field is blank no title will appear.
- Font: Setting the font for the text to be displayed. For TrueType fonts can also (bold, italic), the font size and font style can be specified.
- Foreground: Color: Choice of text color palette.
- **Background**: color: select the background color range.

Attributes window:

- **Moveable:** This option is allowed to move the mask on the screen.
- **Shrink:** This option allows changing the size of the mask are approved.
- **Closable:** This option allows the closing of the mask are approved
- **Open at startup:** If this option is selected, the screen opens automatically at startup.
- **Focus on startup:** If this option is enabled receives this mask after starting the program the input focus. Make sure that this option is enabled only when a mask
- Frame: Select the frame around the screen (no border, under 2D, 3D frame).

menu:

Each mask can be assigned to a separate menu. These menus can be opened easily masks.

Using a function key, the menu can be opened. Within the menu can be moved using the cursor keys. Stops will be escaped

Data points for pattern:

Define a mask as a template, if several data points to be exchanged dynamically during the run time for opening the mask. You can control the target data point about its offset (eg artificial influence of the array indices or the control channel number) and its module number (other device).

It is a useful function especially for the definition of control channels or for the input of large array data points.

- Offset: Specification of the data point for the offset function
- **module:** specification of the data point for the function module

Offset and the module **must** be defined as data points of type word or double word in project management.

Accessibility:

This specification defines the access rights to the mask. See chapter "accessibility" for more information.

5.1.7 Accessibility:

The visibility/ operability can be administered about the password levels and / or dependent on a bit data point

sichtbar Kennwortebene:	2 -	
nicht	sichtbar	📰 💼 🗖 Indiziert
sichtbar wenn:	○ EIN(=1)	Rel. Offset:
bedienbar		
Kennwortebene:	4 -	
nicht	bedienbar	📰 🛅 🗆 Indiziert
bedieribai wenn.	○ EIN(=1) ● AUS(=0)	Rel. Offset: 0
Zykluszeit:	1 sec 💌	
		OK Abbreche

Password level:

Total of 15 password levels are available in ElaDesign These can be specified for acknowledgment in writing controls, in masks and alarm lists. Only users with sufficient rights are then able to use these or to see.

The following values are available:

0 = all released

- 1 = highest privileges for the user (supervisor)
- 15 = lowest rights for the user

Is a password not enough, the user is prompted for a password, which meets at least the level of the control

Thereby the level was set, is then permanently continue to re-start the system or until the next password

If the password entry to a higher level instead of the password is entered a lower level than it currently has, nevertheless remains the current level is still valid.

Unsubscribe is possible with the element key or with the touch key "Reset Password level" .Only element with the password level 0 can be served than.

Upon receipt of a device, the following default passwords

level	password
1	1111
2	2222
3	3333
4	4444
5	5555
6	6666
7	7777
8	8888
9	9999
10	1010
11	1011
12	1012
13	1013
14	1014
15	1015

These passwords are stored in EEPROM and can be changed at runtime in CoDeSys or ElaDesign.

Describe the firmware data point "EE nPassword 0-15".

4-digit numeric values are used in ElaDesign. Although the data point is a double word, please put only a 4-digit value

For each level there is a data point. The data point with index 0 is ignored, as here also no password prompt is necessary.

CoDeSys

You need the library sFWXX.lib

Here, use the structural element "uRemanent.sMasterEEprom.nPassword".

The following parameters must be set:

```
PROGRAM PLC_PRG
VAR
bInitialized: BOOL := FALSE;
psFW: POINTER TO sFW
END_VAR

IF NOT bInitialized THEN
bInitialized := TRUE;
psFW := FwGetStructPointer(0);
psFW^.uRemanent.sMasterEEprom.nPassword[1] := 1234;
END_IF
```

As offset value, enter the password level.

- Not visible / operable if: Selection of a bit data point. Depending on the value of the element is not visible / or operated.
- Indexed / Relative Offset:

For array data points, the relative offset = index of the data point can be specified. Activate the checkbox "Indexed".

• Cycle time:

Cycle time at which the bit data points to be queried.

5.1.8 Voice Switching

During the term of ElaDesign the language can be switched.

The userware data point "nPrimaryLanguage". is served for. The value of the data point is automatically stored in EEPROM and is available after the automatic restart

Make yourself e.g. a mask in which the user can select the language of a combo box.

A mask with bitmaps of the available countries flags looks visually good. Set the flag as a key to. Here, however, can only bit data points are written. Use CoDeSys and then insert the language accordingly.

The value for the variable Userware "nPrimaryLanguage" set the country code that is displayed on the project management for the language.

The system constantly checks these data point to change. If a new value exists, it is automatically stored in the EEPROM and the system automatically initialized with the new language.

The language switch can also be done via the user-product variable "nlanguage". The minimum value of PrimaryLanguage will be assigned the value 0. Example above

Language	nPrimaryLanguage	nLanguage
German	1031	0
Czech	1029	1
French	1036	2
Italian	1040	3
English (Ir)	6153	4

Cross-references:

Information on language change can be found on the documents below: Plattform_XX_DE.pdf, and under Tips and Tricks

Einstellungen zu Projekt 'Demo	ofredP300'	×
Allgemein Sprachen		
Sprache:		
Deutsch	1031	Markieren Sie hier alle
Englisch (Irland)	6153	Zielsystem geladen
Französisch (Frankreich)	1036	werden sollen.
✓ Italienisch	1040	× 1 1
I schechisch	1029	Andern
		Entfernen
1		
Als Standard setzen		Hinzufügen
		OK Abbrooken
		Abbiechen

5.1.8.1 Language-dependent switching of fonts

For some languages it is necessary the use of other fonts

Language-dependent switching of fonts.

When using some languages use a different font is required.

E.G. Cyrillic, Hungarian: This font can be switched depending on the selected language.

Therefore choose in the Device Settings "font" in the table, which should be changed to the respective font when switching to another language.

The front vertical range corresponds to the available fonts in the default language. (here, German

The example, now is the default font switched (Here CP1252_8x8) in CP1251_6x8 for selection of Cyrillic.

Projektverwaltung eStudio						
Datei Bearbeiten Ansicht Optionen Hilfe						
	D X B C Finstellungen für Gerät 'P2xx'					
DemoSprachen P2xx Datenpunkte	Allgemein PC-Verbindung Schrifter	t				
🗈 🚞 Ressourcen		Deutsch	Russisch	Englisch (USA)		
	Default Ela11x7		CP1251_6x8			

5.1.8.2 Using the default fonts

The default font is system-for example used in numpads and keypads.

It is stored in the hardware list.

The font CP1252_8x8 is used

In order to change him, please copy your desired font in the directory and name of him in Default.fnt.

🛱 C:\Projekte\DemoSpracher	n\P2xx\Hardware	,
Datei Bearbeiten Ansicht Favorite	en Extras ?	
🚱 Zurück 🝷 🕤 🔺 🏂 🔎 Su	chen 陵 Ordner	.
Adresse 🗀 C:\Projekte\DemoSprac	hen\P2xx\Hardware	
Ordner	× Name 🔺	Default.fnt - Editor
	Base.BMP Cour.ttf Default.fnt device.bmp Hardware.xr kb_de.bmp kb_en.bmp kb_ky.bmp	Date Bearbetten Format Ansicht ? 010 Elrest CP1252 8x8 tream 0j0 r0 z0 ,0 \$0 > <fl>2 0x0000 <f>2 \$0 > <fl>4 0x0000 <f>5 \$1/2 ~ 0x011~ n000000 <f>30 \$</f></f></fl></f></fl>

Russian

The font was switched on CP1252_6x8



How num- and keypad can be set individually on CE panel, please refer to the document



Example: German Plattform_CE_DE.pdf

5.2 Elements in the designer

5.2.1 Adding graphic elements in a mask

In the following chapter the described graphical elements can be arranged just inside the mask, using the left mouse button at the desired location.

Using a drag and drop elements can be moved.

Elements can be resized by clicking on one corner

Thus, the positioning of various elements can be accomplished more easily, a character grid was introduced.

If the option "elements align to grid" is activated, so only the elements can be positioned in the Set Grid. Settings for the grid can be done in the menu item "Options | Settings'

> ₩ abl

27

1

副

Ľ≏

6

1

Ξŧ

The elements of a mask are numbered upon creation.

Based on these numbers, the processing is done on the mask. Overlapping individual elements, it depends on the order of processing, which final appearance is created.

The menu item "order to determine", a renumbering of the mask elements can be made

5.2.2 The toolbar elements

The elements:

- Processing Input field
- Display panel
- Press
- Image
- Bargraph
- Combobox
- Data Logger
- Functions buttons
- List (alarm and events)
- Rectangular
- Line
- Listbox

5.2.3 The element input field

The element input field is used to input a value for data points with the following types of variables:

- FLOATING POINT (FLOAT)
- • DOUBLE WORD (LONG)
- • WORD (LONG)
- • DATE
- • TIME
- • CHAR
- • TEXT
- • VARIABLE TEXT
- • BIT

Data point:

Selection of the edited data item.

Variable type:

Indicates the type of the selected data point

Accessibility:

This specification defines the access rights and visibility of the element.

See chapter accessibility 'for more information.#

Indexed / Relative Offset:

For array data points, the relative offset = index of the data point can be specified. Activate the checkbox "Indexed".

By reading back:

If this option is enabled, the data point is read in the cyclically adjusted time and updated the input field.

By double-clicking on the element is an options window opens in which the element is configured

In which element input field will be decided between the type "normal" and "invisible". A selection of the type by selecting The appropriate tab.

Element Eingabe		<u>></u>
Datenpunkt: visioP205_inde Variablentyp: Byte Zugänglichkeit	×	☐ Indiziert Rel Offset: ☐ ✓ Mit Rücklesen 1 sec ▼
Normal Unsichtbar Elementanordnung X-Pos: 471	Farben Vordergrund:	abcABC
Elementattibute Vorkomma: 4 Nachkomma: 0 Ziffernweises +/- Linksbündig führende Nullen	Rahmen: 3D Font: Tah	v iome ¥9 ¥ F Z
OK Abbrechen		

By double-clicking the item an options window is opened where the element is configured.

The input field element has a distinction between the types of "normal" and "invisible". A selection of the type done by selecting the appropriate tab.

Data point:

Selection of the edited data item.

Variable type:

Indicates the type of the selected data point.

Accessibility:

This specification defines the access rights and visibility of the element.

See chapter accessibility 'for more information.

Indexed / Relative Offset:

For array data points, the relative offset = index of the data point can be specified. Activate the checkbox "Indexed".

With reading back:

Is this option enabled, the data point is read in the cyclically adjusted time and updated the input field

Element Eing 🔲 Indiziert 🛛 Rel. Offset: Datenpunkt: Mit Rücklesen Variablentvp: 1 sec 💌 Zugänglichkeit. Normal Unsichtbar Elementanordnung Earbor X-Pos: 47 abcABC 8 ۲ 66 Hinterarund: Y-Pos: 32 Breite: -----٠ Focus Vordera æ Focus Hinterar Elementattribute Vorkomma: ÷ Bahmen 30 O Tahoma 🔻 9 💌 F 🛛 Nachkomma ÷ Font C Ziffen 🗌 Linksbündig 🔲 Maßeinheit führende Nuller E Passwort OK Abbrechen

Element array:

X-Pos., Y-Pos.:

Coordinates of the upper left corner of the input field on the mask.

• Width:

adjust the width of the input field to the desired size or automatically adjusting by clicking on the buttons (to right field is zoomed in / out) or (Field is enlarged to the left / reduced.

Colors

• Foreground, Background

color selection of the input field.

• Focus priority, focus background: Selection of the colors of the activated input field. (Input field has the input focus)

Element attributes:

- places before, decimal: Specifies the number of pre-decimal and fixed
- Digit-by-step + / -: (only for ElaCAN units): Increases, decreases a number only in the appropriate location (potency). Forwarded to other locations will have separate keys (cursor left / right). The use of this option is only available with the option of leading zeros and right justified possible.

- Left-aligned: Left-aligned orientation of the input in the input field.
- Leading zeros: •

Represent numbers with leading zeros (maximum retail price-points)

Frame:

Select the frame to the box (no frames, 2D frames, 3D frame)

Font:

selection of fonts, with the value to be displayed in the input field. For TrueType fonts can also (bold, italic), the font size and font style can be specified.

Font Factor:

factor to be enlarged to the selected font will be displayed. Not possible with TrueType fonts

• Unit of measurement:

If this option is enabled, the unit of the data point after the input box is displayed within the frame.

Password:

• Displays all the letters and numbers as X.

5.2.3.1 Type "invisible "

In type invisible the value of the data point is not displaying on the screen. There are two keys are defined by the value of the incremented or decremented in steps of 1. This type can for example to realize be used in conjunction with the element bargraph a kind of slide.



Tastencode:

Normal Unsichtbar

Elementanordnung

X-Pos: 29

Element array:

- X-Pos., Y-Pos.;
- Coordinate the upper left corner of the input field. Serves only to represent the element in the designer.

Key codes:

- Up, Down:
- This will set keys with which the data point value increases or decreases .The key code can either be chosen from any of the existing hexadecimal values in the combo box, or from the button **H**, a window can be opened .That displays shows the layout of the console. Here you can by simply clicking the mouse on a button.

Verzögertes Schreiben:

• The changed value of the data point is not immediately written with each keystroke, but only 4 seconds after the last touch of a button

5.2.3.2 Type "normal"

In which **norma**l type, the value is similar to a display appears on the screen. The input is the number buttons and the [+] / [-] keys on the console. After confirming with [ENTER] key, the value is written. The buttons for the input fields must be configured in the mask! "DEFAULT_DESKTOP".

For devices with touch, by tapping on the element an input window or an on-screen keyboard will be opened.

5.2.3.3 Display of time formats.

The EleaDesign presentation format for the type of time is based on the Microsoft Windows

This provides the details:

Upper / lower case h = 12 hour H = 24 hours

double label: h = normal display (1,2,3..9,10,11,12..) hh = leading zero (01,02,03..10...)

xx = Display of am / pm an (English representation)
h,H = hours
m = minute
s = second
l = tenth second

For example:

You want to ElaDesign a time representation matching: standard German : 16:00:00 English: 4:00:00 am

Normal Unsichtbar Elementanordnung-Farbe abcABC X-Pos: 47 -* Vordergrund: ۲ Hintergrund: Y-Pos: 66 * Breite: 320 🐳 📻 ٠ Focus Vordergr: Focus Hinterg 200 ÷ Vorkomma: Rahmer 3D • Ela8x8u.fnt 💌 Nachkomma: 0 🗎 Font Font Faktor • 🗖 Maßeinheit Г П Pas

In windows:

Regions- und Sprachoptionen
Regionale Einstellungen Sprachen Erweitert
Regionale Einstellungen anpassen
Zahlen Währung Uhrzeit Datum Sortierung
Beispiel
Zeitbeispiel: 09:58:43
Zeitformat: HH:mm:ss 🗸
Zeittrennzeichen:
Symbol für Vormittag:
Symbol für Nachmittag:
Uhrzeitformat h = Stunde m = Minute s = Sekunde x = Vor-/Nachmittagssymbol
h = 12 Stunden H = 24 Stunden
hh, mm, ss = vorangestellte Null h, m, s = keine vorangestellte Null

with ElaDesign:



Both should be rendered identically:

Enter the "texts" on the Germans and the English side of the same format:

e.g.

HH:mm:ss

5.2.4 The element display

The display element is used to output display fields. The element is positioned at a position X, Y

The height can be adjusted depending on the font by clicking on the button.

The width is calculated automatically by selecting the data point

If an adjustment, e.g. Font factor changed later, a left-width adjustment can be carried out or flush right.

Double-clicking the item opens the "display item" open configuration in which the item is.

In the display element "value field" between the types is "valuedependent text", "data point", "text" and "Text of log. ID "distinction. A selection of the type done by selecting the appropriate tab.



element arrangement

- X-Pos, Y Pos.:
- Coordinate the upper left cornr of the display
- Width / Height:

Adjusting the width and height of the display panel by entering the width and height.

By pressing the buttons of the input fields can be resized automatically to the length or height of the text.

colors:

- Foreground
- Select the text color on color palette
- transparent background:
- Text is placed on a transparent background on the mask.
- Background color:
- Choice of background color on color palette

Element attributes:

- Horizontal alignment:
- Horizontal alignment of the text. (Left, Right or Centered)
- Flashing:

- Flashing display of the text
- Line break. automatically inserts a line break when the text exceeds the right margin of the element.
- .frame:
- Selection of the border around the text (no frame, 2D, 3D)
- Font:
- Setting the font for the text to be displayed for TrueType fonts can also (bold, italic), the font size and font style can be specified.
- Font Factor: factor in order to increase the font of the selected are displayed. Not possible with TrueType fonts.accessibility:

Accessibility.

This specification defines the access rights and visibility of the element.

See chapter accessibility 'for more information.

The settings are displayed in the preview window

5.2.4.1 Exception

By pressing the button **exceptions**, a window will be opened where multiple data points of type bit can be selected. These data points can vary a foreground and background colors are assigned to be adopted by the display when the value of the data point is equal to 1.

Data point:

Selection of data points cause the color change (type of variable-bit)

Foreground, the background:

Selecting the color palette on Text-/background color **Cycle time:**

Is only activated when the display type "text" is selected. Cycle time at which the data points to be queried.

5.2.4.2 Type: "field value"

In the type **value field**, the value of the selected point will be issued as a text in the display field.

Data Point:

The selection of the data point

Variable Type:

Indicates the type of the selected data point.

Before and after the comma:

Setting the required accuracy. Is specified at a point one decimal integer data it will be interpreted as a power of ten. Is e.g. data set at a value of 1437 decimal point to 2 appears in the display field, the value 14:37.

Indexed / Relative Offset:

For array data points the rel.Offset = the index of the data point can be specified. Activate the checkbox "Indexed".

Unit View:

Enabling this option displays extended to the projected data point for the unit.

Leading zeros:

Represent numbers with leading zeros (max VK-digits).

Hexadecimal:

display is in hexadecimal representation

Cycle time:

manual eStudio V2.91





The cycle time with the data point is queried.

Failure display text:

If this option is activated in the event of a failure of the data point (e.g. failure can-bus) a freely definable text displayed. This text can be entered in the input field or from existing texts will be selected.

5.2.4.3 Type "value-dependent text"

In type **dependent text value** can be displayed for a data point of type bit two texts depending on the value.

Data point:

Selection of the data point

Text0 / Text1:

Here are the two texts entered or selected to be displayed. Is the value of the data point 0, the text 0 is output, otherwise Text 1.

Indexed / Rel Offset:

For the array of data points can be specified the rel.Offset = index of the data point. Activate the checkbox "Indexed".

Cycle time:

Cycle time at which the data point is queried.

Failure display text:

If this option is activated, in the event of a failure of the data point (e.g. failure can-bus) a freely definable text displayed. This text can be entered in the input field or from existing texts will be selected.

5.2.4.4 Type data point"

In type **data point** can be either the name or description of a data point are displayed.

Data point:

Selection of the data point

Display Type:

Select whether the name or description will be displayed

Indexed / Relative Offset:

Wertfeld	Werl	abhängiger Text	Datenpunkt	Tex	t Tex	tüberlog. ID		
Datenpu	unkt:				Ē	Indiziert	Rel. Offset: 0	
Text 0:					Ē	Zykluszeit:	1 sec 💌	
Text 1:						_		
					_	Ausfalltext	anzeigen	
								_

Wertfeld Wer	tabhängiger Text Datenpunkt Text Text über log. ID
Datenpunkt:	🗾 🗖 Indiziert Rel. Offset
Anzeigetyp:	Datenpunkt

For the array of data points can rel.Offset = index of the data point can be specified. To do so, checkbox fileld "Indexed".

5.2.4.5 Typ "text"

At type text there will be displayed an arbitrary fixed text.

Text:

Here, the text to display can be entered or selected.

√ertfeld Ì	Wertabhängiger T	ext Datenpunkt	Text	Text über log. ID	
Text				3	

5.2.4.6 Type "text via log. ID"

With the type **text via log. ID** can be displayed on a text to its logical ID. The value of the selected data point it represents the logical ID of the text.

Data point:

Selection of the data point

Cycle time:

Cycle time at which the data point is queried.

Indexed / Rel offset:

For array data points can be specified the rel.Offset = the index of the data point. To do so, Checkboxfeld "Indexed".

Wertfeld Wertabhängiger Text Datenpunkt Text Text über log. ID

Datenpunkt:		☐ Indiziert Zykluszeit:	Rel. Offset: 🗍 1 sec 💌	i i

5.2.5 The key element

The element "button" is used to enter the value for data points with the data type bit.

By double-clicking on the element is an options window opens in which the element is configured.

At key element it will be distinguished between "bitmap","text" and "invisible" A selection of the type will be carried out by selecting the appropriate tab.

Element Taster	×
Datenpunkt: Zugänglichkeit	Indicient Rel Offset
Bitmap Text	Unsichtbar
Bitmap 0:	
Bitmap 1:	
X-Pos:	191
Y-Pos:	106
Rahmen:	30 -
Tastenanzahl:	0 (Touchscreen) 🔽 🗖 Tippbetrieb 🗖 Invertiert
Taste 1	Taste 2
	🕛 🔜 🔽 🛛 Tastencode: 🔍 🔜 🔽
	Aus O Ein O Binkend O Aus O Ein O Binkend
OK	Abbrechen

Data point:

Selection of data to change the point.

Accessibility:

This specification defines the access rights and visibility of the element. **See chapter accessibility 'for more information**

Indexed / Relative Offset:

For array data points can be specified the rel.Offset = the index of the data point. Activate the checkbox "Indexed".

By reading back:

If this option is enabled, the data point will be read cyclic in the set time.

Jog mode:

If this option is activated by pressing and releasing the associated key on the console then the value of the data point will be inverted and written.

Number of Keys:

If the jog mode can be set off if the operator of the element through one or two buttons on the console is to be made.

1 Key: By pressing the corresponding button on the console, the data point value is set to '1 and written. After repeated pressing the same button, the value is reset to '0 'and written.

2 buttons (not touch): By pressing the first button, the data point value is set to '1 'and written. When you press the second button, the value is set to '0 'and written.

0 keys (touch screen): When pressing the controls on the screen, the data point value is set to'1 'and written. After repeated pressing the same button, the value is reset to '0 'and written.

Inverted:

Reverses the function keys to, i.e. from the state 0 (off), the switching state 1 (a) and from the switching

condition 1 (one), the switching state 1 (off)

Tastencode1 / key code 2:

The key code can either be chosen from any of the existing hexadecimal values in the combo box, or by a button **a** a window can be opened that displays the layout of the control panel. Here it can be selected by simply clicking the mouse on an LED.

Code1 LED / LED Code 2:

The LED code can either be chosen from any of the existing hexadecimal values in the combo box, or by a button **m** a window can be opened that displays the layout of the control panel. Here it can be selected by simply clicking the mouse on an LED.

Off / On / Flashing:

Selects the display of the button state by LEDs. The LED may be for the "on" status to on, off, or flashing be set.

5.2.5.1 Typ " bitmap"

When bitmap type are used to represent the switch state two bitmaps.

Bitmap 0:

Here, a bitmap for the "off" state can be selected.

Bitmap 1:

Here, a bitmap for the "on" state can be selected.

X-Pos., Y-Pos.:

Coordinates of the upper-left corner of the button on the mask.

Framework

The selection of the frame to the bitmap. (No Frame, 2D Frame, 3D frame)

5.2.5.2 Typ " text"

In type text are used to represent the switch state of two texts

Text 0:

Here is the text to be displayed for the "off" state is entered or selected





 \square

0 53

-

OK Abbrechen



Text1:

The text to be displayed can be selected and entered for the condition "on "

Element arrangement

- X-Pos., Y-Pos.:
- Coordinates of the upper left corner of the button on the mask
- Width / Height:
- Adjusting the width and height of the button by entering the key width and height button. By pressing the buttons of the input fields can be resized automatically to the length or height of the text.

Item attributes

• Frame:

Selection of the border around the element. (no frames, 2D frames, 3D frame)

- Font:
 - Setting the font of the text to be displayed.

For TrueType fonts can also specified the font size and font style(can be specified.

• Fontfaktor:

Faktor um den der gewählte Font vergrößert dargestellt werden soll. Nicht möglich bei TrueType-Schriftarten.

Font Factor:

Factor by which the selected font is to be enlarged. Not possible with true type fonts

Colors:

Foreground, Background:

• The selection of colors for the button.

The settings are displayed in the preview pane.

5.2.5.3 Type "invisible"

With the type "invisible" there will be no representation of the button state on the mask

Arrangement of the element

X-Pos, Y Pos.:

Coordinates of the upper left corner of the button. Serves only to represent the element in the designer.

5.2.6 The element image

From version V2.9x various image formats used contact.

The image element is used for displaying bitmaps.

The element image is located at a position X, Y. The height and width results from the size of the bitmap, it can be a bitmap with a variety of factors $(0.5 \dots 4)$ are shown.

By double-clicking on the element is the window "Image element" opened, in which the element is configured

file (BMP):

Select a bitmap file from directory <Project \ <device namen> \ bitmaps

Factor:

Setting the zoom factor for the bitmap.

Transparent

If this option is enabled, the bitmap is transparent. Here, the color of the upper-left pixel of the bitmap is assumed to be background color and not all pixels of that color drawn.

Element array:

Placement of the upper left corner of the bitmap to the X / Y position on the current screen.

Cycle time:

Cycle time at which the data point is queried.

Accessibility:

This specification defines the access rights and visibility of the element.

See chapter accessibility 'for more information.

Shift in position:

Upon activation of the positional displacement is shifted depending on the selected data point, the position of the bitmap to the respective integer data point value in the X and Y

Bitmap Text	Unsichtbar	
X-Pos: 161		
Y-Pos: 36	A 2	

Element Bild		×
Datei (BMP):	Faktor: 1x 💌	
Elementanordhung X-Pos: 192 Y-Pos: 39 Zykluszeit: 5 sec Y	Positionsverschiebung In X-Richtung Datenpunkt In Y-Richtung Datenpunkt III	
Zugänglichkeit	Bereiche Datenpunktabhängig Datenpunkt Indiziert Rel Offset Bereiche	
OK Abbrechen		

directions. The sampling rate of the data point is set by the combobox cycle time

5.2.6.1 Fields

Activating the option **data dependent point:** In dependence of the selected data points can be displayed several bitmaps.

For the array of data points can rel.Offset = index of the data point can be specified. Activate the checkbox "Indexed".

The following points can be entered

- Window "area"/ number: specified the number of different areas.
- Columns "from" and "to": Enter the field by the selected bitmap will be displayed.

Berei	che (Bitmap))			×
Anz	ahl: 3 🔺				
	Von (>=)	Bis (<)		Bitmap	
1.	0	1		l infosat.bmp	Ē
2.	1	÷ 2	-	l infosys.bmp	Ē
3.	2	3	-	l start2.bmp	
4.	0		i i		IE1
5.	0	-			
6.	0	-			
7.	0				
8.	0	-			
9.	0		E		151
10	0				
	OK	Abbrechen			

5.2.7 The element bargraph

To the appearance of the window to make clearer, parts of the input fields are distributed on the four tabs: "dimensions", "colors", "gradient" and "scaling".

The bar graph element is used to the output of data point values in the shape of a bar graph.

Double-clicking on the element, a options window where the element is configured will open.

Data Point:

The selection of the data point whose value is to be shown.

Cycle time:

Cycle time with the data point is queried

Type:

Selection of the bargraphtyp for presentation of the is to be used.

Right, some examples of the selectable bargraphtypen.

Notes:

Depending on the target system or settings in ElaSim not all types can be used.

bargraphen have large update times. The opening of masks with bargraphen can be taken longer than usual. As a remedy must be less bargraphen per mask be used, or the mask must be, if the application permits, constantly remain open (screen layout must not be re-calculated). A change of the masks is then done using "touchscreen menu without cancel" (see the chapter: the Control Panel > button).

Accessibility:

This specification defines the access rights and the visibility of the element.

See the chapter 'accessibility' for more information.

Element Bargraph			2
Datenpunkt: Typ: 0 V Zugänglichkeit	25 50 75 100	☐ Indiziert Zykluszeit:	Rel. Offset: 🛛 📰 1 sec 💌
Abmessungen Farben Farby	erlauf Skalierung		
Elementanodoung X-Pos: 103 Y-Pos: 149 - a Brete: 60 - a Höhe: 100	Elementatribute Lautrichtung: Rechts Von: 0 Bis: 0 Rahmen: Keiner	N R	lahmen innen: Keiner 💌
OK Abbrechen			



5.2.7.1 Dimensions

Element arrangement:

- X-pos, Y-POS :coordinates of the upper-left corner of the bargraphen on the mask
- Width/Height:width and height of the bargraphen in pixels.

Element attribute

- Direction: here can be selected in which direction the bars of the bargraphen should be built
- From / To: Here is the value range of the bargraphen set. As a proposal, the values from the assist in field Point definition for measuring range min / max used.

Frame:

- The selection of the frame to the Bargraphen (no frame, 2D, 3D)
- frame, inside: Selection of the frame which is placed to the bargraph bar (no frame, 2D, 3D

5.2.7.2 colors

On the tab colors can be adjusted the foreground color and background color of the bargraphen.

Foreground:

The color can be selected with the label text to be displayed.

Transparent background:

The bar graph is displayed on the transparent mask

Background color:

Click, the color can be selected with the background of the bar graph to display

The selected colors are displayed in the preview window

Abmessungen Farben Farb	verlauf Skalierung	
Elementanordnung	Elementattribute	
X.Pos: 111 🛨	Laufrichtung: Rechts 💌	Rahmen innen: Keiner 💌
Y-Pos: 72 +	Von: 0 🔺	
Breite: 60 🔹	Bis: 0 🔹	
Höhe: 100 🕂	Rahmen: Keiner 💌	



5.2.7.3 Gradient

On the tab **color gradient** can be set the gradient for the bar of the bargraph.

Number:

Here you can set the number of color spaces. It can up to 10 area gradations with a corresponding color be selected.

From / To:

Depending on the number of selected, the values ranges can be chosen and assigned the color by the button 😵

e.g. Range 0 .. 2 green Range 2 .. 5 yellow Range 5 .. 7 red

Background transparent:

By selecting the beam background is transparent to the bargraph background Only the foreground color is drawn on the current background.

Bar background color:

The press of the button opens a dialog box where the colors for the background bar can be selected.

Discrete course:

If this option is enabled, the output of the gradient occurs in stages.

Without this option, the entire bar in the color shown to the actual data point value is assigned.

5.2.7.4 Scaling

On the **scaling** tab settings to scale can be made of the bargraph.

Scale:

This option can be activated, indicating the scale advantages and decimal.

Places before, decimal:

Specifies the number of pre-decimal and fixed

Abmessungen	Farben	Farbverlauf	Skalierung

C Balkenhintergrund transparent 🔽 Diskreter Verlauf								
Von (>=): Bis (<)				Bis (<)			
1.	0	*	۲	6.	0		-	
2.	0		٠	7.	0		-	
3.	0		٠	8.	0		٠	
4.	0		٠	9.	0		-	
5.	0	- A-	٠	10	0		-	

Abmessungen Farben Fa	rbverlauf Skalierung	
Skalierung		
Vorkomma: 1 📩	Abstand:	0 -
Nachkomma: 0 📑	Zwischenschritte:	2 -
Peak detect	Font:	cp1252_8x8.fnt 💌
	Font Faktor:	1x 💌
Typ Daumen: 2D	•	

Peak detect:

If this option is enabled when a mark reached maximum value is displayed.

Type of thumb:

Selection of thumb type (2D, 3D). This option is only applicable if selected as a bar graph with bargraphtyp thumb e.g. Type 8

Distance:

Specifies the increment of the main scale of the bar graph.

Intermediate Steps:

Here you can enter the number of intermediate steps that will be displayed between two marks on the main scale.

Font:

Selection of the font for the text you want to display the main dial. For true fonts can also the font size and the font styel (bold, italics) may be indicated.

Font factor:

Factor to the increase of the selected font will be displayed. Not possible with TrueType fonts.

5.2.8 The element Combobox

The combo box element is used to enter values that are represented by a text. The user selects in a combo box the text.

By double-clicking on the element is an options window opens in which the element is configured.



Do you want to display only one element in a text that represents a value; you can use the combo box. Place the password level to a value that the operator can not be achieved. He can not change the value.

Disadvantage: If the element has the focus, it automatically opens the password entry.

Alternative: Make the text as a bitmap and bring it as an element for image display. Define data point depending on the checkbox and the text fields for each value

5.2.8.1 Genaral

On the general tab, the default settings for the combo box can be made.

Data point:

Selection of data to be written point.

Indexed / Relative Offset:

For array data points can rel.Offset = the index of the data point can be specified by activating the checkbox field "Indexed".

With read-back:

If this option is enabled, the data point is read cyclically in the set time and the combobox will be updated accordingly. Read only return values that.

Only these values can be read back which are in "values" actually projected.

Use as a display field:

If this option is selected then the display is like a display. An operation is not possible. With this option it is possible to display a value instead of an appropriate text

element arrangement:

X-Pos, Y Pos. Coordinates of the upper left corner of the element

Width: adaptation of the width of the element.

Font:

Setting the font for the text to be displayed. For TrueType fonts can also (bold, italic), the font size and font style can be specified.

Foreground, Background:

Selection of colors for the item.

Element Combobox			×
Allgemein Werte Zugänglich	hkeit		
Datenpunkt:			□ Indiziert
Verwendung als Anzeigere	Mit Rücklesen	1 sec 💌	
Elementanordnung	Font: Fontgröße/-stil:	Tahoma 9 ▼ F J	r
X-Pos: 104 🕂 Y-Pos: 63 🛧	Hintergrundfarbe:	Vorde	ergrundfarbe: 📕 🛞
Breite: 100	Rahmen: Scrollbalkengrö	3D <u>▼</u> iße anpassen	
	Anz. Elemente aufgeklappt:	3 💌 🗖 Uml	aufende Einträge
		ОК	Abbrechen Übernehmen

Frame:

Selection of the border around the element (no frame, 2D, 3D)

Adjust scroll bar size:

Enabling this option, the scroll Bar on the used font size is adjusted.

Number of elements unfolded:

Indicates how many rows to be displayed when the user selects the combo box.

Rotating entries:

Active only when the number 0 is unfolded elements.

If this function does not exist, the operator would use the cursor button down as always the last element. By selecting this option is the next push returns to the first element

5.2.8.2 Values

In the **Values** tab will be the individual texts defined to the combo box.

Each entry in the list box contains a text which corresponds to a data point value

Order by text:

If this option is enabled, the entries are sorted according to the text. Otherwise, a is determined by the value.

Texts / values manually:

If this option is enabled, you must define for each entry a text and a value. The value of the selected data point for this element represents the value of the entry.

You can define up to 20 items for listbox. Select "text string array" so 199 texts to be defined

Texts / values from string array:

If this option is enabled, the entries are automatically filled from a string array. The value of the selected data point for this element in the array corresponds to the index of the entry.

From, To:

Indicates the area of the string array to be used. If both values are (From / To) = 0, the entire array is used.

Texte/Werte manuell	Transparentebilder		
Wert Text	Bild	*	Neu
23 Wert23 24 Wert24			Bearbeiten
25 Wert25			
27 Werl27			Loschen
28 Wert28 29 Wert29			
		~	

5.2.8.3 Accessibility

This specification defines the access rights and visibility of the element.

See chapter accessibility 'for more information

Element Combobox	6	x
Allgemein Werte	Zugänglichkeit	
sichtbar Kennwortebene:		
nicht sichtbar wenn:	© EIN(=1) © AUS(=0)	Rel Offset:
bedienbar Kennwortebene: nicht	0 =	📷 🖬 L Indiziert
bedienbar wenn:	© EIN(=1) © AUS(=0)	Rel. Offset:
Zykluszeit:	1 sec 💌	
		OK Abbrechen Übernehmen

5.2.9 The element data logger

The element data logger is a graphical representation of actual values in the form of a graphic recorder or an XY graph.

Double-clicking the item will open an options window where the element is configured.

To make the representation of the window clear, parts are divided into 2 tabs.

5.2.9.1 General

On the General tab, Settings can be made of the data logger.

Type:

Select whether a normal graphic recorder is used, an XY chart recorder or trend (graph) to be displayed.

Context:

The selection border around the element (no frame, 2D, 3D)

Graphic color / Background color:

Select the colors for the item.

Transparent:

Select whether the background color to draw transparent. In this way, multiple graphs can also be offset.

Element arrangement:

X-Pos, Y Pos. Coordinates of the upper left corner of the element.

Width / height: width and height of the element in pixels.

Element Datenlogger		×
Allgemein Skalierung Zugänglichke	it]	
Typ: Schreiber ▼ Rahmen: Keiner ▼ Hintergrundfarbe: Schreiklarbe: Schreiklarbe:	Elementanordnung X-Pos: 19 Y-Pos: 100 Breite: 150 Höhe: 20	Graphbereich
Transparent Datenpunkt: Zykluszeit: 1 sec		Indiziert Rel. Offset:
Schiebefaktor: 0.25 - V	Interpoliert	
	OK	Abbrechen Übernehmen
5.2.9.2 Data logger as a chart recorder

Graph area Display the range, in fact the graph is plotted. This is dependent on the scale and its font. The display is useful, as graphs over one another (transparent) should be drawn and may positions have different coordinate axis, may be better positioned. The area will also be visually in the cntrol-view highlighted.

type writer:

Here, the control receives his Y-value of a data point. The X axis is time controlled.

Data point: Select the data point whose value is to be shown.

Indexed / Relative Offset:

For array data points can rel.Offset = the index of the data point can be specified. To do so, checkbox field "Indexed".

Cycle time:

Cycle time with which the data point is queried.

Shift factor: Factor by which the graph should be shifted to the left when the graph reaches the right margin.

Interpolate:

Selection, whether the graph in stair form or interpolated (straight line between two points) should be drawn.

Factor:

Factor, the value is applied for display.

Offset:

Offset to the value is applied for display.

Scaling for type writers

On the Scale tab, settings for scaling the data logger can be made. This affects both the range of the graph and the labeling of the axes.

Coordinates: Enables drawing the axes and labels

Ordinate:

• From, To: field of the y-axis values (even if it is not drawn)

Increments:

An indication, in the intervals at which a scale of values to be drawn (in the unity of the data point

Position:

• X-Positioning of the axis. This is especially useful in transparent graph, since several scaling can be plotted

Annotation:

• An indication as to whether a scaling for the ordinate axis with values should be drawn.

Font:

• The selection of the font for the values to be displayed. For true fonts can also the font size and the style (bold, italics) may be indicated.

Abscissa: •

- Display Area: Time range of the abscissa
- Increment: indication, at what intervals (sec) a scale with time values to be drawn

Caption:

Whether scaling is to be drawn for the x-axis with time values

Font:

- Setting the font for the values to be displayed
- For TrueType fonts can also (bold, italic), the font size and font style can be specified

Select time format:

Identify how the time axis is interpreted. hh: mm: ss = absolute indication of the actual time mm: ss = relative time from starting ss = relative time from starting



5.2.9.3 Data logger as an X-Y chart

Type XY-diagram

This gives the control to be displayed both: the X values and Y values as arrays. These are produced by CoDeSys locally or generated by a device.

Data points X-Array/Y-Array:

Transfer of values to be displayed in arrays.

Data points Index-Start/Index-End:

The arrays can be specified as a circular buffer. What values will be displayed from the array is located on the index. Is the end <start, there is the number of displayed values of max (array size X, Y array size) - index start + index + 1 end

Trigger1/Trigger2 data points:

Is neither Trigger1 nor Trigger2 specified, the data point start / end is checked for changes. If the value changes, the graph with the new values will be displayed.

Is given only Trigger1, the graph is redrawn when the value is 1. The data point is from ElaDesign again set to 0.

If Trigger1 and Trigger2 are specified, is the new representation, if these values are different. ElaDesign then sets the value of the value of Trigger1 Trigger2. An indication of Trigger2 alone is ignored.

Cycle time index / Trigger:

Cycle time associated with these data points can be queried

Factor:

Factor that the Y-array is acted upon to render

Offset:

Offset, the Y-array is acted upon to render.

Element Datenlogger		×
Allgemein Skalierung Zugänglichke	eit	
Typ: XY-Diagramm	Elementanordnung X-Pos: 19 👗	Graphbereich X-Pos: 28
Hintergrundfarbe:	Y-Pos: 100 + Breite: 150 +	Y-Pos: 107 Breite: 134
Transparent	Höhe: 20	Höhe: 4
Datenpunkt X Array: Datenpunkt Y Array:		Faktor: 1 💼
Datenpunkt Index Start:		ai □ X Array einmalig Iesen
Datenpunkt Trigger 1: Datenpunkt Trigger 2:	[i	
Zykluszeit Index/Trigger: 1 sec	<u> </u>	
	OK	Abbrechen Übernehmen

Scaling for type XY graph:

On the Scale tab, can be made settings for scaling the data logger.

This affects both the range of the graph and the labeling of the axes.

- range of values of the ordinate (even if it is not drawn
- coordinates: Enables drawing the axes and labels
- Position: X-axis positioning. This is especially useful for transparent graph, since then several scales can be drawn.
- Increment: Indicates how frequently should be drawn to scale with values (in units of the data point)
- Labeling: Whether to draw a scale for the y-axis with values.
- Font: Setting the font for the displayed values. For TrueType fonts can also (bold, italic), the font size and font style can be specified.
- Unit: Unit display

Abscissa:

- From, To:
- range of values of the x-axis (even if it is not drawn)
- coordinates: Enables drawing the axes and labels
- Increment: Indicates how frequently a scale with values should be drawn to (in units of the data point)
- Labeling: Whether to draw a scale for the y-axis with values.
- Font: Setting the font for the displayed values
- For TrueType fonts can also (bold, italic), the font size and font style can be specified.
- Unit: Unit display on the right axis range

Ingenient erranorang [Zugangiichkeik]	
Ordinate	Abszisse
Von: 0	Von: 0 🚍
Bis: 100 🗮	Bis: 100
🔽 Koordinate anzeigen	Koordinate anzeigen
Position: 0	
Schrittweite: 100	Schrittweite: 60
Beschriftung	E Beschriftung
Font: Tahoma	Font: cp1252_8x8.fnt
Fontgröße: 9 💌	
Fontstil: F X	
Finheit 📼	Fisheit E
Einneit.	

5.2.9.4 Data Logger Type Graph

From eStudio V2.91 a two-channel data logger has been integrated.

In the Project Management can use the desired trend chart from the list of data points be defined:

The cycle time of 30 seconds is a fixed setting.



The storage path for the data plot ".\<Month>-<Year>"

E.g.

".\06-2012"

is relative to the runtime. The runtime can be started by CF, USB flash drive or internal flash. Data that are older than 2 months will be automatically deleted.

For Data point and day a file will be created.

"DPktID<Nr><Tag>-<Monat>-<Jahr>.txt"

DPktID3000018_14-06-2012.txt

For the design of the evaluation mask a lot of degrees of freedom are given.

 ndividual measurements can be integrated as a display element



11 KB

The selection of the individual commands is do

nds is done by function key	Format Funktion	Zugänglichkeit
+	Schalttyp: Graphfunktion:	Graphfunktion Aktuelle Daten
In the switching types for		
Graphfunktion 🔹		
Zoom vergrößern 🔹		
Zoom vergrößern		
Zoom verkleinen		
Zoom original		
Aktuelle Daten		
Scrollen links		
Scrollen reakte		
Scroll Ende		
Cursor links		OK Abbrechen Obernehmen
Cursor rechts		J
Cursor Ein/Aus		

Element Funktionstaster

the possible switching functions are predefined.

The selection of the date is via a •

4.06.2012

Field with data point (here for example "trend data")

Element Eingabe						x
Datenpunkt: Variablentyp: Zugänglichkeit Normal Unsichtt	TrendDatum Datumsangabe			ndiziert Mit Rückle 1 sec	Rel. Offset: 0 esen	×
Elementanordn X-Pos: 30 Y-Pos: 320 Breite: 88 Höhe: 18		Farben Vordergrund: Hintergrund: Focus Vordergr: Focus Hintergr:		ab	CABC	
Elementattribute Vorkomma: Nachkomma: Ziffernweis Linksbünd Format:	e 10 • • 0 • • ig Jullen dd.MM.yyyy	Rahmen: Font: Font Faktor: Maßeinheit Passwort - 14.06.2012	Keiner Ela13x7.f 1x	TNT	T	
ОК	Abbrechen					

x

- In the element data logger a data point have to be set for the date of entry and the date of control
- The data point for the control date "data trigger" causes with the value "1", the transfer of the entered date. The return value it delivers either "0" for no error or "1" for error.

Datumsauswahl:	TrendDatum
Datumstrigger:	iSetDatum

and each channel has a data point "cursor", which contains the respective cursor position

Datenp	ounkt	1:		
fTrend <u>.</u>	_03			
_			 	

Cursor: fTrend_03HMI

This data point can be used to display the current cursor position. Here is no data point specified, the display of the cursor position is right on the cursor itself Element Datenlogger Allgemein Skalierung Zugänglichkeit Datenspeicherung Elementanordnung Graphbereich Typ: Graph X-Pos: 10 -X-Pos: 17 Rahmen: Keiner * 27 20 Y-Post Y-Pos: Hintergrundfarbe: ۲ * 630 Breite: 616 Breite: Grafikfarbe: 290 * Höhe: 272 Höhe: 📝 Transparent 🚔 Datumsauswahl: TrendDatum Schiebefaktor: 0.25 Datumstrigger: iSetDatum **11** Interpoliert Dicke: 0 * Datenpunkt 2: Datenpunkt 1: fTrend_03 fTrend_04 Cursor: [Trend_03HM] Cursor: [Trend_04HM] **1** Grafikfarbe: Grafikfarbe: ۲ 📝 Sichtbar 📝 Sichtbar Faktor: 1 ÷ Offset: 0 -Offset: 0 * Faktor: 1 ŧ OK Abbrechen Übernehmen

This gives the control over its Y-value data points. It allows up to 2 Y values. The X axis is time controlled.

Shift factor:

Factor regarding the length of abscissa to the left or right of the graph to be moved when the view is scrolled area.

Enhanced:

Select whether graph in the form of stairs or interpolated (straight line between two points) to be drawn

Thickness:

Line thickness in pixels, with each line of the graph is shown.

Date selection:

Data point on which the date is set, for which the writers graphic to appear. The current date means that the writer writes and



displays the current curves. The last date shows only the already-recorded curves.

Trigger Date:

Data point, which led to a value that the writers graphic is loaded for the specified date. This data point is from ElaDesign on success again set to 0. If an error on the data point then the value -1.

Data point 1/2:

The writer can be 1 or 2 data points are represented as channels. In the respective data points, the Y values of the corresponding channel to be included.

Data Points 1/2 cursor:

Data points on which the respective Y value at the current cursor position is displayed. These are described by ElaDesign and can be used to view. In case there are no data points are specified, the current cursor position is displayed at the cursor bar

Data point 1/2 Graphics Color:

Choice of color for the first curve and 2 Channel.

Data point 1/2 Visible:

Select whether the curve is shown for the corresponding channel

Data point 1/2 factor:

Factor by which the respective value is multiplied for display.

Data point 1/2 offset:

Offset, the respective value is applied for display.

Scaling for Graph Type:

On the Scale tab, settings for scaling the data logger can be made. This affects both the range of the graph and the labeling of the axes.

• gezeichnet werden soll.

Ordinate 1/2:

- From, To:
- Range of values of the ordinate for first and 2 Channel (even if they are not shown).

Coordinates:

Enables drawing the axes and labels. The axis for the 1st channel is on the left side and the drawn for the 2nd channel on the right side



Position: X-positioning of the axes.

• This is particularly useful for transparent graph, since then several scales can be drawn.

Increments

• Information in which intervals the scale with values should be drawn. (in units of the data point).

caption:

• Whether to draw a scale for the ordinate of values

Font:

• Select the font for the displayed values. For TrueType fonts can also (bold, italic) font size and font style can be specified.

Abscissa:

Display area: time range of the abscissa.

Increments

• Information should be drawn at what intervals (sec) with a scaling value.

Caption:

• Whether scaling is to be drawn to the abscissa value.

Font:

- Select the font for the values to be displayed.
- For True Type fonts can also (bold, italic) font size and font style can be specified

5.2.9.5 Accessibility

This specification defines the access rights and visibility of the element.

See chapter "accessibility" for more information



5.2.10 The member function button (for touchscreen)

The member function button is used to select individual masks and functions that were not bound to keys. It can be buttons, picture buttons and mask are set, which when clicked will execute the function. Double-clicking the item will open an options window where the element is configured. To make the representation of the window clear, the parts are divided into 2 tabs.

5.2.10.1 Format

The following types of a function key to choose from:

- Image
- Text
- Range

Generally, the following settings:

Element array:

- X-Pos, Y Pos.:
- Coordinate the upper left corner of the control.

Image Type:

Picture: Here you can choose to display a bitmap of the button.

Frame:

Selection of the border around the element (no frame, 2D, 3D)

Element Funktionstaster	×
Format Funktion Zugänglichkeit	
Typ: Bild Elementanordnung X-Pos: 51 = Y-Pos: 78 =	
Bild:	
OK Abbrechen Opernehme	ñ

Typ Text:

- Text: the text to be displayed can be entered or selected.
- Font: selection of fonts, with the value to be displayed in the input field. For TrueType fonts can also (bold, italic), the font size and font style can be specified.
- Font Factor: factor to be enlarged to the selected font will be displayed. Not possible with TrueType fonts.
- • Width / Height: adjust the width and height of the control.
- Foreground, Background color selection of the control
- Frame: Selection of the border around the element (no



<u>Type area:</u>

• Width / Height: adjust the width and height of the area in which the user clicks. A control is not visible at runtime



5.2.10.2 Function

On this tab, the function of the touch keys is defined.

The selection is similar to the control button is defined by a key

Switch Type:

Here, the function type can be set. According to the selection are then the other fields of the control of meaning. The following switch types

Not used:

The control has no function in this screen.

Follow- mask with Cancel:

• Use the radio button for **follow-mask**, a mask would be chosen to be open when you press the button. The current screen is closed.

Follow-mask without Cancel:

• About the radio button for **follow-mask**, a mask can get selected to be open when you press the button. The current form is not closed.

Close the mask:

• The current screen is closed.

Element Funktionsta	ster X
Format Funktion	ugänglichkeit
Schalttyp:	Folgemaske mit Abbrechen
Folgemaske:	START
Datenpu	nkt Operator Wert
Offset:	
Modul:	
	OK Abbrechen Ubernehmen

Function keys

The button is assigned to a virtual key code. The selection of these codes is done through the combo **virtual key code**.

Element Funktion Zugänglichkelt

Element Funktionst	aster	×
Format Funktion	Zugänglichkeit	
Schaltyp: Fensterfunktion:	Fensterfunktion	
	OK Abbrechen Ü <u>b</u> ernehmen	





Window function

Move the window up, down, left, right: a window on the display moves in that direction. It is horizontally by the width of the system fonts and moved vertically by the height of the system fonts.

Datapointfunction

Data point increment or decrement /: Increases or decreases the specified data point.

Data point changes: Changes the specified data point corresponding to the selected operator (+, -, =).

Alarm / event function

Single acknowledgment / Delete:

Press the button, the selected element of alarm-/event list the current mask, which is in the tab order before the function buttons, acknowledged or cleared. Pending alarms are not immediately removed from the list, but only when they are gone.

Group acknowledgment / Delete all:

If the button is pressed all be elements of Alarm-/event list the current mask, which is in the tab order before the function buttons, acknowledged or cleared. Pending alarms are not immediately removed from the list, but only when they are gone. Recipe function

Download: Read the recipe file that is specified by the selected data point, and describes the data points contained the stored values in the recipe. This is already present the values will not be saved.

Save:

Saves the current values of the contained in the selected recipe definition without a recipe object on data points in a recipe files, by the selected data point is commanded

Save at: Saves the current values of the definition contained in the selected recipe data points in a recipe file that is specified by the selected data point. If this already exists, the values will not be saved.

Delete: Deletes the selected data point specified by the recipe file.

Graph function:

Cursor An / Aus: Schaltet den Cursor aus oder ein.

Zoom: enlarges the view by the time range of the abscissa is reduced.

Zoom Out: Zooms out by the time range of the abscissa is enlarged.

Zoom Original: If the original projected image size Restore.

Current Data: Displays data for the current date.

Scroll left: Moves the current view of the shift factor to the left.

Start scrolling: move the current view to the start of data recording.

Scroll right: Moves the current view of the sliding factor on the right.

Scroll End: Moves the current view on the end of data recording.

Cursor left: Moves the cursor to a data value to the left. When leaving the window, the cursor is turned off.

Cursor right: Moves the cursor to a data value to the right. When leaving the window, the cursor is turned off.

Format Funktionst	aster Zugänglichkeit				
Schalttyp: Bezeptfunktion:	Rezeptfunktion	•] 1		
Datenpunkt:	Laden Speichern Speichern unter Löschen	_		Rel. Offset	t : 0 😤
		OK			Ohemele

E	lement Funktionsta	ister
	Format Funktion	Zugänglichkeit
	Schalttyp:	Graphfunktion
	Graphfunktion:	Aktuelle Daten
		Zoom vergrößern Zoom verkleinen Zoom original Aktuelle Daten Scrollen links Scroll Anfang Scrollen rechts Scroll Ende Lursol links Cursol rinks Cursol rechts Cursol rein/Aus
		OK Abbrechen Obernehmen

Further functions:

Menu, select: Is the mask a menu associated with it can be activated by this button. Within the menu can be moved using the cursor keys. Stops will be escaped.

Reset input field: Password Reset level: Allows a user can log out of his rights. For controls with password level is now absolutely necessary to re-input.

Keypad open: Opens an edit window when an input field has focus.

End of program (CE only): End of ElaDesign

Virtual key code:

f you have chosen as a switching type "function keys", you can assign a function to the control. The following functions are available:

Number 0 - Figure 9: inserts the number 0-9 in an input field.

ENTER: confirms input in a field and writes the data point value.

Decimal Point: Inserts a decimal point in an input field

Increment+: increasing the value of the input field that has the input focus to first Decrement -: decreases the value of the input field that has the input focus to first

Default: inserts into the input field that has the input focus, the initial value of the associated data point name.

Cursor left, right, up, down: the input focus to the next / previous field.

Escape: leaves an input field without modification of the data point menu

Unide	- Grittion	Zugariglici ikel
Schalt	typ:	Graphfunktion 👻
Graph	funktion:	Aktuelle Daten 👻
		Zoom verkleinen Zoom original Aktuelle Daten Scrollen inks Scroll Ende Scroll Ende Cursor Enks Cursor tenks Cursor tenks
		OK Abbrechen Ogemehmen

Format Funktion Zug	änglichkeit
Schalttyp: weitere Funktion:	weitere Funktion
	OK Abbrechen Übernehmen

Special feature:

If you define a form as a template (more on this below background image), you have the ability to control the template accordingly.

Generate a mask with a template function and assign data points that reflect each of the module number and / or offset. If such a mask opened, all data points that are templates capable (array data points or many variables firmware) exchanged with the corresponding index.

About the element Touchkey you can now control this template data points and so simple functions such as Next / Back with a mask and generate the same data at different target points.

Select order as switching type "sequence mask Cancel" or "sequence mask without Cancel" and an operator with the correct value.

5.2.10.3 Accessibility

This specification defines the access rights and visibility of the element.

See chapter accessibility 'for more information

nicht sichtbar wenn:		
	CEIN(EI) CAUS(EU)	Rel. Uffset:
bedienbar Kennwortebene:		
		🔲 🗊 🗖 Indiziert
	© EIN(=1) C AUS(=0)	Rel. Offset: 0 📩
Zykluszeit:	1 sec 💌	

5.2.11 The element list

The item list is used to display alarms and events. Here, binary data points are monitored. If an alarm or an event is generated, an entry in the list. The definition of the monitored data points are in project management within the alarm definition.

The statement of element controls the visual appearance and operation. Within the list can be moved using the cursor keys

Alarms can be acknowledged via keyboard or touch keys and will be removed from the list.

Events will remain. If the event buffer is full, the oldest entries are overwritten.

It can create separate lists for alarms and events.

5.2.11.1 General

The following settings can be made:

Type:

The list is filled out by either alarm data points or only events. Alarms can be acknowledged also

Class:

Filter for a class that can be specified in the alarm definition

Eement arrangement:

X-Pos., Y-Pos. Coordinates of the upper left corner of the element on the screen.

Width / Height:

Adjusting the width and height of the element.

Font

Setting the font of the text to be displayed. For TrueType fonts can also (bold, italic), the font size and font style can be specified.

Foreground color, background color

Selection of colors for the item

frame:

Selection of the border around the element. (no frames, 2D frames, 3D frame)

Scrollbars resize:

Enabling this option, the scroll Bar on the used font size is adjusted.

Acknowledgement key

Choose one button

lement Liste			×
Allgemein Spalten/Zeilen Zu	gänglichkeit		
Typ: Alarmliste	Klasse:		
Elementanordnung	Font:	cp1252_8x8.fnt	•
Y-Pos: 127 Breite: 100 Höhe: 50	Vordergrundfarbe: Hintergrundfarbe: Rahmen:	3D V	
Scrollbalkengröße anpasse Tasten Quittierung: Keinbalkengröße anpasse	n I 🖬 💭	$\overline{\langle}$	
Sammelquittierung: Kein>			
		K Abbrechen	Übernehmen

When this button is pressed, the selected element of the alarm list will be acknowledged.

Pending alarms are not immediately removed from the list, but only after they leave.

In addition, the acknowledgment is generated with an entry in the alarm list entry in a list of any event that indicates when acknowledged.

Key group acknowledgment:

Choose one button.

When this button is pressed, all elements of the list of acknowledged alarm, sufficient for the user's rights. Pending alarms are not immediately removed from the list, but only after they leave.

In addition, the acknowledgment is generated with an entry in the alarm list entry in a list of any event that indicates when acknowledged.

Note:

Do you have a touch screen; you can set the group acknowledgment to the acknowledgment and touch keys.

5.2.11.2 Colums/ rows

Columns:

Please specify which columns are displayed in the list. Drag the item on the screen correspondingly large

Each column, you can also enter a headline. Type this, or select it from the text table.

Date column

In this column the date is displayed in the appropriate format.

Time column:

This column displays the time in the appropriate format This field indicates the time in the appropriate format.

Status column:

This column tells you why the entry was created in the list.

- = C = Coming
- = G = Is Going
- = A = Acknowledged acknowledged alarms (only in the event list)

Class column: This column indicates the class of the entry.

Column text: This column displays the text of the alarm / event.

Headings Hide If this option is selected so no headers on the columns will appear.

Row colors: Here, separate colors for

Element Liste			×
Allgemein Spalten/Zeilen Zugänglichkei Spalten Überschrift: Datum Datum dd MM 08.12 V Uhrzeit Zeit HH:mrss - 09.12.40 V Status S V Klasse K V Text Bezeichnuu Überschriften ausbienden	t Zeilenfarben Kommend Gehend Quittiert		
	OK	Abbrechen	<u>Ob</u> ernehmen

5.2.11.3 Accessibility

This specification defines the access rights and visibility of the element.

See chapter accessibility 'for more information.



5.2.12 The element rectangle

The rectangular element is used purely for visual representation for example Highlighting, boundaries, groupings

5.2.12.1 Rectangle

The following settings can be made:

Element arrangement:.

- X-Pos, Y Pos. Coordinates of the upper left corner of the element on the screen.
- Width / Height: adjust the width and height of the element.

transparent:

• Selection of whether the item should be rendered with transparency. This is for example useful for groups.

fill Color:

• interior color of the rectangle

frame:

• Selection of the border around the element. (no frames, 2D frames, frame 3D Engrave, 3D frame Increases)

Color of the frame 1-4:

- Presentation of the frame. In a 2D frame, only one can be selected.
- For 3D framework is designed as follows: 3D





3D increases



5.2.12.2 Accessibility

This specification defines the access rights and visibility of the element.

See chapter accessibility 'for more information.

ement Rechteck				
Rechteck Zugäng	ichkeit			
sichtbar Kennwortebene:				
nicht			🖬 🗊 🗖 Indiziert	
sichtbar wehn:	C EIN(=1)	C AUS(=0)	Rel. Offset:	
nicht				
bedienbar wenn:	EIN(=1)	C AUS(=0)	Rel. Offset: 0	
7.11				
∠ykiuszeit:	I sec			
		OK	Abbrechen Obern	ehme

5.2.13 The element line

The line element is only used for visual representation for example Highlighting, boundaries, and groupings.

It can be straight and oblique lines are generated.

5.2.13.1 Line

The following settings can be made

Element arrangement

X-Pos, Y Pos. Coordinates of the upper left corner of the element on the screen.

X2-Pos, Pos-Y2. Coordinates of the lower-right corner of the element on the screen.

Tilted line:

For oblique lines. The normal view from the top left to bottom right. Tilted lines running from lower left to upper right.

Color:

Color of the line.

Thickness:

Line thickness in pixels.

5.2.13.2 Accessibility

This specification defines the access rights and visibility of the element.

See chapter accessibility 'for more information.

Element Linie			2
Linie Zugänglichkeit Elementanordnung X-Pos: 162 a Y-Pos: 22 a X2-Pos: 223 a Y2-Pos: 60 a Linie gekippt	Farbe: Dicke:	1	E
		OK	Abbrechen

sichtbar Kennwortebene:				
nicht			📰 🗊 🗖 Indiziert	
sicritual wehn.	€ EIN(=1)	C AUS(=0)	Rel. Offset: 0	-
bedienbar Kennwortebene:				
			📑 🔲 Indiziert	
	€ EIN(=1)	C AUS(=0)	Rel. Offset: 0	-
Zukluszeit	1 sec			

5.2.14 The element listbox

The element is a rectangle that contains a list of texts (such as recipes), from which the user can select. The selected text represents the value of the data point, which was assigned to the item

By double-clicking the element you can set the properties.



5.2.14.1 General

The following settings can be made

Element Listbox			×
Allgemein Werte Zugänglich	nkeit		
Datenpunkt:	en		🗖 Indiziert Rel. Offset: 🚺 🚔
Elementanoudhung X-Pos: 34 ar Y-Pos: 35 ar Breite: 174 ar Höhe: 132 ar	Mit Rücklesen Font: Fontgröße/-stil: Vordergrundfarbe: Hintergrundfarbe: Rahmen:	1 sec Tahoma 3 F X S S S	×
		OK Ab	brechen Übernehmen

Data point:

Selecting the value to be written.

The following data point types are supported: byte, byte pos, word, word, pos, double word, double word pos, float, text and variable text....

Indexed / Rel offset:

Array of data points can be used for rel. Offset = index of the data point can be specified. To do so, checkbox field "Indexed".

Only values can be read back which are configured.

By reading back:

If set, the data point is read cyclically in the set time and updates the list box accordingly

Element arrangement:

• X-Pos, Y Pos. Coordinates of the upper left corner of the element

Width / Height:

• adjust the width and height of the element

Vordergrund, Hindergrund:

• Auswahl der Farben für das Element

Font:

Choose the font for the text to be displayed. For TrueType fonts can also (bold, italic), the font size and font style can be specified.

frame:

• Selection of the border around the element (no frame, 2D, 3D)

Scrollbars resize:

• Selecting this option will adjust the scroll bar size used in the font.

Example: listbox

· Font: ELA	7×5 :	÷	• •
Wert1			
Wert0		1	
Wert2			
Wert3			-

with activation " custom scroll bar size "

Font: ELA 21×1	1 · · · ·
Wert1	
Wert2	
Wert3	•

Available width of the scrollbar setting under eStudio 2.84

elements	possible	eStudio	Runtime
Combobox	Х	-	Х
Listbox	Х	х	Х
List	x	-	Х
Data logger	-	-	-
Picture	-	-	-
Field	-	-	-
Output field	-	-	-
Bargraph	-	-	-
Button	-	-	-

5.2.14.2 Values

The following settings can be made:

Each entry in the list box containing a text and / or an image that corresponds / the data point with a value

Order by text:

If this option is enabled, the entries are sorted according to the text. Otherwise, a classifying is determined by the value.

Texts / values from string arrays

If this option is enabled, you must define for each entry a text and a value. If the selected data point for this element of type text or variable text, the text of the selected entry is written to or read from this data point. Apart from this the value of the entry is used.

You can define up to 30 entries

Select "text string array" so 199 texts to be defined.

From, To:

Indicates the area of the string array to be used. If both values (From / To) = 0, the entire array is used.

5.2.14.3 Accessibility

This specification defines the access rights and visibility of the element.

See chapter accessibility 'for more information.

×
ransparentebilder
Bild Neu
Bearbeiten
Löschen
🗾 Von: 0 📑 Bis: 0 📑
OK Abbrechen Übernehmen

ment Listbox		
Allgemein Werte	Zugänglichkeit	
sichtbar Kennwortebene:		
nicht sichtbar wenn:	Indiziert	
	C EIN(=1) C AUS(=0) Rel. Offset: 0	3
bedienbar		
nicht		
bedienbar wenn:		-
Zykluszeit:	1 sec 💌	
	OK Abbrechen	Übernehm

5.3 Default masks

If you create the first mask to the device, automatically the designer will be generated the following masks: ! DEFAULT_DESKTOP! DEFAULT_COMPONENTS. These have a special function in the system

5.3.1 !DEFAULT_DESKTOP

The Mask! DEFAULT_DESKTOP is displayed when no other form is open. Made for devices with keys in this mask, the default assignment of individual keys

5.3.2 !DEFAULT_COMPONENTS

The Mask! DEFAULT_COMPONENTS contains one element for each type, including a background image. The settings of these elements serve as a template when a new item is inserted into a mask. Thus, the cost of adding new elements can be substantially reduced. Also is transmitted to the target system, only the difference of an element corresponding to the mask! DEFAULT_COMPONENTS, which leads to a significant reduction in the amount of data.

If the mask! DEFAULT_COMPONENTS a new element to be assigned as a template to select that item in the current screen and then select the **Edit** menu, select the menu item **assigning them as standard**.

5.3.3 Creating default elements

A "hidden" highlight of eStudio is that the users are given the chance, for each graphic element called a prototype for his needs to adapt and thus to save space.

This means that a mask is created, and for example an input field is inserted, so this field has all the "features" of a field prototype. This may correspond to either the elrest standard or custom field.

This fact makes the following representation clearly:

Fixed default values in the system are implemented for graphical elements. Provided no further information is available, this used eStudio.

At the start of the resource generator or the mask designer a file name "Resgen.set" from the \ Elasoft \ eStudio \ is read. This file represents the default setting for the eStudio installation on the computer. If this file is not found, the resource generator generates a compiler run this file from the system default values

Once a mask has been created in design software for a device that automatically generates the mask with the name "! DEFAULT_COMPONENTS". In this screen exists a prototype for each graphical element, which is taken as default for more masks.

I.e. change the background color of the mask on black background, then all future masks with the black background creates a default value.

The Resource Generator, however, reads all the masks from, but it just creates the information as to the different to !DEFAULT_COMPONENTS is. This approach means (if many of their items look the same), that eStudio uses the target system resources.



Erzeugung der Defaultelemente

5.4 The pixel-element array in the coordinate system

The coordinate system starts in the upper left corner with the coordinates x = 0 and y = 0



In the series with the operating system "Windows µE" as fonts are available in Windows XP/7 compatible Fixed-font format with the file extension * .FNT to are available.

In this font - file collected all of the characters are stored. The height and the width of a fonts can be 1 - 64 pixels include



In the series with the operating system "Windows CE" are fixed-font available as well as True Type fonts.



Only the True Type fonts can be used, which are on the development machine and on the target system have been installed.

30

5.4.1 Fixed Fonts

A big highlight of Estudio, is, that you can combine foreign-language texts with own fonts. These fonts are so-called "fixed fonts". i.e. each letter has a font with the same height and width.

In order to create such a font, please use the supplied program "fontedit.exe".

As position will be used the upper-left corner of the sign.

In the example on the right a sign is represents of the font 8x8 at position 95, shown 33rd

Note : the system font can only in multiples of the resolution for example 8x6 will be positioned

In addition, a system font is only black/white and not scalable



100

If a sign is displayed in a frame, the frame is painted with a distance from the characters. The frame width is one pixel in 2D frames for 3D framework and two pixels. The distance between character and context is calculated as follows

- Distance above and below the sign = font height / 4• The decimal places are cut off.
- distance to the left and right of the character font = • width / 2 Resulting truncated. The decimal places are cut off.
- The upper left corner of the sign is used as the position.

In the example, a character in the font is shown with 8x8 2Dframe at the position 95, 33.

page: 136

This is the adjacent appearance.

Tipp

The selected frame around the text will be outside the font face drawn. This means, with the same coordinates x is the text "Font 8x15 " one pixel at a time always with each other





These fonts can be used also as an alternative to bitmaps. While bitmaps always have the same color, the fonts can be (though still 2 colors) are shown in different colors, for example to display the status of a function. This alternative is "cheaper" than to create a separate bitmap for each state. The font **exists** only one time before, while the bitmaps has to be loaded for each color to the target system. Furthermore a text can be flashed.

5.4.2 True Type Fonts

It can be from any Windows True Type Fonts (TTF) adopted and used under WindwsCE PLC's. Simply copy the fonts into your project directory under "Fonts"

The font is now available in your project.



You will be prompted if you download the resource also to transfer it to the device. This ensures that you can work with the additional non-standard font working on the control.

Downloaden				
 .\FONTS\ARIAL.T .\keypads\keypad .\keypads\keypad .\keypads\keypad .\keypads\keypad 	TF _de.xml _en.xml _ky.xml rce.Res	04.08.2004 17.11.2006 09.10.2006 17.11.2006 20.12.2010	14:00 15:50 15:32 15:50 15:15	Fonts
' Adresse: Zielverzeichnis: [192.168.5 Flashdia Downlo	5.192 sk\ElaDesign ad starten		Abbrechen

5.5 Window in the coordinate system

To indicate the position of a window, always the upper left pixel of the workspace (this is the part of the window can be drawn) will be used. This is independent whether the window has a frame **or** a title bar.

If a window has a frame, so this will be drawn outside of the workspace. The frame width is 1 pixel in a 2D frame and 2 of pixels in a 3D frame. The window is increased consequently by twice the frame width in height and in width.

If a window has a title it will be drawn to the work area. The amount of the title bar is the height of the fonts used + frame width. The window is thus higher by the amount of the title bar.

The illustrated example shows a window with 2-D frame and title bar at the position 91, 40





It uses a separate window in Windows Presentation µE.

It is not used, the window display of Windows CE, but a Windows-compatible windowing μE

5.6 Used image formats



On Windows BMP formats can only μ E with 2, 16 and 256 colors are used.

Generation of bitmaps

The development of the environment of eStudio is able to manage image files and load them into the target system. It is important to ensure that the color depth of the image corresponds to the color of the display. If you have a picture black and white drawing, save it, but with 256 colors, so it is represented internally as a 256 color bitmap. Since the display but can only display two colors, this results in an error message even though you have used only two of the 256 colors. Please save the image in this case as a black / white bitmap from.

Windows μE uses the standard windows colors for the S / W panel

Index	#define in can.h	color	RGB value	24-BitHex
0	COLOR_BLACK	black	RGB(0,0,0)	000000h
1	COLOR_BROWN	brown	RGB(128,0,0)	000080h
2	COLOR_GREEN	dark green	RGB(0,128,0)	008000h
3	COLOR_DKGREEN	nato green	RGB(128,128,0)	008080h
4	COLOR_DKBLUE	dark blue	RGB(0,0,128)	800000h
5	COLOR_DKMAGENTA	magenta	RGB(128,0,128)	800080h
6	COLOR_BLUE_GREEN	blue green	RGB(0,128,128)	808000h
7	COLOR_DKGRAY	dark green	RGB(128,128,128)	808080h
8	COLOR_GRAY	light gray	RGB(192,192,192)	C0C0C0h
9	COLOR_RED	red	RGB(255,0,0)	0000FFh
10	COLOR_LTGREEN	light green	RGB(0,255,0)	00FF00h
11	COLOR_YELLOW	yellow	RGB(255,255,0)	00FFFFh
12	COLOR_BLUE	blue	RGB(0,0,255)	FF0000h
13	COLOR_MAGENTA	bright magenta	RGB(0,255,255)	FF00FFh
14	COLOR_CYAN	light blue	RGB(0,255,255)	FFFF00h
15	COLOR_WHITE	white	RGB(255,255,255)	FFFFFFh

Color palette for elrest S / W panels

If you are asked when you create a mask for a color that appears on the left is color dialog. The managed eStudio of color table can be found in the lower part of the dialogue. Please use this list showed up in custom colors to design your mask. For the other colors, it is possible that this may in the target system lead to problems. Also, you may not define colors yourself, since otherwise the color consistency between the target system and the project

colors on the surface color goes.

Farbe	;					? ×
Gr <u>u</u> no	dfarbe	en:				
Benu	tzerde	efiniei	rte Fa	rben:		
Farben <u>d</u> efinieren >>						
	OK		Abb	reche	n	



On Windows µE addition to all BMP formats can also be the most common formats, Joint Photographic Experts Group "(JPEG) compression with loss of quality for photos and pictures, and Graphics Interchange Format" (GIF), compression can be integrated without loss of quality for graphics, .

5.7 ResGen Compiler

In determining what resources the generator of a project, it is necessary to understand what resources are.

Everything in the project tree can be set and configured to represent resources, i.e., if you create a mask that refers to an image, the image must be created as a so-called resource. The image is then translated into a file that is placed into the target system so that the operating system Windows CE or e μ can access it.

The resource generator has at eStudio the role of a target system compiler.

He translated 'the configured device into a language understood by the operating system.

All of it generated data represent **static** information on which to draw the operating system if necessary.

ResGen V2.60.0 (c)1998 elrest Automationssysteme GmbH	-
(3000035) Sollwert (W1_05 (3000036) Sollwert (W1_05 (3000014) Uhrzeit Minute (3000015) Uhrzeit Sekunde (3000015) Uhrzeit Stunde Generierte Bitmaps : (1000013) D:\Ela_260\Projekte\pult 200\pult 200\BITMAPS\vbalke~1.bmp (1000013) D:\Ela_260\Projekte\pult 200\pult 200\BITMAPS\vbalke~1.bmp (1000015) D:\Ela_260\Projekte\pult 200\pult 200\BITMAPS\vbalke~1.bmp (1000015) D:\Ela_260\Projekte\pult 200\pult 200\BITMAPS\vbalke~1.bmp (1000015) D:\Ela_260\Projekte\pult 200\pult 200\BITMAPS\vbalke~1.bmp	

In general, the information from a device configured to be taken sequentially and associated database into a file named "Ressource.res" written. This file represents your eStudio generated by the project (without ElaSim ElaGraph and programs).

This file can be found under your project directory:

<Project_name> \ <device_name> \ Resource \ Ressource.res

5.7.1 Generate the driver information

The generator resources meant by "driver" a configured network from a projected device. This means that all possible communication channels with a module / panel etc. has outwardly, will be represented by the network

This could be e.g. the CAN_MPC2 or RS RS232 command interface or also be a driver, the hardware on a strange was adjusted (generally offers the possibility of a own eStudio driver development. If you have questions, please contact elrest).

Here to each projected network driver includes a suitable DLL (Dynamic Link Library for Windows), which is located in the directory \elasoft\driver\ find.

5.7.2 Creating device information

The Device represents like the driver a DLL (dynamic link library for Windows). Not for a configured network, but for a configured device type. This DLL can be found under elasoft \ device \.

These device drivers know about the capabilities of the device, such as the data points, connected

networks, etc. knows. Information is extracted from the device drivers and embedded in the generated resource.

Also requires the following public interface Device.dll (for more information, see "The EOnline driver concept"):

5.7.3 Generating the data points

A data point means information from a device. If we for example read the time, so you have to configure the device with a data point that represents the data for the time (provided the device knows this functionality).

The following error messages may occur when generating the data point resource

5.7.4 Compiler process with ResGen and error messages

In the top pane shows the current resource Resgen.exe just created. Before each record unique ID code of the resource is displayed. This is only of interest if you want to program an additional userware in C. To access an entry, you will need this key.

ResGen V2.60.0 (c)1998 elrest-Automationssysteme GmbH	
(3000035) Sollwert (W)_05 (3000036) Sollwert (W)_06 (3000014) Uhrzeit Minute (3000015) Uhrzeit Sekunde (3000015) Uhrzeit Stunde Generierte Bitmaps : (1000013) D:\Ela_260\Projekte\pult 200\pult 200\BITMAPS\vbalke~1.bmp (1000014) D:\Ela_260\Projekte\pult 200\pult 200\BITMAPS\vbalke~1.bmp (1000015) D:\Ela_260\Projekte\pult 200\pult 200\BITMAPS\vbalke~1.bmp (1000015) D:\Ela_260\Projekte\pult 200\pult 200\BITMAPS\vbalke~1.bmp (1000016) D:\Ela_260\Projekte\pult 200\pult 200\BITMAPS\vbalke~1.bmp (1000016) D:\Ela_260\Projekte\pult 200\pult 200\BITMAPS\vbalke~1.bmp	
	×

Under this tab, all the errors and inconsistencies are displayed. If you select an entry and press the "F1" key, a statement will be published for your current problem.

Under this tab, additional information such as file name, file size, etc. is displayed.

If an error occurred while generating the resources to, thus closing the resource generator automatically. Do you want to close it, press the "Esc" key.

Do you want to look at the issue of Resgen.exe, you need only press a button during the production and the window does not close automatically.

Ĩ.

RG0001: "HKEY_CURRENT_USER \\ SOFTWARE \\ ElaSoft \\ Path is invalid!"

Reason:

There is an error in the registry (Regedit.exe) before. The specified entry is invalid.

Remedy:

Install new eStudio (for Windows NT Administrator password)! RG0002: "Invalid data point 'XYZ'!"

Reason:

The device driver is out of date or incorrect, or there is a strange project for which the databases have been copied, but on the computer on which the ResGen is no driver's DLL could not be found.

Remedy:

- For customer-specific devices / network drivers, the driver is incorrect, please contact the manufacturer
- For foreign projects is missing a dll in .. \ driver or .. \ device directory. Please copy the relevant programs (Caution: You may no longer run your projects!)
- In the Autoexec.bat is a path to an invalid driver. Please check the version numbers of DLLs with version.exe (version control).

RG0003: "The DLL 'XYZ' could not be loaded!"

Reason:

The driver DLL is faulty, or the required DLL's needed by the driver (!) Are not available

Remedy:

- In the Autoexec.bat is a path to an invalid driver. Please check the version numbers of DLLs with version.exe (version control).
- For customer-specific drivers, please contact the manufacturer

RG0004: "The unknown function in the DLL Device_DataPointInfo XYZ!"

Rreason:

The driver has not enabled the function Device_DataPointInfo or function is not implemented It is an older driver

Remedy:

Please contact the driver manufacturer.

Please start at Version.exe and check the version number of the corresponding DLL ..

RG0005: "The unknown function in the DLL Device_GetConvertFunctionIDs XYZ!"

Reason:

The driver has not enabled the function Device_GetConvertFunctionIDs or function is not implemented. This function is not to have an established only with the version V2.60.0 functionality that older drivers. It is an older driver.

Remedy:

Please contact the driver manufacturer.

Please start at Version.exe and check the version number of the corresponding DLL.
RG0006: "The function Device_GetConvertFunctions in the DLL XYZ!" is unknown

reason:

The driver has the function Device_GetConvertFunctions not enabled, or the function is not implemented. This function is not to have an established only with the version V2.60.0 functionality that older drivers. It is an older driver.

Remedy:

Please contact the driver manufacturer.

Please start at Version.exe and check the version number of the corresponding DLL.

RG0007: "XYZ data point can not be edited (PDInfo)!"

reason:

The Device_DataPointInfo function of the device driver failed. I.e. the projected data point is not known. This indicates a failure or an unacceptable change in the driver.

Remedy:

Please contact the driver manufacturer.

Please start at Version.exe and check the version number of the corresponding DLL.

RG0008: "XYZ data point can not be edited (convert)!"

Reason:

The GetConvertFunctionIDs function of the device driver failed. I.e. the index of the conversion feature of the projected data point is not known. This indicates a failure or an unacceptable change in the driver.

Remedy:

Please contact the driver manufacturer.

Please start at Version.exe and check the version number of the corresponding DLL.

RG0009: 'bitmap' XYZ 'has n colors The configured module you can display only m colors! "

reason:

The bitmap has been saved with more colors than the target system can represent.

The bitmap has more colors than allowing the panel in question

Remedy:

Please save the image with the corresponding module color.

RG0010: "The bitmap file contains no image XYZ!"

Reason:

If the bitmap file is considered a valid file, however, the data portion of the bitmap, the length 0

Delete the bad file from the directory <Project_name> \ <device_name> \ bitmaps and create them again.

RG0011: "The bitmap is larger than 64KB XYZ!"

Reason:

Due to the limited storage management cost target systems, the maximum size of a resource is set to 64 Kbytes (firmware versions <V1.52).

Remedy:

Save the bitmap with a lower color depth.

"Taking apart" They separated the bitmap into two or more images and configure them from each other.

RG0012: "The XYZ bitmap can not be loaded!"

Reason:

The file was deleted or another program has it opened exclusively.

Remedy:

If the file in the directory <Project_name> \ <device_name> \ bitmaps no longer exists, it must be copied back then

If the bitmap is no longer needed, it is sufficient restarting the resource generator. This recognizes that the file is no longer needed and removes the bitmap ID from the database.

If another program has opened the bitmap, it is sufficient to close this and create the new resource.

RG0013: "The font file XYZ can not be loaded!"

Reason:

The file was deleted or another program has opened exclusively.

Remedy:

If the data in the directory <Project_name> \ <device_name> \ fonts no longer exists, it must be copied back then.

If the font is no longer needed, it is sufficient renewed Anstarten the resource generator. This recognizes that the file is no longer needed and removed the font identifier from the database.

If another program has opened the font file, it is sufficient to close this and create the new resource

RG0014: "Die Fontdatei XYZ ist größer als 64KB!"

Reason:

Due to the limited memory management of small and inexpensive systems target the maximum size of a resource is set to 64 Kbytes (firmware <V1.52).

"Taking apart" the font into two or more sub-headings (e.g. all capital letters, lowercase letters, special mark, etc.) and configure them separately.

Change the font size -> less memory usage.

"Taking apart" the font into an upper and lower half.

Do not use unnecessary characters.

RG0015: " The ID 'XYZ' entry in the default language is present several times

Reason:

There is an invalid text database. This can not happen under normal circumstances, but it should still occur, please try the following workaround:

Remedy:

Please delete the text displayed with the ID of your masks and configure him once again **RG0016: "Error in project.set for the XYZ language does not define a font!"**

Reason:

The directory <Project_name> \ is not a valid File Project.Set. In this one the entry is missing [Languages / Fonts].

Remedy:

Select the project in project management, press the right mouse button and select the menu item "Change". Acknowledge the dialog with OK. Now the file is reinitialized Projekt.Set.

RG0017: "The language XYZ referenced on the non-existent font ZYX!"

Reason:

The directory <Project_name> \ is not a valid File Project.Set. This entry is missing the [Languages / Fonts].

Remedy:

Select the project in project management, press the right mouse button and select the menu item "Change". quit

RG0018: "The text with the Text ID 'XYZ' could not be found!"

Reason:

A text was created and configured, but was subsequently deleted. The referential integrity of the project has been violated.

Remedy:

Delete all references in this text from your mask / ElaGraph programs and projects, this new text.

RG0019: "The text 'XYZ' is assigned a reserved ID!"

Reason:

It was projected a text whose serial number is the text of a system. The text ID is therefore invalid.

Delete all references in this text from your mask / ElaGraph programs and projects, this new text **RG0020: "The ID 'XYZ' was already assigned to the text 'ZYX'!"**

Reason:

A text-ID is assigned more than once. The referential integrity of the project is at risk!

Remedy:

Delete all references of ZYX from your mask / ElaGraph programs and projects, this new text.

RG0021: "'! DEFAULT_DESKTOP' The default mask is missing!"

Reason:

It was created a project that has no background mask (equivalent to the desktop in Windows). **Remedy:**

Create a mask in the form designer. Then, automatically! DEFAULT_DESKTOP generated

RG0022: "! There an unknown element in the generation defined DEFAULT_COMPONENTS was canceled!"

Reason:

In the! DEFAULT_COMPONENTS a prototype has been defined, the resources of the generator is unknown. This is an indication of a version mismatch of the products!

Remedy:

Start Version.exe and check the version numbers for components Delete the incorrect item from the! DEFAULT_COMPONENTS.

RG0023: "The mask number is in the demo version is limited to 10 screens"

Reason:

You do not have a dongle on your computer or the dongle plugged in for this version eStudio not enabled. In a trial without a dongle, the screen number is limited.

Remedy:

Purchase a full version at your local dealer.

RG0024: "The mask number is limited in this version is limited to n masks."

Reason:

You have purchased a light version of eStudio, or put only a limited kind dongle on your PC

Purchase a full version at your local dealer

RG0025: "A display field on the 'XYZ' is placed on the property 'data point' ..."

Reason:

In the XYZ screen, there is a display that has been configured to display type data item name. This feature will be implemented in the next version.

Remedy:

Please remove the mask price for the display, which is parameterized on data item name.

RG0026: "The EEPROM address 0x for an input element in the mask 'XYZ' was ever the data point ID: assign 'ZYX' The resource is inconsistent on the target!"

Reason:

In the XYZ screen, there is a field that has the property "to the EEPROM write." This address is already assigned to a data point "ZYX".

Remedy:

Edit the price and change the address mask 0x???? of the input field.

RG0027: "? The EEPROM address 0x for a key element in the mask 'XYZ' was ever given for the data item 'ZXY'!"

Reason:

In the XYZ screen, there is a key element that has the property "to the EEPROM write." This address is already assigned to a data point "ZYX".

Remedy:

Edit the mask price and change the address 0x?? of said switch element.

RG0028: "An attempt was made to use a label type as Static label!"

Reason: Inconsistency of the database (internal error).

Remedy: Send your project to check faulty email Elrest.

RG0029: "Could not create file Ressource.res"

reason:

The resource generator could not generate the file. This may be of the following reasons:

There is no more space on your hard disk. Another program has opened the resource file exclusively. There are too many open files.

Remedy

Make room on your drive. Close all programs that have opened the Ressource.res. Increase the entry "Files =" in the Config.Sys to a higher value and restart your computer again. **RG1000-1999: "Various reports ..."**

Error codes 1000-1999, double click for editing possible!

This is only possible if the mask was not re-saved, otherwise you start your new ResGen!

Reason:

The resource generator checks to the elements whether the entries are complete and correct. Missing e.g. the data point is specified, a message.

Remedy:

By simply double-clicking on the error message, the form designer opens with the mask and also open the dialog for setting respective control.

Condition is that no other form of dialogue is very open.

In addition, the mask may not have been changed since the larger, creating a save place. Otherwise, performs a selection from ResGen possibly to open the wrong controls.

Start in this case, simply re-ResGen and select the error again.

5.8 Download for the target system

ElaDesign from the resources generated file. These can be loaded directly from ElaDesign into the target system.

Between the operating systems are the following differences:



The Resource.res file is stored on the target system as Resource.bin



When downloading to a Windows CE device, the download directory to be determined







The file can be stored under Resource.res:

"My Documents"

This is entirely in RAM and after a power outage briefly.The benefit is, during the development phase can be tested quickly without a flash process.

Storage Card

in this case is the external CF (CampactFlash). It is strongly recommended to store the data in order to facilitate the exchange and application performance reasons in the CF. Disadvantage, it is imperative that a CF may be present.

The status, whether a media is inserted or not,

• Flash "Disk"

X

Here the data is stored on the internal flash. Because of this flash is also the operating system is the flash process is slower than in CF. A further disadvantage is the slow access of internal CF, especially in conjunction with CoDeSys.

One advantage is that the CF can be omitted. elrest recommends the use of an external CF.

Memory Stick

Here the data is stored on a storage medium connected to the USB port. (External hard disk, card reader, USB stick). Here, the connection is allowed by several media. The name assigned is based on the connection sequence: Memory Stick Memory Stick2 Memory Stick3 Memory Stick N ..

After starting on the panel ElaDesignCE.exe is in the order:

- "\ My Documents \ resource.res"
- • "\ Storage Card \ ElaDesign \ resource.res
- • "\ Flash Disk \ ElaDesign \ resource.res"

for the file "resource.res" and executes them.

6 Tips and Tricks

This chapter should help you with the programming by "Good practice" is set forth in dealing with Elrest devices.

6.1 To ElaDesign

background:

The mask changes between already loaded in memory masks is indeed accelerated if the goal mask is already loaded, but the overall system load solution:

If possible, keep only the mask used in the memory. They use the "next dialog with Cancel." This means that load at changing mask, target mask, and the source mask is destroyed.

6.1.1 Data Points

When you use enter values which are only changed by the operator as the update time "single shoot". This means that the value is updated when you open the form from the single data point And now waiting for operator input.

Element Eingabe			X
Datenpunkt:	LK101_IWY_AB_Klappe	Indiziert	Rel. Offset: 0 📩
Variablentyp:	Gleitkomma	Mit Ruckle	sen
Zugänglichkeit		Singlesh	ot 💌
Normal Unsichtba	r	200 msec 300 msec	



Display fields:

Consider whether a quick update makes sense. E.G. has a room temperature either in 1Sekundentakt, yet in 2-second clock will be displayed.

Use as default instead of 1 second more like 3 seconds. This does not mean that the change in value is always displayed after 3 seconds, but that this will be done in the worst case, after 3 seconds.

6.1.2 Bt array instead of many individual bits

The communication can be accelerated significantly if less data to be transmitted.

The communication between the HMI and CoDeSys here is no exception,

Below under eStudio / WAC only the 4 variables are created as Bitarray32 what each corresponds to a DWORD with CoDeSys.

This has the further advantage that CoDeSys not has to be permanently closed and open during the project, should you need another variable that should be created under eStudio / WAC. example:

A message "Stop after end of cycle " should be to appear.

The existing variable is used on the x messages bit 1

Stör Tin Auto Hand	HTE	Element Bild
Quit IIP Add Hand		Datei (BMP): empty.bmp Faktor: 1x 💌
		Transparent
		Elementanordnung Positionsverschiebung
		X-Pos: 330 🛨 🗌 In X-Richtung
		Y-Pos: 32 🕂 Datenpunkt:
		In Y-Richtung
		Zykluszeit: 1 sec 💌 Datenpunkt:
		Zugänglichkeit
		Z Datennunktabhännig
		Datenpunkt: xaMeldungen
		V Indiziert Rel. Offset: 1 🔒
		Bereiche
		OK Abbrechen

fred ce DIL V2.83.0

CoDeSys in this bit of the tag is now registered and used in a review as a comment (Blue)

Create individual bits:

However, should individual bits to be created, it must be noted that only 32-bit memory, a distinction between

Constant / Persistent / Retain can be done. When you create the variable is unfortunately not visible, are in the past which memory bits of the double word.

Therefore it is advantageous to make a note to this separately.

Example:

You want a new one xtest variable (bool) Create as retain. Suggests you Eladesign bit7 of the DWORD to use to address 0x0BBC.

Ein-/Ausgänge	E/A mehrfach Auswahl Merl	ker %M Firmware-Variablen Userware-Variabl
Merker		X
Name:	xTest	Nächstes freies Doppelwort verwenden
Datentyp:	Bit	_ Info
Array-Größe:	1 • Länge: 0 •	Offset: OBBC Bytes Bit Nr.: 7
ОК	Abbrechen	
	and the second se	

After you have created all things, learn to conclude that the bit is 0 .6 0x0BBC DWORD at address Are **NOT** the type retain, however, do not know whether the type Constant or Persistent. This she learned from other attempts. Will remain at this point remains the key to press Cancel, and start the creation of the variable again.

Make a note so when creating variables of type Boolean.

for example:

0x0BBC = Constant 0x0BC4 = Persistent 0x0BC8 = Retain

Signalbereich: Min.: 0	Max.: 0		
Melsbereich: Min.: U	Max.: JU		
Dimmer mit Startwert		irbeitungsmodus Lesen	
O mit gespeichertem Parameter (PERSISTE	INT) (TR	Schreiben	
mit batteriegepuffertem Wert (RETAIN)		Lesen/Schreibe	n
	< Zunück	Fertigstellen	Abbrecher
	* Editorit		
udio	eselbe Adresse:		×

6.1.3 Advantages of flag variables

Do not use natively on the PLC handler.

Normally the process accesses to variables from CoDeSys eStudio / WAC. The data points are imported at the start of CoDeSys eStudio into this

However, it is the other way around: data created under eStudio can also be imported into eStudio. These uses eStudio the CoDeSys icon file.

Advantage:

- Existing CoDeSys projects can be embedded easily into a eStudio/WAC- project.

Disadvantages:

- Reduce long compile times of resource needed for each code change.
- Data inconsistencies.

6.1.4 Advantage Fixed Fonts

Waiver of TTF

TrueType fonts are elegant, beautiful and scalable Level these properties need to considerably greater system resources.

Keep this in mind when planning. A shown on the HMI TTF text needed to display approximately 20 ms. Have you now, for example

6.1.5 Voice Switching

The language change is best from the Windows country code and the national flag, or the Inter Nations shortcut. For this, use a combo or list box.

This has the following advantages:

- nPrimaryLanguage (bB 1033 for English) does not change when more languages will be added.. It is not valid for the switchable parameter.
- The use of symbols ensures that each country only one time must be shown. If for example German is not as flag (D), but as a "German" then it must be named entry in the most recent national language differently, eg German, allemagne, inglese, nemacja

Änderungen rückgängig machen

6.2 To CoDeSys

6.2.1 Task Configuration

Create your own HMI task.

This can be under CE with the same interrupt HMI update run the operating system.

So you get a syncronicity between CoDeSys HMI and the operating system.

The image processing, task reactions etc significantly increased compared with a single task configuration or a free-running configuration.

Select a task so property "External Event Driven," or Visuloop ElaDesignLoop.

6.2.2 Programming language

Between the various programming languages there are significant differences in code size and execution speed.

The programming language "Structured Text" is therefore the SFC, FBD, CFC, COP, or preferable, because it reaches a high speed in comparison with smaller code size.

CoDeSys call:

Not all code must be run with each cycle.

Consider whether there are program components that must be called only occasionally. This could for example be:

System Clock: 1x Sec Alarm Management: 2x Sec Initialization: 1x at startup

6.2.3 Program crash

Program Crashes are almost always programming error.

Typical are:

- Faulty pointer access
- Faulty access in an array index

Checkbounds()

As a control array of over-and undershoots, the CoDeSys function CheckBounds be used. See CoDeSys Help

The function is invoked by the system when it is present and there is an indexed access. In conjunction with a counter can be an effective diagnostic tool.

The ABB: The counter in line 3 and 6 are declared global. Is a counter increments determine, in this way there is a index injury instead, which will be corrected by Checkbounds

In order to determine where this takes place, set a breakpoint at line 3 and Line 6.

If the Breakpont will be reached then step into next. After a few steps you will reach the code point of the injury.

Wichtig:

Haben sie den Fehler behoben, so schließen Sie die Funktion Checkbounds() wieder von der Coderzeugung aus.

Checkbound ist äußerst Code- und Rechenintensiv.

Important:

Have you fixed the problem, connect the function CheckBounds () again by the code generation. Check Bound is extremely code – and computation intensive.





6.2.4 Watchdog

If a task is due to a programming error, there is the possibility to CE devices

CoDeSys trigger under a watchdog.

This could generally be as follows.

In your code you awarded in several places ID's.

The watchdog is triggered, the ID is written to a file, which can be read later.

```
🗆 🛲 Taskkonfiguration
                               System-Ereignisse
      🖉 System-Ereignisse
    🗄 ----- 🕑 PLC
                                                                                          aufgerufene POU
                                   Name
                                                          Beschreibung
         ...... 🖹 OB2();
                                 🗌 start
                                                         Called when program starts
    🖻 ----- 🎸 HMI
                                🗆 stop
                                                         Called when program stops
           ---- berflaeche();
                                before_reset
                                                         Called before reset takes place
                                 🗆 after_reset
                                                         Called after reset took place
                                shutdown
                                                         Called before shutdown is performed
                                excpt_watchdog
                                                         Software watchdog OF IEC-task expired WATCHDOG
                                                         Debug loop at breakpoint
                                 🗆 debug_loop
           (* Trigger Watchdog *)
          Watchdog(PRG)
          IF psFW=0 THEN
ST
           psFW:= FWGetStructPointer(0);
          END IF;
          FwTurnDisplayOn(TRUE);
          PultMaskOpen(99);
           (* Panel Watchdog *)
           (* Write Error File *)
          IF hFile=0 THEN
                          hFile := SysFileOpen(FileName:=sFilename, Mode:='a');
          END IF;
          sTextToWrite:= DT_TO_STRING(SysRtcGetTime(1));
          sTextToWrite:= CONCAT(sTextToWrite,' ');
          sTextToWrite:= CONCAT(sTextToWrite,INT_TO_STRING(psFW^.uRemanent.sMasterEEprom.nRebootCounter));
          sTextToWrite:= CONCAT(sTextToWrite,' ');
          sTextToWrite:= CONCAT(sTextToWrite,INT_TO_STRING(ID));
          sTextToWrite:= CONCAT(sTextToWrite,'
                                                   1);
          sTextToWrite:= CONCAT(sTextToWrite,'Watchdog Expired');
          sTextToWrite:= CONCAT(sTextToWrite,'$n$l');
          TF hFile<>0 THEN
                                  dwReturn := SysFileWrite(File:=hFile, Buffer:=ADR(sTextToWrite),
          Size:=LEN(sTextToWrite));
          END IF;
          (*SysStrCpy(sTextToWrite, INT_TO_STRING(nID[0]));*)
          sTextToWrite:= INT_TO_STRING(naID[0]);
          FOR i:= 0 TO 99 BY 1 DO
                  sTextToWrite:= CONCAT(sTextToWrite,'; ');
                  sTextToWrite:= CONCAT(sTextToWrite,INT_TO_STRING(naID[i]));
          END FOR;
                  sTextToWrite:= CONCAT(sTextToWrite,'$n$l');
          IF hFile<>0 THEN
                                  dwReturn := SysFileWrite(File:=hFile, Buffer:=ADR(sTextToWrite),
          Size:=LEN(sTextToWrite));
          END_IF;
```

The file was then look like the following:



6.2.5 Netzwork variables

Broadcast

Don't use as a broadcast the preferred address 255.255.255.255 of 3 S Do. You have only one communication partner, enter only the IP of the partner. Do you have multiple partners, enter a smaller area, e.g.

You have three controls:

192.168.1.200 192.168.1.210

192.168.1.211

With Subnetmask 255.255.255.0

Einstellungen für UDP			
Standard verwenden Port für alle Netzwerke: 1203 Broadcast-Adresse: 11	2 92 . 168 . 1 . 2	A	OK bbrechen ng in
Connection 1 (UDP) Netzwerktyp: UDP Variablen packen Variablenlistenkennung (COB-ID):	Einstellungen		Netzwerk- ∨erbindung Iöschen
 Prüfsumme übertragen Bestätigter Transfer Lesen 	Request beim Bootu	p	
, Schreiben	🔽 Bootup Requests be	antworten	
 ✓ Zyklische Übertragung ✓ Übertragung bei Änderung ✓ Ereignisgesteuerte Übertragung 	Intervall: Mindestabstand: Variable:	T#100ms	

Data point update:

Less is more. Choose a larger update interval and minimum distance

Communication monitoring

The cyclical transmission (see illustration above) at least 2x the second, a message is transmitted or received by the communication partner.

The result can be quickly a monitoring with timeout program.

(*#####################################
Überwachung NetVar-Kommunikation

PROGRAM RemoteKommunikation
VAR
XConnecttoRemote :BOOL;
NReceiveCount :DWORD;
nReceiveCount_old :DWORD;
Tactualtime :TIME;
TLastConnection :TIME;
END_VAR
tActualTime :=TIME();
nReceiveCount:=pNetVarPDO_Rx_Diagnosis_UDP[0].nReceiveCount;
IF nReceiveCount <> nReceiveCount_old THEN
TLastConnection :=tActualTime;
nReceiveCount_old :=nReceiveCount;
END_IF;
x ConnecttoRemote: -tActualTime_ tLastConnection < t#45 : (* Anzeige ob Verbunden *)

6.2.6 Tracking from CoDeSys manage telnet parameter

So angepasst dass die Befehle für CoDeSys ersichtlich sind..

For the simple series commissioning of Elrest, controls, or for their update, it is recommended to make initialization by one step in CoDeSys.

The settings under Telnet will be dropped then completely.

For this, the documents platform CE_DE and Plattform_ μ E were adjusted under the heading telnet settings so that the commands for CoDeSys are evident.



ST

6.2.7 *virtual modules*

For simulations are needed often "virtual modules because the actual hardware is not yet available. Here's EA should be simulated, but the problem here is that no inputs from CoDeSys can be described. Workarounds: Writing to access inputs via pointers.

Description: ESB module missing 6 till 8. These two modules are simulated by the transfer variables dwINPUT_T1 [0 .2]

```
Virtueller Modus
ST
     ****
     VAR
         dwINPUTS_M AT %IB0 :ARRAY[0..8] OF DWORD;
         dwINPUTS_T1
                  :ARRAY[0..2] OF DWORD;
     END_VAR
     pzdwINPUTS_M:=ADR(dwINPUTS_M);
     FOR i:=0 TO 2 BY 1 DO
         pzdwINPUTS_M
                     :=ADR(dwINPUTS_M[i+6]); (* Ermitteln des
     Speicheradresse *)
         pzdwINPUTS_M^
                     :=dwINPUTS_T1[i]; (* Direktes Schreiben in den
     Speicher *)
     END_FOR;
```

6.2.8 O access without ElaDesign data points:

On the device inputs and outputs can be accessed without a data point configuration. For this, the addressing for the most common devices:

```
VAR
        dwaOutputs AT %QD0
                               :ARRAY[1..10] OF DWORD;
ST
                              :ARRAY[1..10] OF DWORD;
        dwaInputs
                   AT %ID0
        END_VAR
                      (* 32 Digitaleingänge des nullten ESB-Slave =
        dwaInputs[0];
        Mastersteuerung z, B. P303, CM1xx..)
        dwaInputs[0].0; (* Erster digitaler Eingang der Masterteuerung = 1.Bit)
        dwaInputs[0].1; (* Zweiter digitaler Eingang der Masterteuerung = 2.Bit)
                      (* 32 Digitaleingänge des ersten ESB-Slaves z.B. CS1xx,
        dwaInputs[1];
        AIO8, MS7 *)
                        (* 32 Digitaleingänge des zweiten ESB-Slaves z.B. CS1xx,
        dwaInputs[2];
        AIO8, MS7 *)
```

Note:

For devices with DIO's e.g. the Slave Combo CS101, CS110, the digital channels as basic and run / or inputs. I.e. an output set, via these ESB or CanOpen be read back. This allows you to control whether the output is actually set.



6.2.9 Analog configuration

Analog channel on the master controller or the slave must be configured. This is done via the functions IO01.lib with CoDeSys.

To make this easier for you to ElaConfigAIO8.lib were performed.

The instance must be called cyclically. The execution of this is more cyclical, ending in a return value of "Success" or after 2 seconds in a timeout.

The instances can be arranged in succession, so that acts of the output of an instance at the start of the next instance



6.2.10 .Backup Restore

To backup of the / flash disk / EleDesign / can be created only if

Not already a backup was created on the map. For this it is an advantage to rename an approximately existed back-up.



After the backup, an update can only be carried out if the directory on the map of "Backup" to "Update" has been renamed. Any existing backup is here, also with the date and time, renamed. By the access to a file - in this example, the eventlog.am - can be checked, whether it the file, or in the directory.

By accessing a file - in this example the Eventlog.bin - can be checked whether there is the file or the directory.

```
IF xRename_BtoUpdt THEN
       xRename_BtoUpdt:=FALSE;
       f_Handle:=SysFileOpen('\Storage Card\Control\visio_P205V\Backup\ElaDesign\eventlog.bin',
'r');
       xBackupDirOK :=(f_Handle>0);
       IF xBackupDirOK THEN
              SysFileClose(f_Handle);
              _Date_and_Time:= SysRtcGetTime(1);
              FwGetDATE_TIME(
                                    _Date_and_Time,
                                                           ADR(_Date),
                                                                          ADR(_TIME)
       );
              SysStrCpy(sRename
                                   ,'Storage Card\Control\visio_P205V\Update_');
              sRename:=CONCAT(sRename,
                                            DATE_TO_STRING(_Date));
              sRename:=CONCAT(sRename,'_');
              sRename:=CONCAT(sRename,TIME_TO_STRING(_Time));
              SysDirRename('\Storage Card\Control\visio_P205V\Update',sRename);
              SysDirRename('\Storage Card\Control\visio_P205V\Backup','\Storage
Card\Control\visio_P205V\Update');
              SysFileDelete('\Storage Card\Control\visio_P205V\Update\ElaDesign\Update.ver');
               (* Wichtig : "Update.ver" darf nicht wieder auf ein System zurückgesichert werden
* )
              ELSE
                      ;
                      (* BackupDir in SD- Card not found *)
       END TE;
END_IF;
```

6.2.11 Recipes

Recipes should be loaded down and saved preferably from CoDeSys, because you are a success or error feedback is received.

The maturity value is obtained via the iState. Recipes should be preferably from CoDeSys out be loaded and saved, because you are a success or error feedback is received. The maturity value is obtained via the iState.

```
PROGRAMM LADEN
***
CASE iRecipeStepLoad OF
     0:
         IF xLoadParameter THEN
                xLoadParameter :=FALSE;
                iRecipeStepLoad:= iRecipeStepLoad+1;
           END IF;
     1:
           RecipeLoad(INT_TO_STRING(iProductNo)(*RecipeName*), ADR(iState));
           iRecipeStepLoad:= iRecipeStepLoad+1;
     2:
           IF iState=0 THEN
                      iRecipeStepLoad:= iRecipeStepLoad+1;
                      (* Recipe load success *)
           END TE;
           IF iState<0 THEN
                      iRecipeStepLoad:=0;
                      Glob.DatapointRecipeChanged:= FALSE; (*Error Loading Recipe*)
                      iErrCodeRecipe:=iState+ 4200; (*Fehlermeldung*)
                      PultMaskOpen(96);
                                            (*Open ErrorMask*)
           END_IF;
     3:
           iRecipeStepLoad:=0;
```

```
END CASE;
PROGRAMM Speichern
)
CASE iRecipeStepSave OF
0: IF xSaveParameter THEN
        xSaveParameter :=FALSE;
         iRecipeStepSave:=1;
END_IF;
1:
   iRecipeStepSave:=2;
2:
   RecipeSave(
USINT_TO_STRING(usiCopyActualTo)(*RecipeName*),'Programmparameter'(*ReceipeDefinition *),
ADR(iState));
               iRecipeStepSave:= 3;
3:
   IF iState<0 THEN (* Error *)
          iRecipeStepSave:= 0;
          xBeep:=TRUE;
          iErrCodeRecipe:=iState+ 4200(*ErrorMessage*);
          PultMaskOpen(96);
     END_IF;
     IF iState=0 THEN
         iRecipeStepSave:=4;
    END IF;
4:
    iRecipeStepSave:=0;
END_CASE;
```

Where the error messages as follows declared:

Log. ID 🛛	Deutsch
4000	ARS_ERRWRITINGDP
4095	ARS_ERRTIMEOUT
4096	ACRS_ERRFILEALREADYEXIST
4097	ARS_ERRINVRECNAME
4098	ARC RS_ERRINVDATAPOINT
4099	ACC RS_ERRINVRECDEF
4100	A RS_ERROR
4192	ARC RS_ERRNOMEM
4196	ARS_ERRFILEOPEN
4198	ACC RS_ERRFILENOTFOUND
4200	ARS_SUCCESS
4201	ARC RS_INIT
4202	ABC RS_READING
4203	ARC RS_WRITING
4204	ARC RS_LOADING
4205	A SAVING

Detail:

RS_SUCCESS	:=	0,
RS_INIT	:=	1,
RS_READING	:=	2,
RS_WRITING	:=	З,
RS_LOADING	:=	4,
RS_SAVING	:=	5,
RS_ERRFILENOTFOUND	:=	-2,
RS_ERROPENFILE	:=	-4,
RS_ERRNOMEM	:=	-8,
RS_ERRDISKFULL	:=	-39,
RS_ERROR	:= -	100,
RS_ERRINVRECDEF	:= -	101,
RS_ERRINVDATAPOINT	:= -	102,
RS_ERRINVRECNAME	:= -	103,
RS_ERRFILEALREADYEXIST	:= -	104,
RS_ERRTIMEOUT	:= -	105,
RS_ERRWRITINGDP	:= -	200

6.2.12 EStudio recipes without reading and writing

Be relevant operating and production data collected in a recipe, it can be used for data collection.

With the example below (figure down) can control the data from any PC on the corporate network are recognized and imported into Excel.

The procedure is to be read from bottom to top.

Since this is not the files, but the variable contents are updated, this feature ensures that they run after the batch file got transferred and the current contents of the control variables.

1) Run the batch file that synchronizes the controller with the Data.rec Data.rec of the PC.

For this purpose the recipe.exe is called.

R and and the brick States States States States

2) Open the Daten.rec via Exel and import the data.

			1														
A	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н		J	K	L	М	N	0	Р	Q	
[Config] Definition	Pazantdofiniti	0.0															
Deminition	Rezeptuennu	011															-
[Definition]																	
8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 10	515	64		0	0	0 0	10										
(Dete)																	-
BidwTakte maxiUI onoi81176i0i10	0	0		0	0	0 4294967295	4294967295	4294967295	0	4294967295							
										1201001200							
														-			~
Daten.rec - Notepad2																	0
Edit View Settings ?																	
💕 📮 🛃 🕑 (୯) 🐰 📭 🕵 ।	🗎 🎎 🔳 🤄) 🔍 🖃 🕯	🖌 🕼														
[Config]																	
Definition=Rezeptdefinition																	
[Definition]																	
[Definition] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0	10"=515;64;	0;0;0;0;10)														
[Definition] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0	10"=515;64;	0;0;0;0;10)														
[Definition] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 [Data]	10"=515;64;	0;0;0;0;10)														
[Definition] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 [Data] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0	10"=515;64; 10"=0;0;0;0	0;0;0;0;0;10 ;0;4294967) '295;42949	967295;429	4967295;0;	4294967295											
[Definition] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 [Data] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0	10"=515;64; 10"=0;0;0;0	0;0;0;0;10) 7295;42949	967295;429	4967295;0;	4294967295											
[Definition] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 [Data] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0	10"=515;64; 10"=0;0;0;0	0;0;0;0;10) 7295;42949	967295;429	4967295;0;	4294967295											
[Definition] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 [Data] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0	10"=515;64; 10"=0;0;0;0	0;0;0;0;10) 7295;42949	967295;429	4967295;0;	8294967295											
[Definition] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 [Data] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0	10"=515;64; 10"=0;0;0;0	0;0;0;1;10;) 7295; 42949	967295;429	4967295;0;	4294967295 ⊠											
Definition] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 Data] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 C:\Windowsbystem32(cmd.exe C:\ElaSoft>Ulm2::\ElaSoft>Basoft>B	10"=515;64; 10"=0;0;0;0 10\Recipes.e	0;0;0;0;10 ;0;4294967 ×e ∕R DRIU) 295;42949 JER=#ETHEI	967295;429	4967295;0;	4294967295											
Definition] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ["8]dwTa	10"=515;64; 10"=0;0;0;0;0 10"-0;0;0;0;0	0;0;0;0;10 ;0;4294967 xe /R DRIU) 295;42949 JER="ETHEI SEPARA=";	967295;429 967295;429 RNET' SLOT ;192.168.5	4967295;0; 	4294967295											
Definition] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 [Data] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 To C\Windows\system32(cmd.exe C\	10"=515;64; 10"=0;0;0;0 in\Recipes.e SUICE="Fred_ recipe\Date	0;0;0;0;10 ;0;4294967 ×e ∠R DR10 it1" DEVI0 n.rec") 295;42949 JER="ETHE ZEPARA =";	967295;429 RNET" SLOT 192.168.5	4967295;0; -	4294967295											
Definition] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 [Data] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 TS C:Windows/system32kcmd.exe C:XEInSoft Bin/Sc:NEInSoftNB VARBATING-""NODE-"N214"D SPRojaktev/765_73_113/S103 C:XEInSoftNBin/Sc:NEInSoftNB SPRojaktev/13/Sc33 C:XEInSoftNBin/Sc:NEInSoftNB Settor in the sine balichtion =	10"=515;64; 10"=0;0;0;0 in\Recipes.e UICE="Fred_ recipe\Date	0;0;0;0;10 ;0;4294967 xe /R DRIU itz" DEUIC n.rec") 2295;42949 JER="ETHEI JEPARA=";	967295;429 967295;429 RNET" SLOT ;192.168.5	4967295;0; 	4294967295 ≅ ="C ■											
Definition] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 [Data] @ C.Windowskystem32kcmd.exe C:\ElaSoft\Bin>c:\ElaSoft\B PRASTRIN_:WDDE-WS14** S\Projekte\M705_73_113\7303 C:\ElaSoft\Bin>Case Drücken Sie eine beliebige	10"=515;64; 10"=0;0;0;0 in\Recipes.e SUICE="Fred Nrecipe\Date	0;0;0;0;10 ;0;4294967 xe ∠R DRIU it1" DEUIO n.rec") 295;42949 JER="ETHE SEPARA =";	967295;429 RNET" SLOT 192.168.5	4967295; 0; 	4294967295 ≅ =°C ■											
Definition] *8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 Data] *8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ClWindowsbystem32kcmd.exe C:\ElaSoft\Bin>2::SElaSoft\B PARSIFING=*** NOB=**264* V:Projekte/N705:-73_1131.Y303 C:\ElaSoft\Bin>2Ause; Dvikcken Sie eine beliebige	10"=515;64; 10"=0;0;0;0 un\Recipes.e UICE="Fred recipe\Date	0;0;0;0;10 ;0;4294967 ;0;4294967 ;0;4294967 ;0;4294967 ;0;4294967 ;0;4294967 ;0;4294967 ;0;4294967 ;0;4294967 ;0;4294967 ;0;4294967) 295; 4294 Jer="ethei Jepara=";	967295;429 RNET" SLOT 192.168.5	4967295;0; — @ ="LocalHos .214" File	4294967295 											
Definition] *8 (dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 Data] *8 (dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ClWindows/system32kcmd.exe ct El s&of(* Nin / 2: * El a&of(* N PARSATEINK	10"=515;64; 10"=0;0;0;0;0 in\Recipes.e UICE="Fred recipe\Date	0;0;0;0;1(;0;4294967 ×e ∕R DRI(titl" DEU(n.rec") 2295;42949 VER="ETHE JEPARA-";;	967295;429 RNET" SLOT 192.168.5	4967295; 0; 	4294967295											
Definition] SidwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 [Data] SidwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 ClWindowSystem32kcmd.exe ClWindowSystem32kcmd.exe ClWindowSystem32kcmd.exe ClWindowSystem32kcmd.exe SidwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 SidwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 SidwTak	10"=515;64; 10"=0;0;0;0 in\Recipes.e SUICE="Fred Nrecipe\Date	0;0;0;0;10; ;0;4294967 ×e /R DRI(it)" DEU(0 1.rec") 2295;42949 9ER="ETHEI 9EPARA=";;	967295;429	4967295;0;	4294967295											
Definition] *8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 Data] *8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 C:Windowsbystem32kcmd.exe C:VEIaSoft-VBin>2:SEIaSoft-S PARASTRINGNODE-V214*U VSProjetkcN/N25_23_1131/3703 C:VEIaSoft-VBin>Pause; Divice Sie eine beliebige Recipe Produkte lesenbat-Notepad2; = Edit View Setting ?	10"=515;64; 10"=0;0;0;0 in\Recipes.e SUCE="Fred vrecipe\Date faste	0;0;0;0;10; ;0;4294967 xe /R DRIU it1" DEU!(n.rcc")) 7295; 42949 9ER="ETHEI SEPARA" ; ;	967295;429 RNET" SLOT 1192.168.5	4967295; 0; 	4294967295											
Definition] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 [Data] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 [CLWindowsLystem32kcmd.exe C:NEInSoft+Bin/sc:NEInSoft+B PARBSTRING-""NODE-"N214" Steps jetkevnyKo5_73_114/*193 C:NEInSoft+Bin/Scause; Drubcken Ste eine beliebige Publicken Ste eine beliebige Recipe Produkte Issenbat - Notepad2 e Edit View Settings ? [Comparison of the set	10"-515;64; 10"-0;0;0;0 In Recipes.e 80 GF-** Ped. vec ipe Vate faste A & I I I	0;0;0;0;10 ;0;4294967 xe /R DRU tt1" DEU tt1" DEU tt1" DEU tt1" DEU	2295; 42949 JER="FTHEI JEPARA="; JEPARA=";	967295;429 RNET" SLOT 192.168.5	4967295;0; — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —	4294967295 ⊠ • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			"		166 6 71				2) 200) pp 6	0)0000	
Definition] *8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 [Data] *8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 C\Windowskystem32(cmd.exe C:\ElaSoft\Bin\Se:\ElaSoft\B HBBS TIN\Se:\ElaSoft\Bin\Se:\ElaSoft\B HBBS TIN\Se:\ElaSoft\Bin\Setup Virvajstavita\Size elase bildens Size elase bildens Size elase Recipe Produkte lesenbat = Notepad2 E Edit Vires Settings ? C:\ElaSoft\Bin\Recipes.exe	10"-515;64; 10"-0;0;0;0 UICF-"Fred wro:jw Date faste 유 값 교 및 e / R DRIVER-	0;0;0;0;10; ;0;4294967 ;0;42959 ;0;42959 ;0;4295957 ;0;4295957 ;0;4295957 ;0;4295957 ;0;) 295; 4294; JER="ETHE SEPARA="; SEPARA=	067295;429	4967295; 0; 	4294967295	214" DEVIC	E="fred_it:	" DEVICEP	ARA=";;192.	168. 5. 214	" FILE="C:	\Projekte'	\A765_73_113	3\P303\rec1	pe\Daten.	
<pre>[Definition] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 Data] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 Clata] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 Clata] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 Clata] "8 dwTakte_max ULong 81 76 0 Clata] Clata Cla</pre>	110"=515;64; (10"=0;0;0;0 의 CG=*F Ped N=CG=*F Ped N=C	0;0;0;0;10 ;0;4294967 ;0;4294967 ************************************) 2295;42945 VER="HETHEN VER="HETHEN SEPARA="; SEPARA="; SEPARA=";	967295;429 RNET" \$LOT :192.168.5	4967295; 0; — @ — "LocalHos 2.214" Filt PARASTRING	4294967295	214" DEVIC	E="fred_it:	L" DEVICEP	ARA=";;192.	168. 5. 214	" FILE="C:	\Projekte	\A765_73_113	3\P303\rec1	pe\Daten.	re

Windows	Rem Daten_lesen.bat (PLC \rightarrow PC)
Batch-	c:\ElaSoft\Bin\Recipes.exe /R DRIVER="ETHERNET" SLOT="LocalHost"
Daten	PARASTRING="" NODE="N214" DEVICE="fred_it1" DEVICEPARA=";;192.168.5.214"
	FILE="C. (Projekte(A/05_/3_113 (P303 (recipe (Daten.rec"
	Pause;
	Rem Daten_schreiben.bat (PC \rightarrow PLC)
	c:\ElaSoft\Bin\Recipes.exe /W DRIVER="ETHERNET" SLOT="LocalHost" PARASTRING="" NODE="N214" DEVICE="fred_it1" DEVICEPARA=";;192.168.5.214" FILE="C:\Projekte\A765_73_113\P303\recipe\Daten.rec"
	Pause;

6.3 Firewall

Disable your Windows Firewall at: **Start - Control Panel - Windows Firewall** when communication problems will be arise.. If then the communication problems are resolved, it is ensured that possible through proper configuration of the firewall, the communication is.

<u>The following ports must be approved:</u> Eonline.exe for Port 5000 / UDP Gateway.exe for Port 5001 / UDP telnet port 23 http port 80 ftp port 20



Use MS Explorer 8.0 or higher for ftp and http requests. Other browsers like Chrome, Safari, Mozilla and Firefox are not supported.

From the eStudio interface file transfers are performed with the target systems via FTP Copy commands



Blocking of Ports:Blocking different port:50005001leads to a blocking of online communication.

6.4 Problems with online communication



Communication with CoDeSys is restricted:

Check the registry entry:

HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINE \ SYSTEM \ CurrentControlSet \ Services \ Tcpip \ Parameters \ Interfaces \ <INTERFACE_ID> \ MTU

This value must correspond to either 1500 or completely not exist. If a value is entered as 1500 (eg 1300), the telegrams are fragmented and not properly handled.

Recommended additional programs instead of Telnet 6.5

The recommended alternative to Telnet is built into Windows HyperTerminal.

Elrest recommends more comfortable but licensed version of HyperTerminal Private Edition 6.3 or higher, available from http://hilgraeve.com/index.html

Royalty-free, we recommend the open source program Tera Term, available on http://ttssh2.sourceforge.jp/



7 What's News

7.1 What's New in version V2.83 to V2.91

7.1.1 Context menu

By clicking the right mouse button on an object in a form, a context menu opens.

Depending on what has been selected, e.g. an object or multiple objects the context menu will be adapted accordingly.



7.1.2 Support for high color depths

Support for high color depths for Windows CE devices

Through the support of 16-bit colors at the appropriate resolution and the support of the compressed bitmaps required. There are the two most widely used formats 'Joint Photographic Experts Group (JPEG), compression with any loss of quality for photos and images, and the 'Graphics Interchange Format (GIF), compression without any loss of quality for graphics, integrated.

The transfer to the target system is carried out in individual files.

Because the images or graphics have to be decompressed during so the runtime should be expected with a correspondingly higher visualization time.

Animated GIF-files are not supported

7.1.3 Switching to full screen

Switching between full screen and display screen (65)

Over a menu item or an icon in the toolbar in the text editor can be switched between a display panel with and without context.





7.1.4 Changed behavior of objects

Changed behavior when pasting objects

The behavior when inserting objects into a form should behave similarly as Microsoft PowerPoint.

When you insert an object without pulling the object is inserted in its standard size

When you insert an object with pulling the object inserted into the appropriate size if this is possible for this object.

Changed behavior to the property line

The object line is no longer to be limited by eight markers and changed by a respective special marker at the beginning and end of the line.



The altering of eight to two markers is associated with considerable effort. The form designer would have to be almost completely re-programmed. Therefore, this point is not considered further.

7.1.5 Changed behavior of the Z-Order

Z-Order

Currently, the Z-order in masks is equal to the tab order, so the order in which the objects of a mask can be activated using a keyboard. The tab order can be on the menu item Layout | Change Tab order 'or press Ctrl + D.

In this mode, each object is displayed on the current position in the Tab order. The smaller the number the farther forward you will find the object in the Tab order and the further down in the Z-order. By clicking on the objects, the order is fixed starting with 0.

If only the order of individual elements can be changed by clicking and holding down the Ctrl key on the last object to retain its position, the starting position will be determined. Should e.g. the order of items 4 and 6 are reversed then one click first hold down the Ctrl key on the object 3 and then without the Ctrl key on the object 5



7.1.6 Base masks

. Die Objekte der Basismaske können nur in dieser verändert werden. Im Designer werden in der abgeleiteten Maske die Objekte der Basismaske nur angezeigt.

It introduces the basic functionality of masks, similar to the master masks in Microsoft PowerPoint. In such a basis mask can be positioned recurring objects. Each mask can serve as basis for mask another mask. The objects of the base form can only be changed in this one. In the derived mask from the Disigners will be displayed only the objects of the based mask.

Hintergrundbild	×
C Hintergrundbild Datei (BMF Hintergrundfarbe	ŋ:
Fensteranordnung X-Pos: 0	Tielzeile Text: Font: cp1252_8x8.fnt Vordergrundfarbe: Hintergrundfarbe: Datenpunkte für Schablone Offset: Modul: Basismaske: Menü:
OK Abbrechen	Zuganglichkeit

The selection of a base occurs in the properties dialog of the background image. It will examine whether there is a circular relationship would result. E.G. Form1 -> form2 -> form1. This is not allowed

If a base mask will be selected for a mask base so the background of the mask is transparent by default and the background of the base screen is displayed. Is chosen for the derived mask a color or an image as the background so only the objects visible to the base form As the mask size, the size of the base form is used.

The objects of a base form are in the tab order is always in front of the objects of the derived form and the Z-order always behind the objects of the derived mask

The resource generator generates from the derived mask and its base forms a complete mask which is then transferred to the target system

At runtime, the objects of the base form are treated the same as the objects of the derived mask.

7.1.7 "Stretching" of images

"Stretching "of images

The object image can 'for BMP, JPG and GIF by dragging with the mouse will be changed to any size. Here, the aspect ratio can be changed.

7.1.8 Data in CSV file

Data into CSV file at the xt diagram

Element Datenlogger	×
Allgemein Skalierung Zugänglichkeit Datenspeicherung	
Image: second secon	
OK Abbrechen Obernehn	nen

The data shows an xt-diagram can be also saved in a CSV file. Storage is done in Formet: <date>; <time>; <Value>. Because the xt-diagram is a graphical object, which is active only as long as the corresponding mask is opened, the data is recorded only in this period. As an ongoing writing can lead to a flash memory to its destruction, the data can be cached in RAM and then when you close the screen or in a specified time frame stored on the disk.

The following settings can be made therein:

- If the data is stored.
- File name including path as the data point.
- Number of entries to be saved. If this number is exceeded, the first entry will be overwritten. (Ring buffer)
- if the data is cached.
- memory to disk interval.

Save to other media:

- "\ Memory stick \" of the USB stick
- \ Storage Card \" for the CF-card
- \ Flash Disk \" for the internal flash disk

7.1.9 Grouping of objects

Several objects in a mask can be combined into one group. These two commands will be introduced:"grouping" and "grouping remove". Objects of a group can not be marked individually. Settings to a group or to members of a group can not be changed

7.1.10 Transparent form background

For the mask background (wallpaper), the additional option transparent is introduced. 'If this option is selected to be at run time to display only the objects of a mask and you can see the underlying masks. Active but remains the top mask. I.e. to achieve the objects of the underlying masks can neither keyboard (TAB) and mouse (touch).

Within the mask designer, this option has no effect. Exception: Was chosen for the mask a base mask so then the background of the base form shown.

transparent mask background

7.1.11 Clickable mask background

For the mask background (wallpaper) is an additional option, introduced clickable '. This option can be selected only when the option, tracing is active. If this option is chosen so that objects at run time an underlying mask with the mouse (touch) can be achieved. This will the underlying mask is getting active, but remains in the background.

Using the keyboard (TAB) it's not able to change from the foreground mask in the background mask and vice versa

7.1.12 Alarm entry with dynamic values

Alarm messages can now contain up to five dynamic values

Alarmd	efinition	X
Тур:	Alarm (Quittierung erforderlich)	
Daten	npunkt: 📃 🛄 Indiziert	
	Rel. Offset:	
Klasse	e:	
Text	Vorlaufemperatur zu hoch! Ist: %d Soll: %d	
Kennwortebene für Quittierung: 0 📑		
🗖 Ke	ein Ereignis bei Gehend	
Dyna	amische Werte	
1:	nistTemp	
2:	nSollTemp	
3:		
4:		
5:		
OK Abbrechen		

In the Alarm Definition can be selected up to five data points. The

values are in the alarm text with the in the C programming language standard wildcards is inserted. For example, %d for a integer value or %s for a text. It is also a corresponding format as in C is possible. For example, an integer value by the placeholder % 03d three digits with leading zeros displayed. When you exit the Settings dialog will open an 'OK' is checked whether the number of wildcards with the matches of the data points and whether the corresponding data types are correct.

At runtime, when the alarm occurs the data point values determined and stored with the alarm entry.

7.1.13 Backup

From the Project Manager may remove an entire project to be secured and made out of such a security reconstructed. This includes all files that reside in the project path in a zip file will be saved.

Additionally, all backed by the existing project in CoDeSys projects used files. This is for every project in CoDeSys, Batch'-mode, and stores the data in the <Project_name> _Backup.zip. These are included in the CoDeSys for archiving the information provided. It should be noted that at the time CoDeSys configuration and target files do not include it in the archive.

An automatic restore CoDeSys this archive are not necessary and can be done manually from the appropriate ZIP file out.
7.1.14 Select a target at the start of CoDeSys

When calling from CoDeSys eStudio the target according to the base node in the set of device is selected. The mapping of device to CoDeSys target via an entry in the file, hardware.xml '

7.1.15 Use of the symbol file from the CoDeSys project

The CoDeSys project can be selected instances, the variables appear automatically in the symbol file.

Objektattribute setzen				
Messe_2011_P408_Abgabe.pro	ОК			
Eres Bausteine Eres Analoganzeige (PRG) Eres HMI (PRG) Eres MAIN (PRG)	Abbrechen			

The icon file must be entered when the device settings:

Einstellungen für Gerät 'P408'				×
Allgemein PC-Verbindung Schriftart				
Geräteinformationen	Name:	P408	ID:	2
	Geräteart:	VISIO_P410 -		
	Treiber:		Knoten:	000
Grafisches Display	Parameter:	C:\Projekte\elrest\Messe_201	1\P2xxP4xxP7xx	_Trend_Alarm
Auflösung: 640x480 Farben: 65536	RemotePanel:	•	FW-Version:	>= 2.20 ▼
Autoscan			ОК	Abbrechen

Then there are these data points to choose from

E- CoDeSys	Name	Datentyp	Array	Bit/Lä	Offset	Datasegment	^
PLC PBG	Istwert[0]	Float	1	4	208	4	
r co_r na	Istwert[1]	Float	1	4	212	4	
	Istwert[10]	Float	1	4	248	4	≡
	Istwert[11]	Float	1	4	252	4	
	Istwert[12]	Float	1	4	256	4	
	Istwert[13]	Float	1	4	260	4	
	Istwert[14]	Float	1	4	264	4	
	Istwert[15]	Float	1	4	268	4	
	Istwert[2]	Float	1	4	216	4	
	Istwert[3]	Float	1	4	220	4	
	Istwert[4]	Float	1	4	224	4	
	Istwert[5]	Float	1	4	228	4	
	Istwert[6]	Float	1	4	232	4	
	Istwert[7]	Float	1	4	236	4	
	Lehmart(9)	Float	1		240	л	Ŧ
	•						•

7.1.16 Hierarchical folders Stukturen

In the Project Management can be created folders:



In this folder, the various eStudio projects can be imported or pasted with restoring a backup.

<u>W</u>iederherstellung

7.1.17 Application error logging

There are various traps such as:

- Division by Zero
- Incorrect pointer access
- Alignement
- etc..

recognized, and in the file "eladesign.log" logged.



7.1.18 Touch Marker

Under telnet options :

Touch Mark On/Off	=	42set v	Jalue	[0,1] ->"on"
Touch Mark Radius	=	43set u	Jalue	[0-127] -> 20
Touch Mark Color (RGB)	=	44set v	Jalue	[0-255] -> 0,0,255

A touch marker can be configured with radius and color. So you can get a quick feedback on a touch event.

7.1.19 Advanced data logger

: The previous data logger could

- Chart Record (X-t-Diagram)
- X-Y Diagram

presented. In the extended type graph can be stored predefined data points in the background. With this element, the values can be loaded on a daily basis, zoomed, scrolled and measured with the cursor. Thus, on one mask more graphs can be shown

Diagramme - Wasser			
Aktuell			
-			-
100-			-100
			-
80 -			-80
60			
40 -			-40
-			-
20 -			-20
-			-
	10:16:00 10:1	16-10 10-16-20	10·16·20 10·16·40
13.06.2012 10.13.36	10.10.00 10.1	10.10 10.10.20	
			Reset
		OFF	Zoom W

More in the chapter : Datenlogger.

7.1.20 Support with Teamviewer

With a menu item you can directly activate the remote maintenance of our support team



With the tool "Teamviewer" you can admit our support team to operate the eStudio's. Thus, questions can be answered simply and effectively in dialogue.

elrest"
O.
Fernsteuerung zulassen 🔅
Bitte teilen Sie dem eirest Supportmitarbeiter die folgende ID mit, um sich mit Ihrem Computer zu verbinden.
Ihre ID 747 848 216
Kennwort 9156 🖒
O Bereit zum Verbinden (sichere Verbindung)
www.teamviewer.com Abbrechen

8 Support

Hotline

For additional assistance or information, you can use our hotline at the following times:

Mon-Fri: 8:00 to 12:00 and 13.00 - 16.30

: Outside these hours, please contact us by e-mail or fax achiev

Phone:++49 (0) 7021/92025-33 Fax: ++49 (0) 7021/92025-29 E-mail: hotline@elrest.de

Training und workshops

We offer training and workshops on project-related products at elrest

For more information, please contact our sales departmen

PhoneT:	++49 (0) 7021/92025-0
Fax:	++49 (0) 7021/92025-29
E-mail:	vertrieb@elrest.de

9 Historie

Date	Name	Chapter	Change

© 2012 elrest Automation Systems Inc. All rights reserved. information contained in this document is subject to change without notice, and represent a commitment on the part elrest Automation Systems Inc., the Software and / or databases described in this document are subject to a License Agreement and a Confidentiality Agreement. The software and / or databases may the agreement be used or copied only in accordance with the conditions. It is illegal to copy the software on any medium, provided this is not expressly permitted in the license or nondisclosure agreement. Without the express written permission of elrest Automation Systems Inc. may not reproduce this manual or parts thereof for any purpose in any form by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying and recording, or transmitted. Illustrations, descriptions, dimensions and technical data correspond to the circumstances or intentions at the time of printing this brochure. Changes of any kind, particularly those resulting from technological progress, economic performance or a similar result, without notice. The external wining of the devices are on their own.